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October 10, 2003

Honarable District Judges of Harris County and
Honorable Members of the Harris County Comnmissioners Court

The County Auditor's Office (the “Auditor's Office”) is pleased to present the Comprehensive
Annual Finaneial Report (“CAFR") of Harris County, Texas (the “County”) for the fiscal year
ended February 28, 2003, This report is submitted in accordance with Section 114.025 of the Texas
Local Government Code and has been prepared by the County Auditor’s staff,

This report was prepared by the Auditor’s Office. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data,
and the completeness and fairmess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
County. We believe the information and data contained herein are accurate in all material respects:
that it is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the County in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™).
All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the County’s financial
activities have also been included.

The CAFR is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial, Statistical, and Compliance.

+ The Introductory Section, which is unaudited, contains the letter of transmittal (this letter), an
organization chart of the County and a list of elected and selected appointed officials, and a
reproduction of the County’s Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
for the year preceding this report.

¢ The Financial Section includes the Independent Auditer’s Report, Management Discussion and
Analysis (“MD&A™), the Basic Financial Statements (including notes). The Basic Financial
Statements include the government-wide financial statements that are presented for the first
time and provide an overview of the County’s entire financial operations. In addition, the fund
financial statements present financial information of each of the County’s major funds, as well
as non-major funds, fiduciary funds, and other funds.

+ The Statistical Section includes selected financial, demographic, and statistical data that is
generally presented on a multiyear basis, and other information which includes supplemental
disclosures to comply with Securities Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12.

¢+ The Compliance Section contains information related to the County’s annual single audit,
which is required under the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984, the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996, and the U8, Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, dudits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizarions. Included are a Supplementary
Schedule of Federal and State Awards, Notes to Supplementary Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal and State Awards, the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and Internal




Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Basic Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards, the Independent Auditor’s Report on
Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133, and a Schedule of Findings and
Cuestionad Costs,

These financial statements represent a substantial change from the prior year's format and
accounting methodology. This year’s CAFR incorporates the new financial reporting requirements
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No.34, “Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments” (“GASB34™), as amended by GASB Statement No.37. The implementation of
GASB 34 significantly modifies the content of the CAFR from the previous year. The County is
required to provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of a MD&A. This letter of transmuttal is designed to compliment
the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditors.

During the current year, the County also implemented GASB Statement No.38, “Certain Financial
Statement Note Disclosures”, and GASE Interpretation No.6, “Recognition and Measurement of
Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Government Fund Financial Statements.” The effect of
implementing all of the above-mentioned accounting standards are discussed in Note | to the basic
financial statements,

THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

The combined financial statements of the County as a financial reporting entity report all activities,
organizations, and functions of the County, both as the primary government and its legally separate
component units for which (1) the elected officials of the County are financially accountable and/or
(2) exclusion of component units ‘activities would cause the County’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The County’s component units have been reported as blended with the
County as the primary government or as discrete (separale) component unit, a5 appropriate.
Criteria used by the County for including activities in preparing these financial statements are in
conformity with the GASBI4, The Financial Reporting Entitv. Based on these criteria, the
following component units have been included in this year's report:

e  Harris County Flood Control District

e Harris County Industrial Development Corporation

= Harris County Hospital District

®  Harris County Juvenile Board

o  Harris County Housing Finance Corporation

»  Mental Health and Mental Retardation Authority of Harris County
¢  Harris County Sports and Convention Corporation

The County, the primary government, and its component units solely or in cooperation with other
local governmental entities provide a full range of services that include, construction and
maintenance of roads and bridges, health and housing services, assistance to indigents, juvenile and
adult justice programs, economic development, recreation and cultural enrichment, flood control,

a sports and entertainment complex, and general administration.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK!

The County is located in the Gulf Coast region of Texas approximately 50 miles from the Gulf of
Mexico. The County covers over 1,700 square miles with approximately 3.4 million residents. The
County ranks as one of the top ten fastest growing counties in the nation as well as third most
populous county in the nation,

! The Greater Houston Partnership was the primary sowree of the Information contained in this sectlan.




The County’s population base includes a wide variety of racial and ethnic groups that give a rich
diversity and cosmapolitan feel. Recent census data reported that the City of Houston, the largest
city in the County, to be the fourth largest city in the United States with the greater Houston
metropolitan area ranking tenth

In previous years, the County’s economy was largely based on the exploration and production of vil
and natural gas. In 1982, the County’s economy suffered a major recession as a result of depressed
global oil prices. The subsequent recovery and expansion was the result of diversification away
trom these traditional Houston industries. This economic diversification includes growth in high
technology industries, medical research, health care and professional services. Rapid growth in the
service sector is primarily attributed to two factors. Houston should continue to dominate Texas as
the center for healthcare, and experience structural reorganization as outsourcing shifis jobs from
other sectors into business services.

Today, Harris County’s economy 15 largely based on a broad spectrum of industries including:

Oil and gas exploration

Basic petroleum refining

Petrochemical production

Medical research and health care delivery

High technology — computers, asrospace, environmental, ete.
Gaovernment — city, state and federal (i.e. NASA)
International import & export

Commercial fishing

Agriculure

Education

» Banking and finance

* Manufacturing and distribution

s  Related service industries

& & @& & 8 & ® ® @

The County is home to many businesses including corporate headquarters for 22 of the Fortune 500
companies. Many other Fortune 500 companies maintain U.S. administrative headquarters in
Houston. Also, more than half of the world’s 100 largest non-U.S. based corporations have
operations in Houston.

Ameng 11.8. ports, the Port of Houston in ranked first in the U.S. in foreign tonnage and sixth in the
world in total tonnage. The Port of Houston continued to serve as the main driver of global trade
and commerce in fiscal year 2003.

The Houston Ship Channel is a 52-mile inland waterway which connects Houston to the Bay of
Galveston, the Gulf Intra-coastal Waterway, the Gulf of Mexico, and ultimately the major shipping
lanes of the world. The wharves and transfer facilities lining the ship channel collectively form the
Port of Houston.

In addition to a moderate climate and diverse economic base, the County provides a modem and
efficient infrastructure for people working and doing business in the County. This includes a local
zovernment that encourages business development, high eapacity freeways, major rail lines, the
Port of Houston, three major airports (George Bush Intercontinental, Houston Hobby, and Ellington
Field) and telecommunication services that are state of the art.

The County is the leading domestic and international center for virtually every segment of the oil
and gas industry — exploration, production, transmission, marketing, service supply, offshore
drilling and technology. The Harris County ares economy is healthier than many other large
metropolitan ¢conomies. For the 12 months ending March 2003, Houston, the County's largest
city, sustained a net loss of 15,600 jobs, or 0.7 percent, while the nation as a whele lost 311,000
jobs. Among all 33 metropolitan areas over 1.5 million population, Houston ranked 26" in nominal
change and 20" in percentage change for the period. Only 12 of the 33 posted gains.

There are three primary factors which have affected the Harris County area economy: health of the




national economy, the value of the dollar against foreign currencies and energy prices. In 2001, oil
prices fell by a third, GDP contracted for three consecutive gquarters and the dollar continued to
strengthen - with the resuli that the Houston area job growth slowed to near zero by the end of
2001, However in 2002 and 2003, all three factors moved in the right direction, setting the stage
for resumption of employment growth whenever national job growth and worldwide economic
expansion refurned.

There are 23 public school districts entirely or partially within Harris County, Some school
districts offer “magnet” school programs, whereby students can attend a special school where the
electives focus on career-related courses. The Houston Independent School District’s (“HISD™)
magnet programs include schools for performing and visual arts, engineering, entrepreneurship,
health professions, science, and law enforcement. HISD operates approximately 300 schools and is
considered the seventh largest district in the United States today. In addition, over 45,000 students
attend 195 accredited private and parochial schools. The area’s private schools are concentrated in
Harris County, which has 172 private schools and approximately 40,000 students in these school
systems. The County is alsc home to over 47 colleges, universities, institutes, and technical
schools.  Major institutions include Rice University, University of Houston, Texas Southern
University, Houston Baptist University, the University of Texas Medical School and Baylor
College of Medicine.

The County's major hospitals consistently rank among the nation’s top institutions. Many of these
facilities are concentrated in the Texas Medical Center, a non-profit organization devoted to health
education, research and patient care. Located just south of downtown Houston, the Texas Medical
Center offers world-class facilities for general and specialized medical needs.

Cultural attractions within Houston include a thriving theater district and numerous museums.
Houston's theater district includes the Wortham Center (ballet and opera), Jones Hall (symphony),
The Alley (live theater) and the Hobby Center (Broadway productions, etc.). All of these
companies have mounted productions that are considered world class by experts in the field,

Houston is home to numerous professional and collegiate sports teams. Professional teams include:
Astros, Major League Baseball; Texans, National Football League; Fockets, National Basketball
Association; Comets, Women’s National Basketball Association; and the Aeros, American Hockey

League. Houston will host the Major League Baseball All-Star Game in 2004, Reliant Stadium
will hiost the Super Bowl XXX VI on February 1, 2004,

MAJOR INITIATIVES
The Year in Review
The County continued to enjoy a favorable financial environment during the fiscal year. The
population growth of the unincorporated areas is considered by the Commissioners Court in
assessing the appropriate service delivery within available resources in a cost-effective manner.
Some of the examples of the County’s financial improvement program are:
¢ Encouraged the use of five-year planmng ool for revenue and expenditure projections;
s  Expenditures are controlled to not exceed revenues;
e  The policy of Commuissioners Court is that balance financial operations will be maintained;

e Departments and managers are encouraged to build savings within their budget for future use;

s  The minimum fund balance for the general fund and other operating funds should be no less
than 15% of fiscal year expenditures;

= Full disclosure and open lines of communications are maintained with rating agencies. A
continuing goal is to upgrade the County’s debt rating. The bond rating services of Moody's
Investors Service; Inc., Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, and Firch IBCA, Inc. have assigned




the County long term bond ratings of Aal, AA+, and AA+

*  Use of the commercial paper program to take advantage of short-term interest rates during the
interim financing period for voter authorized and other court approved projects rather than
initially issuing long-term bonds.

* The Commissioners Court authorized the following issuances for new debt in FY 2003:

*  OnMay 22, 2002, the Flood Control District issued $44,495 000 Refunding Bonds, Series
2002. The bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding Bond Series 1992A and 1992B, a
portiont of Refunding Bonds Series 1991 and to pay certain costs incurred in connection with
the isspance of the refunding bonds,

e OnJune 19, 2002, the County issued $206.772,041 in Texas General Obligation and
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002, Proceeds from the Texas General Obligation and
Bevenue Refunding Bonds were used to retire the County’s outstanding Commercial Paper
Series D and Series D-1.

e On October 16, 2002, the County issued $195,665,000 in Texas Permanent Improvement and
Refunding Bonds, Series 2002, The bonds were issued for the purpose of construction of the
County’s Civil Justice Center, refunding and defeasing a portion of the Harris County, Texas
General Obligation Commercial Paper Notes, Series D and certain Permanent Improvement
Bonds and Certificates of Obligation.

e OnNovember 19, 2002, the County issued $42,260,000 Toll Road Unlimited Tax and
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002, and $397.520,000 Toll Road
Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 to finance construction, acquisition,
improvement and administrative cost of toll road; to refund certain Toll Road Unlimited Tax
and Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds and certain Toll Road Senior Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds; to refund all Toll Road Senior Lien Revenue Commercial Paper Notes,
Series E.

¢ Commercial paper was issued for the fallowing amounts during the fiscal vear:

Series A, A-1,Band C 3 63,766,000
Series D and D-1 113,870,000
Series E (Toll Road) 57,682,000
Series F (Flood Control) 76,233,000

Transportation
Harris County Toll Road Autherity

The Harris County Toll Road Authority (“Toll Road Authority™), which consists of the Sam
Houston and Hardy Toll Roads, provides County travelers with 83 miles of user-financed roads
in the Houston/Harris County area, There are a total of nine mainline plazas, seven of which
are along the Sam Houston Tollway and two on the Hardy Toll Road. Each plaza offers three
types of “service areas”. The Sam Houston Tollway provides travelers with a 61 mile loop
around the greater Houston ared, connecting to several freeways providing a direct route for
travelers between the Central Business District and the George Bush International Adirport.
Total revenues for the toll system equaled $244,170,745 for fiscal year 2003, an increase of 4%
over fiscal year 2002,

Other Road System Initiatives
Each County Commissioner is responsible for the comstruction and maintenance of the

County's road system within their precinet. Primarily, the County’s general fund and the
proceeds of general obligation bonds fund this activity. Cooperative: efforts with the




Metropolitan Transit Authority of Harris County, Texas (“METRO”) have provided additional
funds for the maintenance, repair and enhancement of the County’s road system. During fiscal
year 2003, the County received approximately $6.397 million in funding from METRO.

Flood Control

The Flood Control District (the “District™) was established to develop a flood control plan for
the County, carry out an ongoing capital improvements program, maintain District facilities
and provide flood watch and {lood alerl programs. The District has continued to redefine the
District’s relationship with the U.S. Corp of Engineers to expedite flood contral projects in the
area. The District and County Engineer’s office coordinated a limited buyout program for
properties located in flood prone areas.

Administration of Justice

Administration of Justice activities absorbed a significant portion of the County’s budget,
representing 33% of expenditures. The primary departments under Administration of Justice
include Constables, County and District Criminal Courts, County and District Civil Courts,
District Attorney, Distriet Clerk, County Clerk, Juvenile Probation, Justices of the Peace, and
Sheniff. The overcrowded conditions at the County's jail have improved as a result of the State
of Texas’s program to expand state jail facilities: Reductions in jail population have allowed
the County to reassign peace officers and clerical staff from detention to patrol,
communication, detective and other activities of the Sheriff's Department.

The Commissioners Court authorized the Facilities and Property Management Department
(“FPM") to seek bids for conversion of the Criminal Courts Building to a Juvenile Justice
Center. Construction should be complete by November 2004. The building will provide
courtrooms, conference rooms, and office facilities plus 210 detention beds: Construction is
estimated to cost $36.6 million. An additional $4.3 million would be needed for fumiture and
§2.4 million would be needed for computer network and telephone communication equipment,

Plans were made to move the offices of the Justice of the Peace Precinct 1, Position 2 and
Constable Precinct 1 from the Criminal Courts Building to Annex 2, the Old Fire Station
Building.

Plans made for the juvenile justice facilities included the renovation of the Detention Center at
3540 W. Dallas with the addition of 400 beds. The facility had 159 beds.

Construction documents were finalized for the Civil Justice Center. The FPM Director was
authorized to advertise for bids. The Management Services Department was directed to
prepare financing and debt issuance documents. The total estimated cost of the project,
including land iz $119 million,

The Commissioners Court authorized the Facilities and Property Management Department to
begin the selection process, in conjunction with the Public Infrastructure Department to employ
an architect-engineer feam af a cost, at this time, of $1.1 million to design and construct a plaza
with jury assembly facilities on County property across Caroline Street from the site of the
proposed Civil Justice Center,

The Commmssioners Court also directed the Management Services Department to recommend
permanent financing for a sixth floor addition to the jail at 1200 Baker Street along with other
downtown projects that have been initially fundéd by commercial paper issuance. The
estimated cost of the sixth floor addition was $13.9 million.

The Future
e In addition to a fve-year plan for the expenditure of approximately $395.000,000 for

County roads and bridges, the Toll Road Authority also intends to expend $780,000,000
during the next five years for various toll road projects. The projects will be funded by




toll road bonds, commercial paper issuance, and toll road revenue.

* The District plans to spend $802,338,000 on various flood control projects during five-
year period of FYs 2003-04-2007-08. Approximately $615,000,000 for the projects will
be funded by the District; the remaiming amount will be funded by the federal zovernment
and impact fees.

* The Commissioners Court approved the Phase 2 master plan document for parks which
will be used to seek financial assistance from the state for the development of the County’s
parks sysiem.

*  The Commissioners Court is now considering the vision for the Toll Road Authority. The
need has resulted from the population surge and mobility demands of this metropolitan
area, as indicated by census data and related population and economic studies.

= Various County facility projects are planned. Some of the projects and related cost include
the following:

Courthouse Complex $204,906,000
Juvenile Detention Center 30,600,000
Civil Courts Building 30,380,000
Fire Training & Sherifi’s Academy 9,200,000
Mosquito Control Facility 3,400,000
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Accounting System, Internal Controls, and Budgetary Control

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or misuse
and to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, The internal contrel structure is desizned 1o provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the
cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary control i5 exerciséd over the operating departments of the County. After adoption of the
budget by Commissioners Court, the County Auditor is the responsible for ensuring expenditures
are made in compliance with budgeted appropriations. The level of budgetary control is the
organization (department) within the individual funds. Commissioners Court may transfer
available funds between various organization classifications; however, no transfer may increase the
total appropriation of a fund. Commissioners Court may adopt supplemental budgets for the limited
purposes of spending grant or aid money or for capital projects through the issuance of bonds.
Purchase orders and contracts are not valid until the County Auditor certifies availability of funds
for payment of the obligation. Encumbrance accounting is wtilized where purchase orders,
contracts or other commitments are recorded in order to reserve a portion of the appropriation for
these commitments. Outstanding encumbrances at fiscal year end are not recorded as expenditures
or liabilities of the fund. Encumbrances are reserved in the fund balance at fiscal year end. The
encumbrances are reappropriated in the subsequent year's budget,

INVESTMENT POLICY

The County's investment policy poal is to provide for an effecuve cash management program to include
accurale cash projections, expeditious collection of revenue, control of dishursemenis, cost-effective
banking relations and a short term bormowing program, when needed. The "prudent person” concepi is
utilized in managing the portiblio for the County. The objectives of the County's invesiment program are
as follows:




s Safetw: Protection of the principal is a foremost objective,

= Liguidity: Investment decisions are based upon meeting the cash requirements of the
County.
s Low Risk: Investment decisions should not place unreasonable mvestment risk on the

County in order 1o enhance investment income.

*  Diversification:  Through control of maturities and types of investment, the portfolio is
diversified thus lessening the overall risk to the portfolio,

The investible funds under the County’s investment program as of February 28. 2003 were $1.72 billion
and total investment earnings on that portfolio were $36.8 million. The following percentages of the
County’s investible funds were invested in the following categories as of February 28, 2003. The average
maturity of such investments was 136 days.

Distribution of County Investible Funds
U. 8. Government Securities 2%
Commercial Paper 14
Money Market Mutual Funds 12
Municipal Securities 2
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Risk Management Department is responsible for assessing the County's exposure to risk and
obtaining coverage against that risk. The County is self-insured for workers' compensation medical and
indenmity payments and self-funded for dental and vision coverage provided under the employees' health
mmsurance program.  Claim services are provided by administrative claims adjusting service for the
workers' compensation program.  The County's workers' compensation self-insurance program provides
medical and indemmity payments as required by law for on-the-job related injuries and is accounted for in
the Workers' Compensation Internal Service Fund, The County has reinsurance coverage for excess
workers' compensation and employer's liability. The retention (deductible) for the fiscal vear ended
Febroary 28, 2003 is $750,000 per occurrence: Traditional insurance is purchasad for County employee's
group medical coverage and other types of coverape required by the County.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

In accordance with state stature; an annual audit for the fiscal year was conducted on the financial records
of the County and the Flood Control District: Being a recipient of federal and state financial assistance;
the County is required to have a Single Audit. The audits of the County, Flood Contrel District and
Single Audit were conducted by Deloitte & Touche LLP. Opinions rendered by Deloitte & Touche LLP
are included in the appropriate reports,

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence m Financial Reporting to the County for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2002, The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award-recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government financial reports,

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achieverment, 2 government umit must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program
standards. This report must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and




applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The County has received a Certificate
of Achievement for the last twenty years. We believe our current report continues to conform to the
Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it for review to GFOA.

The timely completion of this report could not have been achieved without the dedicated efforts of the
County Auditor’s staff, and the professional services provided by our independent auditors, Deloitte &
Touche LLP. We also wish to express our thanks to Commissioners Court and the District Judges for
their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial affairs of the County in a responsible
and professional manner. Furthermore, I would like to commend the Commissioners Court as well as
other County officials and departments for the support that they provided to the County Auditor’s Office
during the implementation of GASE 34.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for individuals who are
interested in this information. Questions concerning any of the data provided in this report or requests

for additional financial information should be addressed to the County Auditor’s Office, 1001 Preston
Suite 500 Houston, Texas 77002,

Barbara I. Schott, C.P.A,
County Auditor
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Detparte & Touche LLP
Suite 2300

333 Chay Strept

RHouston, Texas 77002-4 196

Deloitte
& Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

County Judge Robert Eckels
and Members of Commissioners Court of
Harris County, Texas:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Harris County, Texas (the “County™), as of and for the year ended
February 28, 2003, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the respective financial statements based on our audit. We did
not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component units. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion insofar as
it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented component units, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors. We also did not audit the financial statements of the Harris County Clerk
Registry Fund and the Harris County District Clerk Registry Fund, fiduciary funds, which statements
reflect 59 percent of the assets of the fiduciary funds at February 28, 2003. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furmished to us, and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to the amounts included for the fiduciary funds, is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The financial statements of the Harris County Clerk Registry Fund and the Harris
County District Clerk Registry Fund were audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, but were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. The financial
staternents of the Harris County Hospital Distnict, Harris County Housing, Finance Corporation and
Harris County Industrial Development Corporation, discretely presented component units, were audited
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, but were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other auditors provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu




In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other anditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, business-type activities, discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaimning fund information of Harris County, Texas as of February 28, 2003, and the
respective changes in financial position (and respective cash flows, where applicable), thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As discussed in Note | to the financial statements, the County implemented a new financial reporting
model, as required by the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™) Statement
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments, GASB Statement No, 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management s Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus which provides additional guidance for the
implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statenient
Note Disclosures, which changes note disclosure requirements for governmental entities, for the vear
ended February 28, 2003.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and
Actual- Budgetary Basis — General Fund are not required parts of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the GASB. The supplementary information is the responsibility
of the County's management. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the respective financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The Introductory Section, Combining and
Individual Fund Information and Other Supplementary Information and Statistical Section are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This
supplementary information is the responsibility of the County’s management. The Combining and
Individual Fund Information and Other Supplementary Information have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The Introductory Section and Statistical
Section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 10,
2003, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
comphance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considening the results of our audit.

Do b 3 Touebe WP

Oetober 10, 2003




Harris County, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

This section of the Harris County, Texas (the “County”) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(“CAFR™) presents a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the primary
government for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2003. Please read it in conjunction with the
transmittal letter in the introductory section of this report and the County’s basic financial
statements following this section.

This discussion and analysis is being presented as part of the County’s CAFR for the first time
and it coincides with the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB") Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments” (“GASE Statement No. 34"). Accordingly, there is
limited comparative data available for analysis this year. Future reports will include extensive
comparisons as required.

FinancialL HIGHLIGHTS

*  The County’s total net assets decreased by $86,813,540, 1% over the course of this year’s
operations.

* The total government-wide assets of the County exceeded the labilities at February 28, 2003
by $8.904,094,913 and is reported as total net assets of the primary government. Of this
amount, $441,589,531 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors, 5439,109,099 is restricted for specific purposes (restricted net assets)
and $8,023,396,283 is invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

NET ASSETS BY CATEGORY
February 28, 2003

Unrestncted
Restricied

hvested i capital
assets, netafrehted
debt




Harris County, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unandited)

s Asof February 28, 2003, the County governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
5809,213,968. Approximately 46% of the combined fund balances, $370.764.662. is
available to meet the County’s current and future needs (unreserved fund balances).

* At the end of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $214.159.853
million, or 23% of total general fund expenditures.

* The County issues debt to finance an ongoing capital improvernent program. During fiscal
year 2002-2003, the County issued $480 million in bonds, of which $112 million is available
for ongoing capital improvements. The remainder of the new debt refunded $157 million of
bonded debt and $209 million of commercial paper.

¢ In fiscal year 2003, the County issued $179 million of commercial paper to provide additional
financing for the capital improvement program.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic
financial statements, which are comprised of the following three components: 1) Government-
wide financial statements; 2) Fund financial statements and 3) Notes to the basic financial
staternents. Required Supplementary Information is included in addition to the basic financial
statements. The Single Audit is included in this year's CAFR in the compliance section.

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of County finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all County assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two representing net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving
or deteriorating,

The Statement of Activities presents information that indicates how net assets changed during the
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reporied in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are
principally supported by taxes and interpovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or in part a portion of their costs through user fees
and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include
administration of justice, parks, county administration, health and human services. {lood control,
tax administration, and roads and bridges. The business-tvpe activities of the County include toll
road, subseriber access, parking facilities, and sheriffs commissary fund activities.

Component units are included in our basic financial statements and consist of legally separate
entities for which the County is financially accountable and that have substantially the same
board as the County or provide services entirely to the County. The County's component units
have been reported as blended with the County as the primary government or as discrete
(separate) component unit, as appropriate. The following component umits have been mcluded n
this year's report: Harris County Flood Control District, Harris County Industmial Development




Harris County, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Corporation, Harris County Hospital Distriet, Harris County Juvenile Board, Harris County
Housing Finance Corporation, Mental Health and Mental Retardation Authority of Harris County,
and the Harris County Sperts and Convention Corporation. For more detailed information on
these component units, refer to Note 1A of the basic financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-
related legal compliance. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the County's
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than of the government-wide financial
statemnents, it 15 useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so. readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities,

The County maintains 32 individual government funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the major governmental funds. Data from other
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for
cach of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary funds are maintained two ways, An enterprise fund is used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
County uses an enterprise fund to account for the toll road operations. Internal service funds are
an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs intermally among the County's
various functions. The County uses internal service funds to account for its maintenance of
County vehicles, purchase of storeroom supplies, operation of County radios, operation of the
printing shop provided by inmates, workers compensation, health insurance and other risk
management activities. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The toll road fund is considered to be a major fund of the
County.. The County’s internal service funds aré combined info a single, aggrepated presentation
in the proprietary funds financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.




Harris County, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own programs.
The County’s only fiduciary funds are agency funds. Agency funds are purely custodial (assets
equal liabilities) and thus do not invelve measurement of results of operations.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes can be found starting on page 43 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information is presented concerning the County's General Fund
budgetary schedule. The County adopts an annual budget for this fund. A budgetary comparison
schedule, which includes the original and final amended budget and actual figures, has been
provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget. Required supplementary information can
be found starting on page 89 of this report.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules referred to earlier provide
information for non-major governmental funds and intemal service funds and are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This year is the first period the County applied GASB Statement No. 34. The County has not
restated prior periods for purposes of providing the comparative data for the Management
Discussion and Analysis because certain prior year information is unavailable. However, in
future years when prior year information 1s available a comparative analysis of government-wide
data will be presented.

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $8.904,094,913 at the close of
the fiscal year.




Harris County, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Statement of Net Assels
February 28, 2003
(Amounts in thonsands)
Primary Government

Govermmental Busimcss-type
hctiv_i_ti_cs. _ Activities Total

Current and other assets & 1,100,445 5 701,359 3 1,501,834
Capital Assets 9831086 1,191,263 11022349

Total assets 10,931,531 1,892,652 12,824,183
Current and other labilitics 208,452 130,567 339,019
Long-term habilities 1,874 723 1,706,346 3,581,069

Total labilities 2083175 1,836,913 3,920,088
Met assers:
Invested in capital assets, net of related . 3,269,446 {246,050) 8,023,398
Restricted net assets 146,505 292,604 439,109
Unrestnicted net assets 432 405 2185 441,590

Total net assets 5 8,848 356 b 55,739 b 8,904 005

The largest portion of the County’s current fiscal year net assets (90.2 percent) reflects its
investments in capital assels (e.g. land, improvements, buildings, equipment, infrastructure), less
any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The main use of these
capital assets is to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities,

Another significant portion of the County’s current fiscal year net assets (4.9 percent) represents
unrestricted net assets, which may be used to meet the County’s ongomg obligations to citizens
and creditors.

The remaining balance of the County’s current fiscal year net assets (4.9 percent) represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County reported positive net assets in all three categories
of net assets for its governmental activities and positive net assets in two of the three categories
for its business-type activities, Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt for
business-type activities was negative $246,049 947,

The following table indicates changes in net assets for governmental and business-type activities:
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Sradem ent ol Nctividiea

iln Thouwsanods)

For the ¥Year Ended Febrosry 28, 2003

Governmeacal

Buginessg-1y pe

Activities Agrivities T oval
Revenmwos:
Prugr:m revendeg:
Charges Far Services 3 TELBEG 3 EE0 0702 5 S0 EaE
Operating grantd and evneributfons 1 579977 - I &T.277
L'lpl'la.liglu'ulsa.ud:nnlril:ulinn:- I3, 2390 5,048 B2 TA
General revemues:
Taxes-Levied for General Purposes TO0,189 To0.,199
Taxes-Levied For Debt Service 4,108 - 54 1065
Loss on Sale of Capital A ssels (271 54 (ra1s) (22173
Investm et Earnings 0,542 1&.267 A O |
Mijscellancous - B e I ) 124 228,569
Totalrevenues 1,434,012 25 TR I 1,705 404
Expensen;
Adm Inigiratien of Justice 549 450 540 443
Parks 3T 09 - 37..50%9
County Administration Iip1,pe97 311,987
Health and Homan Ssrvices 1'434:91% - 142,918
Flood Contrel AT 42 23 .,3% 2
Tax Adm inistration 9,008 - T e
Roasdgand Bridges o e ) - 413,959
Interest amd other feen 24,328 - 96,124
Debi Sarvica 1 s I
Taoll Roasd - | 80,728 180,728
G'ther - 6,737 6.7 3.7
Tolalexpenses I 6087573 L7 465 1,781,218
Excess {defleiency ) befo're gpecial item ¥
and transfers (P70, 741) 83,927 (&6 5| 4
Contributions - -
Speeinl itam & - .
Transfers 20058 {20,058} .
Champge in mel assels (b50,8683) 63 ka9 (&6 514
Nioei asgels - beoginning B ;899 0389 (8,138 2,000,909
Net assets « endism g 3B B43.356 5 55,7 3% 5 3,904 095

The County’s net assets decreased by $86,813.540 during the current fiscal year. Governmental
activities net assets decreased $150,682,744 while Business-type activities net assets increased

563,869,204,
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF MAJOR FUNDS

Governmental Funds. The County’s major general government fimctions are contained in the
General Fund. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the County’s financing requirements, In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

At February 28, 2003, the County’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
$809,213,968, an increase of $113,536,633 from the prior year. Approximately 46% of the
combined fund balances constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available to meet the
County’s current and future needs. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is
not available for new spending because it has been committed for encumbrances ($295,664,221),
debt service ($123.979,147), grant programs ($6,805,888) and an advance to a blended
component unit ($12.000,000).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At February 28, 2003, the General
Fund reported revenues of $900,484,951 and expenditures of $914,285,845.

Proprietary Funds. The County’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of
information found in the business type activities of the government-wide financial statements, but
in more detail,

The Toll Road Fund is the County’s only major proprietary fund at February 28, 2003, This fund
15 used to account for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of County toll roads.  As of
February 28, 2003, net assets is made up of $255,638,683 negative net assets invested m capital
-assets, net of related debt and $292 603,977 restricted riet assets.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget resulted in a 375,484 242
increase in appropriations which is primarily due to increases in other financing sources related to
debt issuance.

During the year actual revenues were more than budgetary estimates by $16,571,790. Actual
expenditures were less than budgetary estimates by $324,339,582. The revised budget projected a
need to draw 344,750,704 from fund balance. The net effect of over-realization of revenues and
under-utilization of appropriations resulted in a positive variance of $340,911,372 thus causing
the need to draw upon the existing fund balance for 83,839,332 on a budgetary basis.

Budget variances are not expected to impact future services or liquidity.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assefs. The County’s investment in capital assets for ils governmental and business-type
activities as of February 28, 2003, amounted to $11,022.348,334 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, improvements, structures, park
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improvements and facilities, infrastructure, equipment, vehicles, machinery, other tangible and
intangible assets, easements, and construction work in progress.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

¢ The County expended a total of $363.7 million in fiscal year 2003 for a variety of
improvements including roads, parks and flood control projects.

s At February 28, 2003, the ending fund balance for Capital Projects Funds was $299.0 million
made up of $229.0 million for encumbrances, $58 million designated for capital projects and
$12 million advance to a component unit.

* The County has $935.7 million unissued but authorized bonds to be used for Toll Roads,
Roads, Civil Justice Center, Parks, Libraries, and Flood Control Projects.

For further information regarding capital assets, see Note 6.

Long-term Debt. At February 28, 2003, the County had total long-term debt outstanding of
$3.656,449.614. Refer to MNote 10 for further information on the County’s long-term debt.
County officials, citizens and investors will find the ratio of net bonded debt to assessed valuation
and the amount of bonded debt per capita as useful indicators of the County's debt position and is
shown 1n the statistical section of this report.

EcononMic FACTORS

The Commissioner’s Courl adopted the County's 2003-2004 Budget on February 18, 2003, The
Budget was adopted based on estimated balances that would be available at the end of fiscal year
2003 and estimated revenues to be received in fiscal year 2004. The total of available resources
for all funds for fiscal year 2004 15 $3.18 billion. For the County’s General Fund, the 2003-2004
Budget utilizes $1.08 billion of available funds,

For 2003-2004, the property tax rate will remain the same as the prior year, however the revenue
is anticipated to grow by 2.9%. This growth is due to a growing tax base and increases in
property values. Additionally, the County’s Budget anticipates an increase of 2.9% in state
funding. There will be a reduction in intergovernmental funding as the Metro funding for
roadway repair and maintenance ending. Intergovernmental revenucs are projected to decrease
by 56.7% for the 2003-2004 Budget year.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report 15 designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all
those with an interest in the County’s finances. Questions concemning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the
County Auditor’s Office, 1001 Preston, Swuite 800, Houston, Texas 77002,
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Pooled cash and investments
Investments
Taxes receivable, net
Accounts Teceivable, net
Due from other governmental units
Other receivables
Internal balances
Inventories, prepaids and other assets
Restrictad:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accruad interest receivable
Prepaids and other assets
Internal balances
Deferred charges. net of amortization
Motes receivable
Capital assets:
Land, improvements, and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Total agzets

LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable and other current liabilites
Due to other governmental units
Deferred revenue
Pavable from restricted assels:
Youchers payable and other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term lishilities
MNon-current portion of long-term Habilitics
Accrued interest
Judgements pavable
Long-term linhilities:
Doz within one yvear
Dug in more than one year
Total halmlities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Dieht service

Capital projects

Donor restricted

Orther purposes
Unrestricied

Total net assets

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
February 28, 2003

Primary Government

Governmental Business- Type Component

Activities Activities Total Units
g 239,771,588 b 11,333,850 g 251,105,438 63,383,274
314,039,875 . 314,039,875 =
254,469,665 - 254 469,665 242,505,040
35,052 269 - 35,092 269 -
123,470,226 - 123,470,226 =
27802033 - 27,802,033 -
18,340,692 068,702 18,410,394 112,945,050
1,763,776 (3.647) 1,760,129 -
2427518 211,479 2,638,997 11,722.430
30,763,935 07,716,760 08,480,695 88,739,878
29,902,207 546,786,914 576,689,121 -
- 7,408,845 T.468.845 -
= 22,036,420 22,036,420 -
- (1,760,129) (1,760,129) =
3,950,736 19,030,249 22 980,985 -
18,649 943 28,500,000 47,149 943 -
3,646,239,548 413,687,504 4,059.927,142 16,891,364
6, 184,846,049 777,573,143 6.962,421,192 192,792,148
10,931,531.060 1,892.,652.180 12,824,123.240 730,979,193
167,882,267 1,348,112 109,231,079 122,655,726
3,505,940 1,057,072 4,563,012 -
14,134,608 13,258,807 27,393,415 5
- 39,323,177 39,523,177 -
- 75,380,069 75,380,060 -
- 1,706,343 904 1,706,343, 904 -

21,048,030 - 21,048,030

1LB80.000 - 1,880,000 -
161,757,986 1,726 101,759,712 &306,112
1,772,905 498 431 1,772,965, 920 167,897,197
2,083,175.029 1,836,913 208 3.920,088.327 208,850,035
52689446 230 (240,045,594 Ty £,023,396,282 22668203
139,600,234 82,178,461 221 877,695 -
- 21,309,668 21,300,658 36,011,878
6,805,588 . 6,505,888 362,374
- 189,115,348 180,115,848 -
432 404,670 9,184,852 441.589.531 373,077,703
5 5245356031 5 55,738,882 5 OB904.004.913 432,120,158

See notes to the financial statements.
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ASSETS
Cash and investments:
Cazh and cash equivalents
Pooled cash and investments
Investments
Receivables:
Taxes, net
Accoants
Accrued interest
Other
Due from other funds
Due from other governmental units
Inventories
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments
Note receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Vouchers payable

Acerued payroll and compensated absences

Retainages pavable
Duie to other funds
Duie to other governmental units
Deferred revenue
Other
Judgements payable
Total habilities

Fund balances:

Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Debt service
Advance from Harris County
Imprest fund
Cirant programs

Unreserved:
Designated for capital projects
Designated for HOT debi
Undesignated - general fund

Undesignated - special revenue funds

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Febroary 28, 2003

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
b 3,700,290 S 210,704,086 b 214,404 376
231,606,165 22,433 710 314,039,875
- 236,605,340 236,605,340
28,908,268 6.184,001 35,002,260
3,514,023 £5,919.971 00,433,094
18,275 1,426,420 1. 444,695
14,706,210 - 14,706,910
TT.BE2,162 50,293,375 128,175,537
- 311,783 311,783
- 396,309 596,309
30,763,535 - 30,763,935
29,902,207 - 20.902.207
- 1,921,493 1,921,493
5 421,002,235 5 677390488 % 1,008398.723
§  20967.607 5 57,014,346 5 77,981,953
36,658,963 3,155,561 30 814,524
428,943 15,951,510 16,380,453
8,022 480 88,628,343 97,550,823
B 3428158 3,428,158
32,657,237 19,281,193 51,938,430
165,551 44 863 210,414
1,880,000 - 1,880,000
101,680,781 187,503,974 289,184,755
44,442 686 251,221,535 295,664,221
60,718,915 63,260,232 123,979,147
1 12,000,000 12,000,000
- 50 30
- 6,805,888 805,888
- 58,012,178 58,012,178
- 2.413.825 9413825
214,159,853 214,159,853
B0 178,806 89,178,806
319,321,434 439,892,514 BO0S. 213,068
& 421002235 & 6773096 488 L 098308723

See notes to the financial statements.




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
February 28, 2003

Tatal fund balances for governmental funds 5 809,213,968

Teta] net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of net nssets
is different because:

Copital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Land 5 3399139470
Construction in progress 246,839,118
Infrastructure, net of 53 252,006,229 accumulated depreciation 5,540,200,393
Parks, net of 310,252,277 accumulated depreciation 14,495 464
Flood centrol projects, net of 3117, 140,438 accumulated depreciation 148,155,568
Buildings, net of $217,905,658 accumulated depreciation 410,028918
Equipment and vehicles, net of 598,719,318 accumulated depreciation 60,158,014
Total capital assets 5819016045

Leng-term assets are not recognized in the cumrent period and accordingly
are not reported as fund assets. Balances as-0f February 28, 2003 were:

Motes receivable 16,728,450
Accrued interest receivable 2,190,087
Deferred charges 3,950,736

22869273

Long-term liabilitics applicable to Hamiz County's activities are not

due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund
labilities. Interest on long-term debt is not acerued in governmental funds, but
rather is recognized a5 an expenditure when due. All liabilities - both current
long-term - are reported in the statement ol net assels.

Balances os February 23, 2003 were:

Acerued interest on bonds and loans (21,048,030
Bonds payable (1.451,148,055)
Motes payable (37,605.450)
Capital leascs (31,093,512}
Commercizl paper payvable (335,605,000)
Compensated absences (19,120.234)

(1,895,620,281)

Intemmal service funds are used by the County. The assets and lidbilities
of the intemal service funds are meluded in the governmental activitics in the
Statement of Net Assets. Internal service fund net assets ane; 22001175

Some of the County’s receivables areclassified as long-lerm and therefore
are not reported in the funds, 32,599,085

Some of the County’s revenues will be collécted after year-end but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and
therefore are deferred in the funds. IBATHEOO

Total net assels of governmental activities & BB4R.356,031

See notes o the Anancial statements.




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

REVENUES
Taxes
Charges for services
User fees
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current operating:
Admimstration of justice
Parks
County administration
Health and human services
Flood control
Tax administration
Roads and bridges
Capital outlay
Debi service:
Prineipal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Exvess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from loans
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Other financing sources - prermium
Proceeds from sale of commercial paper
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent
Payment to defease commercial paper
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from capital contributions

Total other Tinancing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balances, beginning
Residual equity transfer in
Fund balances, ending

See notes to the financial statements.

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
3 032,048 9R2 5 126,481,252 759430234
165,127,271 3,205,423 168,332 604
4,163,804 - 4,163,804
22619018 - 22,619,018
27,655,654 166,303,700 193,959,363
5,590,993 8457147 15,048,140
38,379,229 12,303,863 50,683,092
Q00,484,951 316,751,394 1.217.236.345
470,595,281 50,175,679 520,770,960
32,423 367 379,592 32,802,959
163,193,366 06,654,293 259,847 659
83,041,646 37,969,100 141,010,746
- 39,394,813 39304 213
28,126,381 579,853 28,706,234
31,403,213 4, 809,057 56,212,310
29,373,802 205,959,781 235,333,583
16,135,000 20 8B4 644 46,019,644
39993789 40 141,390 89,135,179
914,285,845 534 948,242 1,449.234 087
(13,800.894) {218,196,848) {231,997.742)
LG8, 843,655 34 886755 203,730,410
(F56,571.422) (29,201,244) {185,772 666)
- 15,671,433 15.671:433
316,041,053 163,950,992 470,097 (45
6,175,261 4122748 10,293,009
- 178,873,000 178,873,000
(111,625,386) (46,086,870) (157, 712.256)
{209,000,000) - {209,000.000)
3444 802 453,602 4,898 494
= 4,555,906 4,555,906
17,307,963 328,226412 345,534 375
3,507,069 110,029,564 113,536,632
315,814,385 A73,048.395 688, 862,780
- &.814,555 6,814,555
$ 319371 454 5 4R9E02314 E09. 213,968




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
February 28, 2003

Met change m fund balances - total povermmental funds 13 113,536,633

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the stilement of activitics
the cost nt‘ﬂ-ncs:_ aasets is allocated over their cstimated useful lives and reperted as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital sxpenditures in the current period. (177628771

Capital asset donations 202,857,671

[rebt procecds are reported as financing sources T governmental funds and thus contribute to the
change in fund balance. In the statement of net assets, however, issuing debt increases long-term
liakilities and does not aflect the statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an
expenditure in the governmental finds but reduces the lability in the statement of net assets.

Dot izsued:
Refunding bonds S(479,992,045)
Bond premioms (L0208, D04
Commercial paper {174,873,000)
Loans (15,671,433}
Repayments:
To paying agent for bond principal 46,019 644
To refunding bond escrom agen 157,712,256
Drefeasance of commercial paper 209,000,000
Capital lease principal 1,238 64l
Refimnding interest expense (1.684.207)
Met adjustment (272,545, 134)

Linder the modified accrual basis of sccounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures are

not recognized for transactions that @re not normally paid with expendable available firancial resources.
In the statement of activities, however, which 15 presented on the accrual basiz, expenses and

[1abilities are reported regardless of when financial resources are available. In addition, interest on
long-termy debt is not recognized under the modified acerual basis of accounting until due, rther as

it accres, This adjusiment combines the et changes of 8 bakinces,

Compensated ahschces (1,714.246)
Judgements payable 300,000
Amottiztion of debt premium (8,322.266)
Accretion of capital apprecistion bond interest 2273252
Amortization of advanced refunding difference (418.314)
Accrued interest on debt 390,526
Amortization of deferred charges {181 45)
Capitalization of deferred charges 4,132,235
Combined adjustment (3,5340,312)

Internal service funds are used by the Cownty, The net revenue of the internal service funds are
reporied with governmental activities, 119,713

Some of the County's receivables are classified as long-term and therefore the net of revenue and
bad debt expense associated with these receivables are not reported in the funds, {1 BO4.556)

Because some revenues will not-be collected for several months after the County's fiscal year end,
they are not considered "available” revenues and are deferred in the governmental funds. Dieferred

revenues decréased by this amount in the current period (4,723,598)
The net effect of sales involving capital assets is to decrease net assets. [6,246,330)
Change m net assets of governmental achiviiies £ fiﬁﬂ,ﬁﬁz,?-ﬂ-ﬁ::l

See notes o the Ninancial staitements




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
February 28, 2003
Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor Internal
Entérprise Service
Toll Road Funis Total Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - g 11,333,850 £ 11,333,850 25,367,212
Investments - - - 17,864,325
Recoivables - 68,702 68,702 437,147
Inventories, prepaids and other assets - 211,479 211,479 1831209
[Due from other funds = = r 2281537
Restricted azsets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 67,716,760 = 67,716,760 .
Investrments 546,786,914 - 546,786,914 -
Feceivables, net 7.468,845 - 7468845
Dwe from other funds 635,875 - 035,875
Note recoivable 28,500,000 - 28,500,000
Prepaid and other assets 22036420 - 22036420 -
Total current assets 673,144 514 10,614,031 654,758 845 47,781,420
Noncurrent agsets:
Deferred charges, net of amortization 19,030,249 19,030,249
Capital assets:
Land, improvements, and construchon in progress 409,723,500 3,963,508 413,687,504 260,960
Oither capital assets, net of depreciation 771850005 5,625,138 TITA75,143 11,807 692
Total noncurrent assets 1.200,704., 250 9,588,736 1,210,292 986 12,068,652
Total assets 1,873.849.064 21202 767 1.8495,051,831 S9.850.072
LIABILITIES
Current liabilitics:
Youchers payable - 822,085 B22.085 %310,853
Accrucd payroll and compensated absences - 11,155 11,185 402,693
Estimated cutstanding claims - - . 16,723,003
Incurred but not reported claims - - . 5065123
Customer deposits and other < 514,842 514,842 1,093,862
Due to other funds 2,394,004 3,647 2,399,651 1,729,997
Due to other units - 1,057,072 1057072 -
Deferred revenue 13240616 18,191 13,258,807 ST2.044
Current portion of long-term labilities - 1,726 1,726 120,986
Payable from restricted assets:
Wouchers payahle and sceneed liabilities 21,583,634 22583634
Accrued payroll and compensated absences 1108120 - I, 108,120 -
Retainage payable 5,241,189 - 5,241,189 =
Customer deposils 10,590,234 - 105590234 -
Current portion of long-term liabilines F3.380,069 - 75,380,069 -
Toatal current habilites 130,539,366 ZAIR 748 132.908,614 37.B18,651
Moncurrent liabilittes
Moncurrent portion of long-term labifites - 431 431 30,247
Moncurrent portion of long-term Habilites
from restricted assets 1,706,343 904 - 1,706,343,004 -
Totzl noncurrent lizbilities 1,706,243,904 431 1.706,344,335 33,247
Total hahilities 1.836,883,770 2439179 1,839.312.949 37,548 898
NET ASSETS
Invested in'capital assets, net of related debt (255,638,083) 9.388.736 (246,049.947) 12,068,652
Restricted for:
Capital projects 21,309,668 - 21,309,668 B
[rcht service B2 178461 - 22178461 -
Other purpeses 180, 115848 LB0. 115,848 -
LInrestricied - 9,154,852 9184852 9,932,523
Total net asseis 5 36965294 5 18,773,588 5 35,738,882 220,175

Sec-notesto the financial statements:




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

Operating Revenues:
Toll revenues
Lease revenue
Charges for services
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries
Services and fees
Utilities
Administration
Materials and supplies
Transportation and travel
Incurred claims
Estimated claims
Reinsurance premiums
Cost of goods sold
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest revenue
Interest expense
Lass on disposal of capital assets
Amaorlization expense
Bad debt expense
Refunds and recoveries
Other nonoperating revenue
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Net income (loss) before operating transfers

Contributions

Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out
Change in net assets

Net assets (deficit), beginning
Net assets, ending

Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Service
Toll Road Funds Total Funds

§ 244.170,745 - 5 244.170,745 -
- = - % 6,564,187

- 3 5,001,710 5,901,710 105,629,575
244,170,745 5901710 250,072,455 112,193,762
20,457,289 345866 20,803,255 -
25,066,081 1,618,541 26,684 622 -
1,193,174 234,514 1,427,688 -

- 1,044,763 1,044,763 13,935,220

1,321,222 562,907 1,884,129 -
209,431 - 209,431 =

- - - 96,934 953
- - - (2,343,559

= - 3 691,083

- 2,695,854 2,695,854 3,521,072
42,375,509 234,753 42,610,262 3.028.520
90,712,706 6,737,208 97,450,004 115,767,289
153,458,029 {835,588) 152,622,451 (3,573,527)
15,928,241 338,572 16,266,813 £16,196
(88,161,087) - (8B;161,087) -
(100,033 {19,754) (119,787) {106,005)
(911,022) - (911,022) -
(942,683} - (942,683) -

- - - 520,879

124,163 - 124,163 362,169
(74,062,421) 318,818 (73,743.603) 1,593,229
79,395,618 (316,770) 78,878,848 (1,980,288)
3,048,100 - 5,045,100 -
= - - 4, 300,000
{20,0357,744) - {20,057,744) (2,200,000)
64,385,974 (516,770) 63,869,204 119,712
(27.420.680) 19,290,358 (8,130,322} 21 881 463
3 36965294 §F 1B773.588 % 55738882 5 22001175

See notes to the financial statements,



HARRIS COLNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
HKecerpts from customer
Payment to empioyees
Payment to vendors
Internal activity - net payments to-ofher funds
UOher receiplts (pavments)

Net cash provided by (used for) opersting activities

Cash Flows From Non Capital Financing Activities:
Loan to FT Bend County
Operating transfer to other funds

Met cash used for non capital financing activitics

Cash Flows From Capital Financing Activities:
Purchases of capital asset
Principal paad on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Proceeds from capital debt
Other payments

et citsh used for capital financing activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments
Interest received

Met cash provided by (used for) mvesting activitics

Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provide by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Operating income {Joss)
Adjusiment 1 reconcile opereting income (loss)
to met cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Other nonopemating revenues {expenses)
Change in-current assets and liabilitics:
Receivibles, net
Prepaids and other assets
Vouchers payable and accruad liahilities
Due 1o ather funds
Other lizbilities
Retainage payable
Compensatory time payable

Met cash provided by (used for} operating activities

Non-Cash Operating, Capital and Related Financing,
And Investing Activitics
Capital contributions received from-othes governments
Inerease (decrease) 1 the fair market value of investments

Enterprise Funds

Monmajor Internal

Enterprise Service

Toll Road Funds Total Funds
5 239.263,707 5 5968641 5 245232348 5 113350805
(20.655,856) (344,733) (21.030.589) (6,163,510}
(14,2585,145) (5,830,811 {20.116,956) (98,923,310)
2,381,420 - 2,381,420 1,573,745
(82,928) (113,655) (206,581 ) {6,190, 245)
206,580,194 (320,558) 206,250,640 3,648,485
(5. C00.000) - { 15,0400, (H0) =
[20.057,744) - (20,057,744) 2,100,000
(35.057,744) 3 {20,057,744) 2,100,000
(154,335,178) [295456) (154,630,634} (6,296,623)
(333,177,001) - (333,177.091) :
(84,634,236} - (84,654.236) =
52T 458,168 - 527 454,168 -
{4,061, 290% - (4,061,290 -
(48,769,627} {295,456) (49,065 083) {6.296,623)
(683, 283,000) - (B83.583,990) {18, 147,168)
62,698,061 - G2 698 061 14,9649 252
19,430,303 338,571 19,768,874 794,520
(61,755,626) 338,571 {61417,055) {2,383,306)
60,997,201 (277.443) 60,719,758 (2,931,514)
6,719,559 11,611,293 18,330,852 28,298,746
F 67716760 8 11333850 2§ 70050610 25 25367712
5 153458039 % {835.588) & 1s52,622.451 £ (357350
42,375 504 234,753 42,610,262 3,028,520
(B18.520) - (318.520) BE3.048
(3035617 66,931 (3.868,686) 2738711
(4,914,940 20,389 (4,899,551 195,002
8,304,036 341,618 £.905,654 498,509
2,352,682 = 1,352,682 z
4,702,849 (148851 4,553 968 (121,778)
4,753,759 - 4,753,739 =
47,401 2200 27,621 =
§ 206580,195 S (320,558) § 206239640 % 3,648 485
5 5048, 100 5 - % 5,048,100 -3 =
(3,450,938) - (3,450,938 21675

Sae notes tothe fnancizl statements.




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
February 28, 2003

AGENCY
ASSETS FUNDS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 69,784,460
Pooled Cash and Investments 63,718,756
Investments 139,785,460
Accounts receivable 6,200
Accrued interest receivable 994.263
Due from other funds 71,782
TOTAL ASSETS £ 274,367,621
LIABILITIES
Dze to other funds § 27490250
Diee to other governments 246,877,371
TOTAL LIABILITIES Mﬁ?_l

See notes to the financial statements.




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - COMPONENT UNITS
FEBRUARY 28, 2003

Mental Health

Mental Retardation  Harris County Nonmajor
Authority of Hospital Component
Harris County District Units Taotal
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents S 8,456,314 § 56,319,000 £ 607960 £ 65383274
Investments, including acerued interest - 236,768,000 5,737,040 242 505,040
Other receivables 10,261,902 101,937,000 746,148 112,945,050
Inventories 501,793 4,934,000 - 5,455,793
Restricted cash and investmernis 9,578 88,730,000 - 88,730,878
Capital assets, net 31,254,512 178,429 000 - 200,683,512
Other 171,740 5,730,000 364,906 6.266,646
Total assels 30,656,139 672,867,000 7456054 730,979,193
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities 8724102 71,305,000 78,624 80,107,726
Accrued interest pavable - 431,000 - 431,000
MNoncurrent liabilities: .
Due within one year 1,803,112 6,503,000 - 8,306,112
Due in more than one year 19,256,197 148,641,000 - 167,897,197
Other - 42.117.000 - 42,117.000
Total lizbilities 20,783,411 268,997,000 78,624 298,859,035
NET ASSETS:
[nvested in capital asscts, net of related debt 10,195,203 12,473,000 - 22,668,203
Restricted for:
Capital projects 0,878 36,002,000 - 35,011,878
Donor restrictions 362,374 - = 362,374
Unrestricted net assets 10,305,273 355,355,000 7,377.430 373,077,703
Total net assets £ 20,872,728 £ 403,870,000 § 7.377.430 5§ 432,120,158

Sec notes to the financial statementsz.




Expenses

Program revenuss:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants; contributions and other
Tatal program revenues

Net (expenses) program revenues

General revenues (cxpenses):
Investment income
Other federal and state aid
Other

Nt general revenues (expenses)
Change in net assets

Met Assets--Bemnning

Met Assets--Ending

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS

For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

Mental Health

Mental Retardation Harris County Nonmajor
Authority of Huospital Component
Harris County District Units Total
5 145,921,595 5 B, 297, (00 270,649 b 812,489,244
25442060 220,317,000 1,149,592 246,909,552
90,672,709 99,245 000 - 198.917,709
9,334 76,180,000 - 76,970,334
125,906,003 395,742,000 1,145,592 522,797,595
(20.015,592) (270,555,000) 878,943 (289,601 640)
368,671 11,658,000 7,609 12,034,280
1,048,107 . - 1,048,107
15,568,210 334,780,000 (176.519) 350,571,691
17,384,988 346.438,.000 (168.910) 363,654,078
(2,630.604) 75,883,000 710,033 73,562,429
23,503,332 327 987,000 6,667,397 358,157,729
5 20,872,728 8 403,870,000 TATT 430§ 432120158

See notes to the financial staterments.




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
February 28, 2003

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Harris County, Texas ("County") have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") in the United States of America for local
governmental units. The Govemmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The most significant accounting and reporting policies of the County are described in the following
notes to the financial statements.

A, REPORTING ENTITY

The County is a public corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Texas. The County
i1s governed by Commissioners Court, composed of four County Commissioners and the County
Judge, all of whom are elected officials.

The County provides a vast array of services which include public safety, administration of
justice, health and human services, culture and recreation services, public improvements, flood
control and general administration.

As required by GAAP, the financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the
County (the primary government) and its component units in conformity with GASB Statement
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity (“GASB 147), which supersedes all previous
pronouncements issued by GASB and the National Council of Governmental Accounting
("NCGA") for defining the reporting entity.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, a financial reporting entity consists of the primary
government and its component units. Component units are legally separate organizations for
which the elected officials of the County are financially accountable, or the relationship to the
County is such that exclusion would cause the County’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part
of the County’s operations, and so data from these units are combined with data of the County.
Each discretely presented component unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate column
under the component unit total column on the combined statements to emphasize that it is
legally separate from the government.

The criteria used to determine whether an organization is a component unit of the County and
whether it is a discretely or a blended component unit includes: financial accountability of
Harris County for the component unit, appointment of a voling majority, ability to impose the
County’s will on the component unit, fiscal dependency criterion, and whether there is a
financial benefit to or burden to the County.

Blended Component Units. For financial reporting purposes, the Harris County Flood Control
District, the Hamris County Juvenile Board and the Harris County Sports & Convention
Corporation are included in the operations and activities of the County as blended component



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
February 28, 2003

umts.

Harris County Flood Control District (“Flood Control District”™). The Flood Control District
provides program, policies and flood control issues to protect homes and businesses from the
hazards of flooding and facilitate economic development. The County prepares and approves the
budget, sets the tax rate and approves all bond issuance of the Flood Control District. The criteria
used to include the Flood Control District as a blended component unit of the County include:
the County appoints a voting majority of the Flood Control District’s govemning body, the
County is able to impose its will on the Flood Control District, and the County’s and the Flood
Control District’s governing bodies are substantially the same.

Harris County Juvenile Board (“Juvenile Board”). The Juvenile Board monitors all of the
department’s programs, institutional services, and residential placement facilities. It also sets
administrative policies and approves the department’s annual budget prior to submission to
Commissioners Court. The County has ministerial approval rights over the Juvenile Board
budget. The criteria used to include the Juvenile Board as blended component unit of the County
include: fiscal dependency and that the Juvenile Board provides services entirely to the County.

Harms County Sports & Convention Corporation (*Sports and Convention Corporation™). The
Sports and Convention Corporation was formed to aid and act on behalf of the County in the
managing, operation, maintenance and development of the Reliant Park complex. The criteria
used to include the Sports & Convention Corporation as a blended component unit of the County
include: the County appoints a voting majority of the Sports & Convention Corporation’s
governing body, the County is able to impose its will on the Sports & Convention Corporation
through the approval of the Corporation’s annual budget, provision of funding to the
Corporation, and the rights to any surpluses of the Corporation, and the County’s and the Sports
& Convention Corporation’s governing bodies are substantially the same.

Discretely Presented Component Units. The component unit columns in the combined
financial statements include the financial data of the County’s several other component units.
These units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
County.

Harris County Hospital District (“Hospital District”™). The Hospital District provides medical,
dental and hospital care for Harris County’s indigent and needy. The criteria used to determine
inclusion as a discretely presented component unit are: members of the governing board of the
Hospital District are appointed by Commissioners Court, Commissioners Court approves the
Hospital District's tax rate and annual budget but does not provide any funding or hold title to
any of the Hospital District's assets, and the Hospital District cannot issue bonded debt without
Commussioners Court approval. Complete financial statements may be obtained from:




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
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February 28, 2003

Chief Financial Officer — Clifford J. Bottoms
Harris County Hospital District
2500 First City Tower
Houston, Texas 77002

Harris County Housing Finance Corporation (“Housing Finance Corporation”). The Housing

Finance Corporation is exempt from federal income tax and is authorized to issue debt
instruments for the purpose of purchasing single family home mortgages and providing financing
for multifamily projects, both relating to low and moderate income residents. The criterion used
to determine the Housing Finance Corporation’s inclusion as a discretely presented component
unit is based on the Housing Finance Corporation’s fiscal dependency on the County, as
Commissioners Court must approve all bond issuance and members of the governing bodies are
all appointed by Commissioners Court. The Housing Finance Corporation was created by
Commissioners Court but is not a political subdivision of Harris County under state law. The
Housing Finance Corporation is authorized to issue debt instruments without approval from the
County. Services provided by the Housing Finance Corporation are to the citizenry and not to
the County. Complete financial statements may be obtained from:

Board President — Jerold E. Redmon
Harris County Housing Finance Corporation
1001 Fannin, Suite 2300
Houston, Texas 77002-6760

Mental Health and Mental Retardation Authority (“MHMRA") of Harris County. The MHMRA

is a public agency providing services for residents of the County who do not require long-term
institutional mental health care. The criteria used to determine inclusion as a discretely presented
component unit are: members of the governing Board of Directors are appointed by
Commussioners Court and the County approves the MHMRA's budget, but does not hold title to
any of the MHMRA's assets. MHMRA can issue bonded debt without approval from the
County. Complete financial stalements may be obtained from:

Chief Financial Officer — David Witt
MHMRA
7011 Southwest Freeway
Houston, TX 77074

Harris County Industrial Development Corporation (“Industrial Development Corporation™).
The Industrial Development Corporation provides financing through the issuance of municipal
bonds for qualified manufacturing and certain other facilities located in the County. The
criteria used to determine inclusion as a discretely presented component unit are: members of
the governing body are appointed by Commissioners Court and the Industrial Development
Corporation has the authority to issue bonded debt, which must be approved by
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Commissioners Court, however, the County has no obligation to assume the bonded debt. In
addition, the Industrial Development Corporation does not provide services to the County.
Complete financial statements may be obtained from:

Board President — Robert L. Silvers
Fulbright & Jaworski, L.L.P.
1301 McKinney, Suite 5100
Houston, Texas 77010-3095

Condensed Financial Statements. Condensed financial statements of each discretely presented

component unit discussed above are presented. The fiscal year-ends for the discretely presented
component units are as follows:

2 Harris County Hospital District: February 28, 2003

. Harris County Housing Finance Corporation: December 31, 2002

° Mental Health and Mental Retardation Authority of Harris County: August 31, 2002
. Harris County Industrial Development Corporation: August 31, 2002

. RELATED ORGANIZATIONS AND JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

Related organizations and jointly governed organizations provide services within the County that
are administered by separate boards or commissions, but the County is not financially
accountable, and such organizations are therefore not component units of the County, even
though Commissioners Court may appoint a voting majority of an organization's board.
Consequently, financial information for the following entities is not included within the scope of
these financial statements.

Related Organizations. Related organizations subject lo judicial orders of the district judges of
the State of Texas include the Judicial District Trust Fund.

Jointly Governed Organizations. The County is a participant in jointly governed organizations.
Commissioners Court appoints two of seven board members of the Port of Houston Authority;
four of thirty-seven board members of the Gulf Coast Community Services Association; three of
sixteen board members of the Harris-Galveston Coastal Subsidence District; two of thirty-three
board members of the Houston-Galveston Area Council: two of nine board members of the
Metropolitan Transit Authority of Harris County; six of thirteen board members of the
Houston/Harris County Sports Authority, and the chairman is appointed jointly by Harris County
and the City of Houston; and two of eighteen board members of the Children’s Assessment
Center Foundation, Inc.
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During fiscal year 2003, the County disbursed the following amounts to these organizations:
$26,608 to the Port of Houston Authority, $6,133 to the Houston-Galveston Coastal Subsidence
District, $291,156 to the Metropolitan Transit Authority of Harris County and $26,773 to the
Children’s Assessment Center Foundation. The County also collected $6.397.000 from the
Metropolitan Transit Authonity of Harris County.

. IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW STANDARDS

In the current year, the County implemented the following new standards:

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis for State and Local Governments (“GASB 347), establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards for state and local governments in order to enhance the understandability and
usefulness of the financial reports to citizenry, legislative and oversight bodies, and investors and
creditors.

GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis for State and Local Governments: Omnibus and Amendment of GASB Statements No.
21 and No. 34, revises the escheat reporting requirements, limits the topics discussed in MD&A,
eliminates capitalization of construction-period interest requirement on capital assets used in
government activities, and further clarifies provisions of GASB 34.

GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures, modifies, establishes,
and rescinds certain financial statement disclosure requirements.

The GASB determined that fund accounting has and will continue to be essential in helping
governments to achieve fiscal accountability and should, therefore, be retained. The GASB also
determined that government-wide financial statements are needed to allow users of financial
reports to assess a government’s operational accountability. The new GASB model integrates
fund-based financial reporting and government-wide financial reporting as complementary
components of a single comprehensive financial reporting model.

The implementation of these standards had the following impact in the accompanying financial
statements:

— Presentation of MD&A

— Presentation and classification of net assets

— Reporting certain additional footnote disclosures.

The following table shows beginning net assets — governmental activities - restated for the
effects of the implementation of GASB 34:
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Fund balance, March 1, 2002, as previously reported § 688,862,780

Residual equity transfer in 6,814,555
Net capital assets 9.809,028,868
Deferred revenues 42 999464
Long-term receivabie 42 842 657
Interest payable (19,248,469)
Long-term debt (1,594,142 543)
Internal service funds net assets 21,881,463
Met assets, March 1, 2002, full acerual $ 8,999.038,775

D. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION, MEASUREMENT Focus AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Government-wide Statements

Government wide financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Activities. These statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity
has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the
primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for
which the primary government is financially accountable.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus.
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of the timing of cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Fines and forfeitures are recognized when they have been assessed and
adjudicated and earned. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The Statement of Activities demonsirates the degree to which the direct expenses of the
County’s programs are offset by those programs’ revenues. Program revenues include 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by the program and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational and/or capital requirements of a particular program. Program revenues include
those generated from admimstration of justice, parks, County administration, health and human
services, flood control, tax administration, and roads and bridges. Taxes and other items not
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. In miscellaneous
general revenues are non program specific contributions including capital asset contributions.
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Agency funds are excluded in the government-wide presentation of the financial statements,

Fund-level Statements

All governmental funds and agency funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual
(i.e., when they become both measurable and available). "Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and “"available” means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The County considers
property taxes and other revenues as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on
governmental long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have
been accumulated in the debt service fund for payments to be made early in the following year.
Grant and entitlement revenues are also susceptible to accrual. Encumbrances are used during
the year and any unliquidated items are reported at vear-end as a reservation of fund balance.
These funds are accounted for on a spending "financial flow" measurement focus. This means
that only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets.
Their reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a measure of "available spendable
resources.” (Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.
Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of "available spendable
resources” during a period. The Agency funds are custodial in nature and involve no
measurement of results of operations

All proprietary funds, including the enterprise fund and internal service funds, are accounted for
using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when eamed, and expenses
when they are incurred. Claims incurred but not reported are included in payables and expenses.
These funds are accounted for using a cost of service or "capital maintenance" measurement
focus. This means that all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with
their activity are included in the funds’ balance sheets.

The accounts of the County are organized and operated on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues
and expenditures/expenses. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based on the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activitics are controlled.

Funds are classified into three categories: Governmental, Proprietary and Fiduciary. The County
reports the following major funds:

GOVERNMENTAL Funns: Used to account for all or most of a government's general activity.

General Fund - used to account for the general operations of the County and limited-tax
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permanent improvement debt service of the County.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS: Used to account for operations that are financed in a manner similar to
those in the private sector, where the determination of net income is appropriate for sound
financial administration.

Toll Road Enterprise Fund - used to account for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of
County toll roads. These facilities are financed primarily through user charges.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds - used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by
one department or agency of the County to other County departments or agencies on a cost
reimbursement basis. The County reports five internal service funds: 1) Vehicle Maintenance —
to account for the County’s vehicle maintenance department financed through user charges, 2)
Storeroom Supply — to account for the County’s purchasing storeroom supply financed through
user charges, 3) Radio Operations — to account for the operation of County radios, 4) Inmate
Industries — to account for operation of the printing shop provided by inmates to County
departments, and 5) Risk Management — to account for the County’s workers’ compensation,
health insurance and other risk management activities.

Agency Funds — used to account for assets held by the County as an agent on behalf of a third
party. The County reports nine agency funds held for various third parties outside the primary
govemment.

The County and its Component Units apply all GASB pronouncements as well as the Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") pronouncements issued on or before November 30,
1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, to
proprietary funds, under the provision of GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting.

Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing goods
in connection with the proprietary fund’s principal operations. The principal operating revenues
of the Subscriber Access and Parking Facilities Enterprise Funds are user fees. Operating
revenues of the Sheriff’s Commissary Enterprise Fund are comprised of sales revenue from the
sale of items to inmates. Toll Road Enterprise Fund operating revenues consist of fees assessed
each time a vehicle passes through a toll station on the County’s toll roads. Operating revenues
in the Internal Service Funds consist primarily of charges to the various County departments,
plus lease revenue reported in the Vehicle Maintenance and Radio Operations Funds.
Operating expenses in the enterprise and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, incurred and estimated claims and reinsurance, utilities, travel
and transportation, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
these definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources to the extent they are needed.

“. BUDGETS

Harris County adheres to the following procedures in its consideration and adoption of its annual
operating budget:

Departmental annual budget requests are submitted by the Department or Agency Head to the
County Budget Officer during the third quarter of the fiscal year for the upcoming fiscal year
to begin March 1.

The County Auditor prepares an estimate of available resources for the upcoming fiscal year.

The County Budget Officer prepares the proposed annual operating budget to be presented to
the Commissioners Court for their consideration. The budget represents the financial plan for
the new fiscal year.

Public hearings are held on the proposed budget.

The Commussioners Court must adopt an annual operating budget by a majority vote of the
Commissioners Court before April 1. The adopted budget must be balanced; that is, available
resources must be sufficient to support annual appropriations.

The department is the legal level of budgetary control. Commissioners Court approval is
necessary to transfer appropriations between departments. Transfers may not increase the
total budget.

The Commuissioners Court may approve expenditures as an amendment to the budget in an
emergency situation that could not have been foreseen at the time the original budget was
approved.

The Commissioners Court may adopt a supplemental budget for the limited purpose of
spending proceeds of the sale of bonds or other obligations to be issued against future
revenues and public or private grant or aid money for its intended purpose.

The County Auditor shall certify to the Commissioners Court the receipt of all public or
private grant or aid money that is available for disbursement in a fiscal year, but not included
in the budget for the fiscal year. During fiscal year 2002-2003, there was $352,514,983 in
General Fund supplemental budgets adopted by the Commissioners Court.

Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds (except
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Grant Funds), and Debt Service Funds, The budget for the Grants Special Revenue fund is
established pursuant to grant awards. The amounts shown above for Other Governmental
Funds represents all nonmajor governmental funds, including Capital Projects funds, which
are established on a project basis.

* Appropriations lapse at year-end for all funds except Grants Special Revenue and Capital
Project Funds.

* Budgets are prepared on a cash basis (budget basis) which differs from GAAP basis.
A reconciliation of revenues and expenditures on a cash basis (budgetary basis) compared to

modified accrual basis (GAAP) is presented in the Notes to Required Supplementary
Information.

", RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain assets of the County’s General Fund are classified as restricted assets because their use is
restricted for a specific purpose contract or state statute. The County uses the General Fund to
account for the debt service on bonds issued for permanent improvement purposes. The County
also uses the General Fund to account for bank accounts maintained by the Juvenile Probation
and to account for seized assets in the custody of the District Attorney.

All of the Toll Road Enterprise Fund's assets, except deferred charges and net property, are
classified as restricted assets because their use is completely restricted by bond indentures.

. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term
investments with a maturity date of 90 days or less from date of purchase. Pooled cash and
investments includes cash that has been pooled within the County for investment purposes and
the investments are maintained at the pool rather than the individual fund level. Investments are
stated at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices, in accordance with GASE Statement
No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Invesiments and for External
Investment Pools.

. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

During the course of normal operations, the County has many transactions between funds. The
accompanying Fund Level financial statements reflect as transfers the expenditures and transfers
of resources to provide services, construct assets and meet debt service requirements. The effect
of interfund activity has been eliminated in the Government-wide financial statements, except
for transactions between governmental and business-type activities.
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INVENTORY
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market value, using the first-in, first-out method for
proprietary fund types. Purchases of inventories for governmental funds are recorded as

expenditures when purchased in the governmental fund financial statements.

PREPAIDS AND OTHER ASSETS

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
reported as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund level financial statements.

DEFERRED CHARGES AND PREMIUMS (DISCOUNTS) ON BONDS PAYABLE

Deferred charges consist of bond issuance costs of the Toll Road Project bonds. Such costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the bonds. Premiums (discounts) on bonds
payable are amortized using the effective interest method over the term of the bonds.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Capital assets include land, land improvements, buildings and building improvements, park
improvements and facilities, equipment, machinery, vehicles, other tangible and intangible
assets, easements, works of art and historical treasures, infrastructure that are used in the
County’s operations and benefit more than a single fiscal year. Infrastructure assets are long-
lived assets that are generally stationary in nature and can typically be preserved for a
significantly greater number of vears than other capital assets. Infrastructure assets of the
County include roads, bridges, flood control facilities, lighting, storm sewers, and tunnels.

Capital assets of the County are defined as assets with individual costs of $5,000 or more and
estimated useful lives in excess of one year. Exceptions to the $5,000 capitalization threshold
are as follows: it is the County’s policy to capitalize all land, easements, and works of art and
historical treasures, regardless of the historical cost. The threshold for capitalizing land
improvements, buildings and building improvements and park improvements is $100,000. The
capitalization threshold for infrastructure ranges from $25,000 to $250,000, depending on the
type of infrastructure asset.

All capital assets are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost 1s not
available. Donated fixed assets are stated at their estimated fair value on the date donated.

It is the County’s policy not to capitalize interest on construction for capital assets reported in the
governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements. The Toll Road Enterprise
Fund capitalizes, as a cost of its constructed property, the interest expense and certain other costs
of bonds issued for construction purposes less the interest eamed on the proceeds of those bonds
from the date of the borrowing until the date the property is ready for use. During fiscal year
2003, 52,049,534 of interest expense was capitalized.
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Capital assets are depreciated in the government-wide financial statements using the straight-line
method over the following useful lives:

Asset Years

Land improvements 20
Buildings 45
Park improvements 30
Equipment 3-20
Machinery 15
Vehicles 4-15
Animals 7
Other tangible assets 5
Computer software 5
Infrastructure:

Bridges 40

Flood control channels  25-75

Roads 20-50

Lighting 20

Storm sewers 30-75

Tunnels 40
Exhaustible works of art
and historical treasures 10

M. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Accumulated compensatory leave, vacation and sick leave expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported as expenditures in the respective
govemmental funds. Accumulated compensated absences not expected to be liquidated with
expendable available resources are reported as long-term liabilities in the governmental activities
column of the government-wide Statement of Activities. The majority of these have typically
been liquidated from the General Fund in previous years. Accumulated compensated absences
of Proprictary Funds are recorded as an expense and liability in the respective fund and the
business-type activities column of the government-wide Statement of Activities as the benefit
accrues for the employee.

Employees are allowed to accrue 9.75 days of sick leave per year. Sick leave benefits are
recognized as expenditures as they are used by the employees. Employees may accumulate up to
480 hours of sick leave, Unused sick leave benefits are not paid at termination. Employees with
more than one year of service acerue from two to four weeks vacation per year, depending on
vears of service. Unused vacation benefits lapse at calendar year-end or upon termination except
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for exempt employees who may convert such benefits to compensatory time, subject to a 240
hour maximum.

Non-exempt employees earn compensatory time at one and one-half times their full rate of pay
times the excess of 40 hours per week worked. The compensatory time balance for non-exempt
employees may not exceed 240 hours. Hours in excess of the 240 hour maximum must be paid
to the non-exempt employee at the rate of one and a half times the regular rate. Upon
termination, non-exempt employees will be paid for compensatory time at their wage rate at time
of termination. Exempt employees earn compensatory time at their regular rate of pay for hours
worked i excess of 40 hours a week. Exempt employees can accumulate up to 240 hours of
compensatory time. Upon termination, exempt employees are paid one-half of the compensatory
time earned at the wage rate at time of termination. Compensatory time is carried forward
indefinitely.

. STATEMENT OF CAsH FLOWS

For purposes of cash flows, the County considers cash equivalents to include all highly liquid
investments (including restricted) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

. DEFERRED CHARGES

The difference between the reacquired price and net carrying amount of old debt incurred due to
a bond refunding transaction is deferred and amortized in a manner that is systematic and
rational over the remaining life of the old or new debt, whichever is shorter.

LISE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

). COMPONENT UNIT TAX REVENUES

The Hospital District is partially financed by property tax levies (recorded as operating
revenues), and partially financed by user charges, the usual revenue source for a proprietary fund
activity, However, because of the unique character of services provided by the Hospital District,
proprietary fund accounting is necessary to provide meaningful measurement of cost of services
of the Hospital District.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
CounTy

All investments are recorded at fair value based upon quoted market prices as of February 28, 2003,
with the difference between the purchase price and market price being recorded as interest income.

State statutes authorize the County to invest in fully collateralized or insured time deposits, direct
debt securities of the United States or its Agencies, investment grade commercial paper, money
market mutual funds and fully collateralized repurchase agreements. County policy requires that
repurchase agreements be purchased under a master repurchase agreement which specifies the rights
and obligations of both parties and requires that the securities involved in the transaction be held in a
safekeeping account subject to the control and custody of the County.

The margin requirement for all repurchase agreements is that market value must be at least 101% of
the purchase price. Investments in repurchase agreements may be made only through a primary
government securities dealer, as defined by the Federal Reserve, or a bank domiciled in the State of
Texas with which the County has signed a master repurchase agreement.

The Harnis County Sports & Convention Corporation (the “Corporation™), a blended component unit
of the County, learned through the year-end closing process that the investment made during the
fiscal year ended February 28, 2003 of $12 million in the Sports Authority’s Subordinate Lien Notes
Series 2001 C-1 and Series 2001 C-2 were not in compliance with Chapter 2256 of the Texas
Government Code, the Public Investment Act (the “Act”), because the notes did not receive a rating
from at least one nationally recognized investment rating firm. In addition, the Corporation did not
have a written investment policy in place as required under the Act.

Deposits: At February 28, 2003, the carrying amount of the County's demand and time deposits was
$17.363.354. The bank balance of § 33,612,064 was covered by federal depository insurance or
collateralized with securities held by the County’s agent in the County's name.

Investments: The County's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of
nsk, with Category 1 being the lowest level of risk to Category 3 being the highest level of risk.
Investments are included in the credit risk categories as follows:

» Category 1: Investments that are insured or registered or for which the secunities are held by the
County or its agent in the County's name.

* Category 2: Uninsured and unregistered investments, with securities held by the County's
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the County's name.

« Category 3: Uninsured and unregistered investments, with securities held by the County's
counterparty, or by 1its trust department or agent, but not in the County's name.
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Shown below are the County's investments by risk category as of February 28, 2003.

Categories

1 2 3 Fair Value
U.5. Govemment Securities S1.224.186032  § 25870932 - 3 1.250,056,964
Commercial Paper 235,030959 - - 235,030,959
Municipal Bonds 38,213.242 - - 38,213,242
Subtotal $1.497.430,233 $ 25870932 - 5 1,523,301,165
Money Market Mutual Funds 227,408 949
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 5 1.750.710,114
CoMPONENT UNITS

The combined cash and investments for the Hospital District and MHMRA make up more than 99%
of the total cash and investments for all the County's discretely presented component units. The cash
and investment policies for the Hospital District and MHMRA are as follows:

Deposits. The Hospital District's demand and time deposits and short-term government securities at
February 28, 2003 were insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and collateralized by
pledged U.S. Government securities held by their agents, Bank of America, in the Hospital District's
name. MHMRA's demand and time deposits as of August 31, 2002 were insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized by pledged collateral held in safekeeping in
MHMRA's name. For each of these two component units, such total collateralization and insurance
coverage is required by their governing boards.

MHMRA is authorized to invest in fully collateralized or insured time or certificates of deposits
only. Accordingly, excess cash is invested in short-term certificates of deposit stated at cost, which
approximates market, and is classified as a cash equivalent on the balance sheet.

The Harms County Industrial Development Corporation’s bank balance at August 31, 2002 was
$421,224.  Of the bank balance, $100,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, and the
remainder of $321,224 was not collateralized.

Investments. By state statute, the Hospital District is authorized to invest in fully collateralized time
deposits, certificates of deposit, and government securities. Accordingly, excess cash is invested in
short-term certificates of deposit and government securities which are stated at fair value on the
Statement of Net Assets. The fair value of governmental securities is based on quoted market prices
as of February 28, 2003.
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The Hospital District’s investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk,
with Category 1 being the lowest level of risk to Category 3 being the highest level of risk as of
February 28, 2003.

Categories

1 2 3 Fair Valus
LS. Government Sccurniies 5 236,768,000 - - 5 236,768,000
Commercial Paper - " - s
Municipal Bonds - - . <
Subtotal 5 236,768,000
Money Market Mutual Funds 56,319,000
TOTAL INVESTMENTS & 203087000

3. PROPERTY TAXES
COUNTY

Property taxes for the County and the Flood Control District are levied each QOctober 1 on the taxable
value as of the preceding January 1 for all taxable real and personal property. Taxes are due and
payable when levied. On January 1, at the time of assessment, an enforceable lien is attached to the
property for property taxes. All tax payments not received by February 1, after the taxes are levied,
are considered delinquent. Accordingly, no current taxes receivable are reported. Appraised values
are determined by the Harris County Appraisal District (“Appraisal District”) equal to 100% of the
appraised market value as required by the State Property Tax Code. Real property must be appraised
at least every four years. Taxpayers and taxing units may challenge appraisals of the Appraisal
District through various appeals and, if necessary, legal action.

The County is responsible for setting the tax rate for the County, the Flood Control District, the
Hospital District and Port of Houston Authority for debt service only. The County adopted the 2002
tax rate, per $100 of taxable value, for the County and Flood Control District as follows:

Operations and Deld
Maintenance Service Total
Harris County
Constitutional Funds b 033538 5 (.03056 3 0.36594
Foad Debt Service - 002220 002220
Total- Harris County g 0.33538 % 005276 % 038814

Flood Control District 5 QOIE33 g (.01321 £ 004174
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The County is permitted by law to levy tax rates for general fund, jury fund, road and bridge fund
and permanent improvement fund purposes up to $0.80 per $100 of taxable valuation. The County
levied a tax rate of $0.38814 per $100 of taxable valuation subject to the $0.80 tax rate limitation, of
which $0.36594 per $100 valuation was for Constitutional Funds Debt Service, and a tax rate of
$0.02220 per $100 valuation was levied for the Unlimited Road Tax.

The Flood Control District is permitted by law to levy a tax rate up to $0.30 per $100 of taxable
valuation. There is no limitation on the tax rate which may be set for debt service within the $0.30
tax rate limit. The tax rate for operations and maintenance is limited to the rate as may from time to
time be approved by the voters of the Flood Control District. The maximum tax rate for operations
and maintenance is $0.15 per $100 of taxable valuation. A tax rate of $0.02853 per $100 valuation
was levied in 2002 for the Flood Control District’s operations and maintenance. The County Tax
Assessor bills and collects the taxes for the County, Flood Control District, Hospital District, Port of
Houston Authority, City of Houston and various area junior colleges and fire protection districts.
Collections of the property taxes and subsequent remittances to the proper entities are accounted for
in the Tax Assessor's Agency Fund. Tax collections deposited for the County and Flood Control
District are distributed on a periodic basis to the respective General Funds and Debt Service Funds.
These distnibutions are based upon the tax rate established for each fund by order of the
Commissioners Court for the tax year for which the ecollections are made.

Property tax receivables of $35,092,269 as of February 28, 2003 are reported net of an allowance for
uncollectible taxes of $137,632,569.

CoMPONENT UNITS

The Hospital District receives property taxes levied by the County Commissioners Court for
operations. Ad Valorem tax revenues are recorded at the time the taxes are assessed, net of
provisions for uncollected amounts and collection expenses. Subsequent adjustments to the tax
rolls, made by the County Tax Assessor, are included in the revenues in the period such adjustments
are made by the County Tax Assessor.

Property tax receivables of $29,619,000 as of February 28, 2003 are reported net of an allowance for
uncollectible taxes of $53,536,000 for the Hospital District.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

The County reports other receivables in the various funds for amounts to be received from
customers, granting agencies, and the Tax Assessor. Additionally, the County reports receivables
from other governments as Due from other governmental units. A breakdown of these receivables at
February 28, 2003 is as follows:
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OTHER RECEIVABLES Monmajor Nonmajor Intarnal Camponsant
Ganaral Governmental  Toll Road Enterpriza Sarvica Units
Other recehable from;
Custoinons § 13,530,168 - & T45B845 S BETOR 5 437747 5 112,945,050
Graniing apencies
Tax AnsEssor 76,741
Dua ¥om other unils:
Depariment of Housing and Urban Developmant - & 301,783
Todai £ 14,706,910 % 311,783 §F T4eH845 % 68,702 % 437947 5 112,045,080

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

On April 7, 1998, the Commissioners Court approved an interfund loan to the Harris County
Ceneral Fund in the amount of $13.5 million to finance the payment of the settlement for a judgment
against the County. The interfund loan was made from the Toll Road Enterprise Fund. A promissory
note was executed requiring a three-year maturity with principal payable at maturity and an option to
extend the note for an additional two years with principal due at the final maturity date. The
principal shall bear interest at a variable rate equal to the monthly weighted vield of the Toll Road’s
investment portfolio. Interest will be based on a 360-day year/simple interest payable on each one-
year anniversary date of the note. The County has exercised its option to extend the interfund loan
for an additional two years.

In the fund financial statements, interfund balances, other than those discussed above, are the result
of normal transactions between funds and will be liquidated in the subsequent fiscal year. Balances
between individual governmental funds and between governmental funds and internal service funds
are eliminated in the government-wide financial statements. The interfund loan was repaid to the
Toll Road Enterprise Fund subsequent to year-end on April 24, 2003.

The interfund receivable and payable balances, by individual major fund, other governmental funds
(aggregated), other proprietary funds (aggregated), internal service funds (aggregated),and fiduciary
funds as of February 28, 2003 are as follows:



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General

Nonmajor Governmental
Toll Road

Nommajor Enterprise
Internal Service
Fiduciary

Total

The following 1s a summary of the County’s transfers for the year ended February 28, 2003:

February 28, 2003

Receivable Payable
$ 77.882,162 § 8922480
50,293,375 88,628,343
635,875 2,396,004
= 3,647
2,281,527 3,729,997
77,782 27,490,250
$ 131,170,721 $131,170,721

Transfers In:
Nonmajor Internal
Greneral Governmental Service Total

Transfers Qut:

General S132,689247 % 21,782,180 8§ 2100000 5156571422
Monmajor Governmental 16,154,413 13,046,831 29,201,244
Toll Road 20,000,000 57,744 - 20,057,744
Internal Service . - 2,200,000 2,200,000

Toial ¥ 168,843,055

S 34886755 § 4300000 $208,030,410

All transfers are routine In nature,
CAPITAL ASSETS

COUNTY

Capital asset activity for the year ended February 28, 2003 was as follows:
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Balance Balanee
March 1, 2002 Adiditions Deletions Transfers Febroary 28, 2003
Governrrental Activitees:
Land 3 3I19EELTOE % 212384257 8 (2,8060,625) =3 3.399.400, 430
Construction work in progress 03489336 76313359 - § [32.963,577) 256,830,114
Total capital assets not deprecated 3.393.172,134 288,647,616 {2 Bod 625) (32.963,577) 3,646,250, 548
Infrastmctume 8,653,085, 198 SE0E5EG = 20,133,608 B8, T50.200,622
Park Gicilities 22, 566.421 - - 2181320 24,747,741
Flood control projects 236,493,523 - - BA02.482 205,206,006
Buildings (26,419,950 47,568 - 1,847,166 628 524,703
Equipment 188,368,903 2527 (27 33N - 186,271,673
RITLRITOM 113,578,201 27,232,047 32,963,577 0.897.346,765
Lezs accurmutated depreciation for
hifrestructurs (Z910,870.252) {331,13597T) . - {3, 252.006,229)
Pazk facilities (%.521,611) [T30,666) - = (1025237
Flood control projects {109:017,280) (#,123,158) - - (107, 140,438)
Bauildings (205,191,493) (13,297, 456) = - (212,428 9400
Eeuiprment {LIR6T3110) [ 19,085,500) 25146187 . (114,6E2 E23)
(3353273.746) (322.373,15T) 23,146,187 - {3, 712.500,716)
Toral capitil agzets bemg
depreciated, net 424,563 188 (268, 404.956) (4, 185,500) I2063,577 134846, 044
Covemnmental activities capital
Asgeis, net 5 9,817.935422 '8 20202600 § {7052 4R5) -5 831,085,597
Balance Additions/, Deletions/ Balance
March 1, 2002 Transfers Transfers Febroary 28, 2003
Busmess-type Activities
Land 5 196315402 5 10,493 558 - X 206,808,560
Construction in progress 62,429,585 144,449, (49 - 206,875,614
Total capital assets not depreciated 238,744, 987 F54, 542,607 - 413,687,594
Buildings 12,003 470 2210202 - 14,214,281
Infrastructiure 1212498 225 I0Rsd 3 {41.583) 1.212.467.506
Eguipment 10,296,023 2556044 (424,050) 12427411
L2307 4777710 (6, 2340y 1,239,109, 198
Less accummulated depreciation for
Buiklings (4,681,038) (241 .476) - (45922 514)
Infrastructure {407.811,.606) (41,033,012 - (248, 844.618)
Equipment (6,736,018) {1,335,774) 04,869 (7,766,923}
{419.228,662) {42.610.267) 4865 (4651,534,055)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 515,569 065 (37,832 552) (161,370 TT1.575,143
Business-type activities capital
assels, net £ 107314052 S 17110055 & (1613700 & 1191,262,737

Depreciation expense was charged to the programs of the primary government as follows:
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Governmental activities:
Admimistration of Justice £ 12,114,306
Parks 1,323.490
County Administration 13,779,566
Health and Human Services 836,560
Flood Control 10,152,172
Tax Admmistration 194,652
Roads and Bridges 343972 402

$ 382,373,157

Business-type activities:

Subscrber Access b3 38,569
Parking Facilities 169,251
Sheriffs Commmssary 26,933
Toll Road 42,375,509

5 42,610,262




COMPONENT UNITS

MHMRA (Avgust 31, 2002)
Buildings & Improvements

Land
Equipment, Fumiture & Vehicles

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings & Inprovemenis
Equipment, Fumiture & Vehicles

MHMBA capital assets, net

Huoes pital District (February 28, 2003)
Land & Improvements

Construction fn progress
Total capilal assets not depreciated

Buildings and fised cquipmenti
Major movable equipment

Less accummlated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Hospital District capitzl assets, net

The Hospital District records land, buildings, improvements and equipment at cost or fair market
value at the time of donation and includes expenditures for new facilities and equipment and those
Depreciation of facilities and
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Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Transfers Balance
5 333590 % (6,180,038 % 27179902
3000364 - 5010364
14,753,573 (4.651,491) 10,102,082
53,123,877 (10,831,529) 42,200 348
- 7232012 7,252,012
- 4847273 4847373
- | 206K 285 120840 285
b 53123877 S 1267756 % 30,193,063
b 11,602,000 § 70000 8 11,887 000
401 00K} B0, 000 1202000
12,003,000 1,080,000 13,083,000
251,183,000 1652000 252.835,000
151,215,000 (2467000 148,748,000
402,395,000 (815,000 4041 583,000
235 575 000 662,000 236,237,000
235,575,000 E62,000 236,237,000
166,823,000 (1 AT7.0000) 165346000
b 178826000 % (39700]) & 178,429,000

which substantially increase the useful life of existing assets.

equipment is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

MHMRA records all governmental capital assets at cost, except for donated fixed assets, which are
recorded at their fair market value on the date donated. Depreciation is reported at the government-
wide level using the straight-line method over the estimated usefiil lives of the assets. The schedule
included here does not include the capital assets of MHMRA’s component units (a net value of

$1,061,449).
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7. CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE AND INSTALLMENT PURCHASES

The County has entered into several capital lease agreements for the purchase of buildings.
Payments during the fiscal year ended February 28, 2003 totaled $3,231,475. Payments, including
interest at an average rate of 8.9% per annum, are due as follows as of February 28, 2003:

Fiscal vear Governmental Activities
Buildings

2004 5 3231451

2005 3,231,451

2006 3231451

2007 3,231,451

208 3,175,874

2009-2013 14,848 200
20142018 12,661,845
2019-2023 6,406,327

Total future lease payments 30,021,650
Less: Intergst (18928.111)
g 31,0493,539

As of February 28, 2003, the County had recorded property under capital lease obligations of
approximately $32,071,797, net of accumulated depreciation of $2,215,894 as follows:

Asset
Balance Accumulated
February 28, 2003  Depreciation Net
Governmental Activities:
Buildings 5 34287691 5 (2.215894) 532,071,797

8. OTHER LIABILITIES

The balances Due to Other Governmental Units, by Fund, as of February 28, 2003 are as
follows:



10.
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Receivable Entity Pavable Entity
Department of Housing & Urban Development Special Revenue Fund - Grants § 3,049,330
Multiple Bencficiaries Monmajor Proprictary Fund - Sheriff's Commissary 1,057,072
Multiple Beneficiaries General Governmentzl 17,782
Multiple Beneficiarics Nonmajor Debt Service 170,659
Muluiple Beneficiarics MNonmajor Capital Projecis 208,169
Total Due To Gther Governmental Units 8 4563002

SHORT-TERM DEBT

Tax Anticipation Notes

The County issues tax anticipation notes in advance of property tax collections, depositing the
proceeds in its general fund. These notes are necessary because the County’s payments to other local
agencies are made on January 1 and July 1, whereas tax collections are received shortly before their
April 1 and October 1 due dates.

Activity for the year ended February 28, 2003, was as follows:

Balance Balance
Outstanding Outs tanding
March 1, February 28,
2002 Lisued Redeemed 2003
Govemmental Activities
Tax Anticipation Notes % - 5 190000000 S 190000000 % -

LONG-TERM DEBT

The changes in the County’s Governmental Long-Term Debt and Enterprise Fund Debt for fiscal year 2002-
2003 were as follows:
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Acereted Int
CAB and
Outstanding Amortization  Outstanding
Fehruary 18, Issued! Redeemed/ Prem/Dise Febriary 18, Due Within
a2 Increaced {Decreased) Ref, Loss oo Year
(1) Governmental Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Dbl

Foad Bonds & 462601219 - 8 (11685000 § 1615455 % 45253164 5 19610000

Permarent Improvernent Bonds 2R 104584 5 403 437045 (33,475, 000) (B,427,433) 633,639,178 21,065,000

Fizod Control Bonds IO, 767 563 44, 405000 [61,390,643) 6,915,304 180,782 114 19,975,000
Total General Obligation Debi B11A475366 445932045 (T08,535,643) 7107306 1256553, 164 B0, 630,00
Revenue Bonds

Hotel Oeeupancy Tax Senior

Lien Revenue Refunding, Serjes 1997 14,935,000 = {1,060,000) B 13,575,000 1,103,000

Paychizinc Hospital, Seres 1995 3,360,000 - (1,160,000} . 200,000 2 200,000
Total Revenn: Honds 18,295 (0 . [2,220,000) - 16,075,000 3,305,000
Tax and Subordinarte Lien Bevenue Bonds

Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue

Refunding Series 1997 6,005,000 - {2.943.0000 - 3,130,000 3,150,000
Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue
Forward Refunding, Series 1998 41,995,000 - {275,060} - 41,730,000 290,000

Total Taxand Suboedinate Lien Revenue Bonds A8, 090,00 - (3.220,000) - A 570,000 3,440,000
Certificates of Dbligstion

[Detenticn Facililies, Series 1002 £ 205 ) - (55,200,000 - -

Series 19944 14,350,000 - {14,350,0009 - . -

Series 1998 67,320,040 - (1,E330.000) - 63.670,000 1,315,000

Series 200] 32,510,000 - - - 32530006 50,00

Series 2007 2 33,060,000 - 2009891 35,065,591 -
Total Certificases of Oliztion 172,550,000 33,060,000 (80,400,000} 2009 891 133,249 891 2,605,000
Total Bonds Pavahle 1,156,438 366 4‘;‘9,‘?5‘2,&45 {194,399,.643) 91172587 1,451, 148,055 T, OO0, Dl
Commercial Paper Payable 368,414,000 176,151,000 {209,000, 0041 = 335,605,000 -
Compersatory Time Payable F7.521.680 15,926:578 (14,176,791) e 19371457 15,441,371
Oblipstions Under Capital Leases BT - (1,238 a60) - 31003512 1316615
Tudgements Payable LY z (300,000 £ v -
Mote Payable 11,534 017 15,671,433 . = 37605450 15.000,000
Total Governmental Long-Term Dbt S1386040255 5 BETTELOSA  S{IS015004)  § 0017287 51874723 454 § 101,757,986
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Principal
Acerefed Int
CAR and
Crutstanding Amaortization Quistanding
February 23, Issned’ Redeemed! PremDisc Febraary 18, Due Within
002 Increased {Decreased) Ref. Loss 2003 Year
(2) Enterprise Fund Debt

Senior Lien Revenue Bonds 5 692 146,670 ¥ 397520000 ${115.6300000) 8 13002210 5 987038880 £ 17,530,000
Tar Bonds 832660418 42 260,000 [39.364.965) (9.911,603) 305 644,850 10 53,830
Deférred Amounton Refindmg (141,949 243) {B,793,355) 0,745,728 . {140,596 870) -
Accrued Interest Payable 125079084 031563843 (28,020,192} - 126,622,735 38364737
Commercial Paper Payahle 73,767 0600 T6, 233,000 {150,000,000) - = -
Compensatory Time Payable KL A 329,742 {2R2,121) - 416,535 333238
Cibligations Under Capital Lesses 400,070 - (400,070 - -
Tetals - Enterprise Fund Dby §1.582473913 5 601,113,230 SAI51620) & 3000607 5 1L.78E,726,130 5 75381,798

The bonded debt in the above schedules includes principal, premiums, and discounts.
A. BONDED DEBT

Bonded debt of the County consists of various issues of General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of
Obligation and Revenue Bonds. General Obligation Bonds and Certificates of Obligation are direct
obligations of the County with the County’s full faith and credit pledeed towards the payment of this
obligation. General Obligation Bonds are issued upon approval by the public at an election.
Certificates of Obligation are issued by the vote of Commissioners Court as allowed under the
Certificates of Obligation Act. Debt service is primarily paid from ad valorem taxes. Revenue
Bonds are generally payable from the pledged revenue generated by the respective activity for which
the bonds are issued.

Principal and interest on Hotel Occupancy Tax Bonds are payable solely from revenues collected
from hotel occupancy taxes. Principal and interest on Psychiatric Hospital Revenue Bonds are
payable solely from lease payments to be received from MHMRA.

The Toll Road Project has been financed with a combination of unlimited tax and senior lien
revenue bonds, subordinate lien revenue bonds and commercial paper. The proceeds from such
bonds, including the interest earned, are being used to finance the construction and the related debt
service.

The Toll Road Fund Tax Bonds above include $321,500,000 of Series 1994B-H Unlimited Tax and
Subordinate Lien Bonds which carry a variable interest rate with mandatory redemption in 1999
through 2020. The variable interest rate changes as current yields on short term tax-exempt
obligations change. The debt service requirements are calculated using the rate in effect at February
28, 2003,

Annual debt service requirements to maturity as of February 28, 2003 are as follows:
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Governmental Activities Buosiness-Tvpe Activities

Fiscal year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

200 5 10000000 5 38,541 486 5 124,841,486 x IGAE3E30 & 126382088 5 163,065,918

2005 69,045,000 56,419,347 126,304,347 39,204,679 120.296,5997 159,591,676

2000 G 3T0,000 53,008,045 122 378,045 40,765,251 119,228,050 159,993,947

2007 62,205,620 5T,358.471 119,604 091 44,367,904 116,508,959 16 B760,865

2008 57402614 62,601,930 1200, 0064, 5448 A46,8393 237 114,784,663 161,677,850
2009-3013 350,241,713 208,738 443 559,170,206 412,375,665 427202.978 B30, 5HE A4
20142018 239,967 268 240,565 380 480,510,648 515,815,000 217,760,878 TA3.575,878
20019-3023 182,342 235 SO0EL148 TN A8 385,375,000 97,019,544 402,354,544
2024-2024 112232 388 T0L638.737 182,861,125 LO8.625,00K 36,331,028 147,956,028
H29-2033 9,414,736 26,597 607 116,012,343 107.910,000 I8, 204,526 122 274 826

$  130371L575 % OXiIR4e4d § 0 2228096219 5 LTISN05558 5 1392890657 5 3110996215

SIGNIFICANT DEBT COVENANTS

The Senior Lien Revenue Bonds are payable from the revenues of the Toll Roads. The Tax Bonds
are secured by and payable from a pledge of the County's unlimited ad valorem tax and also are
secured by a pledge of and lien on the revenues of the Toll Roads, subordinate to the lien of the
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds. The County has covenanted to assess a maintenance tax to pay project
expenses if revenues, after paying debt service, are insufficient. The County also has covenanted to
collect tolls to produce revenues at the beginning of the third fiscal year following completion of the
Toll Roads equal to at least 1.25 times the debt service requirements on the Senior Lien Revenue
Bonds. The revenue coverage requirement became effective with the completion of the project
during fiscal year 1994, The Toll Road Project’s revenue coverage ratio for fiscal year 2003 was
5.08.

The Series 1994B-H Tax Bonds are subject to purchase on the demand of the holder, at any time
prior to the conversion from a variable interest rate, at a price equal to principal plus accrued interest.
The variable interest rate is determined weekly based upon current yields on short-term tax-exempt
obligations. The County's remarketing agents are authorized to use their best efforts to sell the bonds
at a price equal to par. If the remarketing agents are not successful in remarketing such bonds, the
remarketing agents have the option of selling the bonds to a bank with which the County has a
standby agreement to purchase such bonds.

The terms of the standby agreement require the County to redeem the purchased bonds upon the
expiration or termination (by events of default) of the standby agreement. The expiration date of the
standby agreement is September 23, 2003. The fee for the standby agreement is .10% per annum,
paid annually, on the amount of available commitment. Interest is assessed on the purchased bonds
at the prime rate for the first 90 days, and the prime rate plus 1% for the outstanding advances after
the first 90 days. The prime rate was 4.25% as of February 28, 2003. The following are the debt
service requirements of Series 1994B-H Tax Bonds, assuming the standby bank has purchased all of
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the demand bonds as of February 28, 2003, at the actual interest rate of .97%. The Series 1994B-H
was refunded in July, 2003,

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest i Total

2004 $321.500.000 $1,821,639 $323,321.639
Total $321,500,000 51,821,639 $323.321,639

Upon termination of the standby agreement for events of default other than the failure of the County
to make payments on the bonds or any other County bonds payable from ad valorem taxes or due to
bankruptcy proceedings, the County is required to redeem the purchased bonds by the earlier of five
years after such termination or the period from the effective date of such termination to the
scheduled expiration date. The redemption of the bonds is to be made through consecutive
semi-annual installments of principal and interest based on the purchased bond rate. The County has
not defaulted on any of its bonded debt obligations.

UNISSUED AUTHORIZED BONDS

The County has received voter approval for the issuance of bonds to maintain an ongoing capital
mmprovement program for County roads, parks, libraries and other infrastructure and facilities. At
February 28, 2003, total authorized, unissued ad valorem tax bonds were $826.392.000.

B. COMMERCIAL PAPER

In addition to the outstanding bonded debt of the County, the Commissioners Court has established a
general obligation commercial paper program secured by ad valorem taxes for the purpose of
financing various short-term assets and temporary construction financing for certain long-term fixed
assets. The commercial paper program consists of six series totaling $950 million payable from ad
valorem taxes levied and Toll Road revenues. As of February 28, 2003, the County has outstanding,
$442.2 million of commercial paper. Commussioners Court, by policy, limits the period allowed for
a commercial paper project not to exceed three years. During the length of time the paper is
outstanding, the paper may have a maturity term of 1 — 270 days.

The County entered into a non-cancelable agreement, extending more than one year beyond the
balance sheet date, with credit facilities to provide a line of credit that will act as assurance to the
purchaser of the commercial paper, that funds will be available to redeem the paper upon demand
and that the County can tollover the commercial paper. For Commercial Paper Series B & C, the
County has a credit agreement with the Bank of Nova Scotia and Lloyds TSB Bank ple, which
expires August 25, 2004. For this line of credit, the County is assessed a fee of .12% per annum on
the aggregate amount of commitment. For Commercial Paper Series A-1 & D, the County has a
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credit agreement with the Bank of Nova Scotia, which expires August 25, 2004, For this line of
credit the County is assessed a fee of .12% per annum on the aggregate amount of commitment. If
converted to a term loan, the principal amount for Series A, B and C is to be paid in three equal
annual installments, commencing on the date which is one year following the date of the advance of
such unpaid principal. If converted to a term loan, the principal amount outstanding for Series A-1
and D is to be repaid in equal annual installments commencing on the date which is one year
following the date of the advance of such unpaid principal amount and ending on September 1,
2007. Interest is payable quarterly in arrears, at a rate per annum egual to the adjusted term rate,
provided that the principal amount of any term loan not paid when due shall bear interest at a rate per
annum equal to the lesser of (A) the default rate (fluctuating rate of per annum interest equal to the
greater of (i) the base rate plus 2.00% or (ii) the federal funds rate plus 2.00%) and (B) the highest
lawful rate.

COMMERCIAL PAPER — Froobp CoONTROL

On August 21, 2001, Commissioners Court authorized and issued $200,000,000 in commercial
paper notes designated as the Harris County Flood Control District Contract Tax Commercial Paper
Notes, Series F (“Series F Notes™) to fund projects identified in an agreement between the County
and the Flood Control District (“Flood Contract”) and refinance, refund, and renew the notes
themselves and fund issuance costs. The estimated cost of projects anticipated under the Flood
Contract is $718,830,000.

The terms of the Series F Notes require the notes to be issued with a maturity of 270 days or less and
allow for interest up to the maximum rate allowable under Chapter 1204 of the Texas Government
Code, currently 15%. The notes will be dated as of the date of issuance with a maximum maturity
date of September 1, 2031. Payment of the principal and interest on the Series F Notes and all
expenditures associated with the issuing and paying agent, the dealer and the credit provider is
secured by a pledge and lien on the payments to be received by the Flood Control District from the
County under the Flood Contract. Under the Flood Contract, the Flood Control District pays all
costs relating to the County flood control projects and issues notes to provide the [unding for such
projects.

The County’s commitment under the Flood Contract is the payment to the Flood Control District of
amounts necessary for the principal and/er interest coming due; the fees and expenditures of the
issuing and paving agent, the dealer, and the credit provider; amounts related to any special or
contingency funds or accounts for the notes; and any amounts to restore deficiencies in such funds or
accounts. The County’s payment obligation 1s secured by a levy and pledge of the County’s ad
valorem taxes which extends until all obligations under the Series F Notes, including any obligations
to refund the notes, are no longer outstanding. During the term of the Flood Contract, the County is
required to levy taxes computed at a tax rate sufficient to provide the funds required to make the
annual payments and to provide and maintain a sinking fund adequate for such amounts as they
become due. Commissioners Court issued an order whereby the sinking fund may never be less than
2% of the County’s outstanding indebtedness under the Flood Contract at the time of the tax levy. In
setting the tax rate, the County may consider all sources of funding lawfully available or that are to
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be available including the credit agreement entered into for the Series F Notes, discussed below.
Because of the timing of adoption of tax rates, the County has not yet been required to set a tax rate
as of February 28, 2003. However, the County has allocated other available funds sufficient to pay
the annual amounts due under the Flood Contract prior to the required first adoption of the tax rate.
Based on the County’s outstanding indebtedness as of February 28, 2003 (exclusive of Flood
Control District debt), this amount required under the 2% limitation is estimated to be $1,915,320.

Under a dealer agreement between the Flood Control District and Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated, the Series F Notes are issued in denominations of a minimum of $100,000 and integral
multiples of $1,000 thereafter and may bear interest or sold at a discount. The dealer agreement does
not provide for extension, renewal, or automatic rollover of the notes upon maturity. In
consideration for the services of the dealer, the Flood Control District is obligated to make quarterly
payments equaling .05% of the daily outstanding principal amount of issued Series F Notes. The
paying agent for the Series F Notes is Bankers Trust Company for which it receives an annual
administration fee of $2,500 and per transaction fees ranging from $10 to $40.

The Series F Notes are also secured through an irrevocable, direct-pay, transferable letter of credit
between the Flood Control District and the New York branch of Landesbank Hessen-Thuringen
Girozentrale. The amount of the letter of credit totals $220,712,326. This total includes the
principal amount of the notes ($200,000,000) and interest of $20,712,326 calculated as 270 days at
an assumed per annum rate of 14% and a 365-day year. The initial term of the letter of credit expires
August 1, 2004 and is subject to extension of up to 364 days per request. The letter of credit also
provides for the establishment of loans with maturity dates ranging from three to four years
depending on the earliest of several anniversary dates. The interest rate on such loans may not
exceed the maximum rate allowed by law, currently 15%. The principal portion of the loans is
repayable in equal quarterly installments and the interest quarterly. Under the terms of the letter of
credit, the Flood Control District is charged a quarterly fee, based on the daily average amount of the
outstanding draws against the letter of credit, ranging from .12% to .16%. This fee is dependent on
the County’s panty debt rating at the time. In addition, there are fixed transactional fees ranging
from $12 to 51.000.

COMMERCIAL PAPER — ToLL Ro4p

In addition to the outstanding long-term debt of the Toll Road Authority (“Toll Road™), the
Commissioners Court has established a commercial paper program secured by and payable from
Toll Road revenues. The commercial paper program consists of Harris County Toll Road Senior
Lien Revenue Notes, Series E (“Notes™) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $150 million
outstanding at any one time. As of February 28, 2003, the Toll Road has no outstanding commercial

paper.

The purpose of the Series E Notes is to provide funding for costs of acquiring, constructing,
operating and maintaining, and improving Toll Road Project components, as well as to fund
reserves, pay interest during construction, refinance, refund, and renew the notes themselves, and
fund issuance costs.
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The Notes will be offered at par only, will mature in not more than 270 days from the date of issue,
and will pay par plus interest at maturity. Interest on the Notes is payable on an actual/365 or 366-
day basis. The interest on the Notes may not exceed the lesser of 10% per annum or the maximum
rate allowed by law, currently 15%. A minimum purchase of $100,000 aggregate principal amount
and integral multiples of $1,000 in excess thereof is required.

The Notes will have a maximum maturity date of August 15, 2031 and no Series E Note shall (i)
mature after the maximum maturity date, (ii) have a term in excess of 270 days, (iii) have a term
beyond the third business day prior to the scheduled expiration date for the credit agreement relating
to such Series E Note or (iv) be issued at any time that a “no issuance notice” has been issued by the
credit provider pursuant to the credit agreement which provides that such Series E Note would not be
entitled to the security provided by the credit agreement.

The Toll Road entered into a Revolving Credit Agreement as of October 1, 2001 with Dexia Credit
Local, whereby Dexia has agreed to advance up to $150 million to the Toll Road to pay the principal
of any or all maturing Series E Notes as necessary for a period through October 27, 2004, which is
the date of expiration. For this agreement, the County will be assessed a fee of .125% per annum on
the aggregate amount of the commitment. Advances received under the line of credit are payable in
full no later than the earlier of 60 days after the date of such advance, unless converted to term loans
pursuant to the agreement, or the revolving credit maturity date. The principal amount outstanding
for Series E shall be paid in six equal semi-annual installments so that the term loan is repaid in full
after three years from the date the term loan is made. Interest is payable monthly during the Term
Loan Period at a rate equal to the base rate (which is the higher of (i) the Prime Rate or (ii) the
Federal Funds Rate plus one-half of one percent) plus two percent per annum.

CHANGES IN COMMERCIAL PAPER

The following is a schedule of changes in commercial paper for the year ended February 28, 2003:

Balance Balance
Outstanding Outstanding Amaount
March 1, Retired’ February 28, Dhase Within
2002 Issued Befunded 2003 One Year
Covernmental Activities
Commercial Paper A, A-1, B, C 5 163031000 5 6,734,000 - % 174,765,000
Commercizl Paper D, D-1 162,299,000 11775000 % 209000,000 H5,074,000 .
Commercinl Paper - Flood Control 318084000 57,682,000 - 05,766,000 =
b 68414000 & 176191000 % 209.000,000 5 335,505,000 -

Business-type Activities

Commercial Paper - Toll Road 5 FII6T000 % 76,213,000 I 150,000,000
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DEBT SERVICE TO MATURITY - COMMERCTAL PAPER

Expected debt service requirements for the various Commercial Paper issuances are shown below.
These requirements assume that as of February 28, 2003 the County had drawn down the
outstanding principal balance on the line of credit and subsequently executed term loans with the
banks for a principal balance of $335,605,000 at the average rate for the quarter ending February 28,
2003 by series (a range of 1.09% to 1.29%) and reflect the effects of any refundings. The County
would not be required to make any principal payments until fiscal year 2005,

Covernmental Activities

Fiscal vear Pringcipal Interest Tuotal

2004 - 3 2088043 8 20EE 043
2005 5 72338390 3,816,782 6,135,172
2006 113,380,961 2,666,484 116,047 445
2007 86,019,249 1,300,339 81319588
20008 31,933,200 G866 32541848
20049 31,933,200 202882 32,136,082

£ 335,605,000 § 683,176 5 46288176

C. CoMPONENT UNITS' DEBT

The County has no obligation to assume any liability for the bonds issued by any of the
discretely presented component units.

Total debt of the Harris County Hospital District was $155,144,000 as of February 28, 2003
which comprises 88% of the total long-term debt of all the County's discretely presented
component units. These bonds are secured by a lien on the pledged revenues of the Harris
County Hospital District and certain funds pursuant to the bond order.

The Harms County Hospital District also has defeased bonds, in the amount of $46.613.000
whereby the proceeds are held as irrevocable deposits of funds sufficient with trustees to pay the
principal and interest of such bonds through their maturity. Accordingly, these trustee funds and
the related defeased indebtedness are excluded from the Harris County Hospital District's
balance sheet as of February 28, 2003.

The total debt of the MHMRA was $21,059,309, of which $20,684,748 represents debt of the
primary government, as of August 31, 2002 which comprises less than 12% of the total debt of
all the County’s discretely presented component units.

The MHMRA debt covenants include requirements for (1) the cash and investments in the
general fund equal, at a minimum, six weeks of “current operating expenses”, and (2) MHMRA
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to maintain a “Debt Service Coverage Ratio” of 1.0x for each consecutive two fiscal years. At
August 31, 2002, the MHMRA s cash and investment balance is equal to 3.58 weeks of current
operating expense and their debt service coverage ratio is (0.07). The MHMRA is in violation of
these covenants. However, the bank has waived these cumulative violations until the next
scheduled measurement date.

Debt service requirements for component units” debt are as follows:

Hospital District

Fiscal vear Principal Interest Total
2004 b 6,010,000 5 09958360 % 15968360
2003 6,485,000 9,513,620 15,998,620
2000 6,965,000 9,033,730 15,998,730
2007 7,490,000 8,518,320 16,008,320
2008 8,055,000 7,964,060 16,019,060

Thereafter 119,615,000 24,418,460 154,033,460

£ 134,620,000 § 79,406,550 5 234,026,550

MHMREA
Fiscal vear Principal Interest Total
2003 ] 1517483 & LOB2,011 §  2,509.494
2004 1,590,895 997443 2,588,338
2005 1,601,780 Q08,504 2,510,374
2006 1,688,657 215,376 2,504,033
2007 1,777,455 716,358 2,493,813
Thereafter 10,557,656 2,280,369 12.348.025

Z 18733926 3 6,810,151 § 25,544,077

D. ComMproONENT UNITS' CoNDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

Harris County Industrial Development Corporation, Harris County Housing Finance
Corporation, Harris County Health Facilities Development Corporation and Hamis County
Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation have issued bonds to provide financial
assistance to privaie and public sector entities engaged in activities that are deemed to be in the
public interest. These bonds are limited obligations of the issuing entities payable solely from
the proceeds of the underlying financing agreements, and in the opinion of legal counsel, do not
represent indebtedness or liability to the issuing entity, Harris County, the State of Texas, or any
political subdivision; therefore, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying
financial statements. The Harris County Health Facilities Development Corporation and Harris
County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation have no other financial activity that
would materially affect the County’s financial statements, and are not required to issue separate
audited financial statements, and as a result are not included in the Reporting Entity disclosure
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within the accompanying notes to the financial statements. A summary of the debt issued by
each entity follows.

Harris County Industrial Development Corporation

The Corporation has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-
sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commereial facilities deemed
to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable
solely from the payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the
bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the
bond issuance. Neither the Corporation, the County, nor any political subdivision thereof is
obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.

As of August 31, 2002, there were ninety-three (93) series of Industrial Revenue Bonds
outstanding, The aggregate principal amount payable for the bonds issued could not he
determined; however, their original issue amounts totaled approximately $778,959,000.

Harris County Housing Finance Corporation

As of December 31, 2002, there were thirty-four (34) series of bonds outstanding with an
aggregate principal payable of $296,815,168. These bonds have been issued by the Housing
Finance Corporation to provide financing for the purpose of purchasing single family home
mortgages and multifamily home projects for low and moderate income owners/residents, and
will be repaid from sources defined in the various underlying financing agreements between the
Housing Finance Corporation and the entities for whose benefit the bonds were issued.

Harris County Health Facilities Development Corporation

The corporation issues bonds if there is a public benefit or public purpose that is necessary or
convenient for health care, research or education. As of February 28, 2003 there were twenty-
four (24) series of bonds outstanding with an aggregate principal payable of $3.071,475,000.
The bonds will be repaid from sources defined in the various underlying financing agreements
between the Health Facilities Development Corporation and the entities for whose benefit the
bonds were issued.

Harris County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation

As of February 28, 2003 there were nine (9) series of Bonds outstanding with an ageregate
principal payable of $115,600,000. The bonds were issued for the purpose of defraying
expansion costs, construction of a parking facility for the Houston Museum of Natural Science ,
the construction of Space Center Houston facility, Houston Livestock Show and Rodeo projects,
and the Hobby Center for the Performing Arts. The bonds will be repaid from payments
required to be made under loan agreements between the issuing entity and the aforementioned
parties.
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E. UNISSUED AUTHORIZED BONDS

Capital projects are funded primarily by the issuance of bonded debt. The County has received
voter approval for the issuance of bonds to maintain an ongoing capital improvement program.

The following is the summary of authorized, issued and unissued bonds.

Year Issued Authorized
of Voter Amount as of But Unissued
Deseription Authorization  Authorized 2-28-2003 2-28-2003

(amounts in millions)

Ad Valerem Tax Bonds

Roads 19664 $ 25.0 3 1940 $ 6.0
Taoll Road 1983 900.0 B82.3 17.7
Flood Control 1987 250.0 155.0 95.0
Fire-Fighting Facilities 19849 5.0 - 5.0
Roads 1997 3560 125.0 231.0
Parks 1997 7.0 - 7.0
Libraries 1997 15.0 - 15.0
Civil Justice Center 1999 119.0 95.0 24.0
Roads 2001 475.0 - 475.0
Parks 2001 60.0 - 60.0
Total - Ad Valorem Tax Bonds £22120 $1,276.3 3 9357

F. REFUNDINGS

On May 22, 2002, the Flood Control District issued $44,495,000 Refunding Bonds, Series 2002.
The bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding Bond Series 1992A and 1992B, a portion of
Refunding Bonds Series 1991 and to pay certain costs incurred in connection with the issuance
of the refunding bonds. The annual interest rates range from 3% to 5.5%. Interest accrues
semiannually and the bonds mature in fiscal year 2015. The refunding resulted in a decrease in
cash flow requirements of $3,097,821 and an economic gain of $2,503,145.

On June 19, 2002, the County issued $206,772,041 in Texas General Obligation and Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2002. Proceeds from the Texas General Obligation and Revenue
Refunding Bonds were used to retire the County’s outstanding Commercial Paper Series D and
Series D-1 and to pay certain costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the refunding
bonds (“Series D and D-1 Refunding™). The annual interest rates on the Texas General
Obligation and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 range from 5% to 5.5%. Interest accrues
semiannually.

On November 19, 2002, the County issued $42,260,000 Toll Road Unlimited Tax and
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Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002, and $397,520.000 Toll Road Senior
Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 to finance construction, acquisition, improvement
and administrative cost of toll road; to refund certain Toll Road Unlimited Tax and Subordinate
Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds and certain Toll Road Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds;
to refund all Toll Road Senior Lien Revenue Commercial Paper Notes, Series E and to pay cost
of issuance. The refunding resulted in a decrease in cash flow requirements of $19,510,937 and
an economic gain of $14,252.734.

. DEFEASANCE OF DEBT

In prior years, the County has defeased certain property tax bonds, revenue bonds and Toll Road
revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of the refunding bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide
for all future debt service on the refunded bonds. The trust account assets and the liability for the
defeased bonds are not included in the County's basic financial statements. As of February 28,
2003, the outstanding principal balance of these defeased bonds was as follows:

Property Tax Bonds:
F.oad 557,640,000
Permanent Improvement 73,120,000
Toll Road Bonds:
Senior Lien Revenue Bonds $ 478,660,000
Tax Bonds 322,267,000

. SUBSEQUENT BOND ISSUANCES

On June 4, 2003, the County issued $175,000,000 in Tax Anticipation Notes, Series 2003, The
tax anticipation notes were issued to fund the County’s cumulative cash flow deficit for the fiscal
year beginning March 1, 2003 and ending February 29, 2004, and will be repaid from fiscal year
2004 tax revenues. The tax anticipation notes, which mature on February 27, 2004, were issued
at annual interest rates ranging from 1.75% to 6.0%.

On July 20, 2003, the County issued and settled $321.500,000 Toll Road Unlimited Tax and
Subordinate Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 to defease all of the County’s
outstanding Toll Road Unlimited Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue Adjustable/Fixed Rate
bonds, Series 1994B-H.

On August 28, 2003, the County issued and settled 529,025,000 Permanent Improvement
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A to defease all of the Permanent Improvement Bonds, Series
1993, and $46,105,000 Unlimited Tax Road Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A to defease the
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Unlimited Road Refunding Bonds, Series 1993.

On September 25, 2003, the County issued and settled $36,945,000 Flood Control Refunding
Bonds, Series 2003 A to defease the Flood Control Refunding Bonds, Series 1993.

I. ARBITRAGE REBATE LIABILITY

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 established regulations for the rebate to the federal government of
arbitrage earnings on certain local government bonds issued after December 31, 1985, and all
local governmental bonds issued after August 31, 1986. Issuing governments must calculate any
rebate due and remit the amount due at least every five years. There were no arbitrage rebate
payments made during fiscal year 2003. As of February 28, 2003 there were no estimated
liabilities for arbitrage rebate on governmental or enterprise debt. The Debt Service Funds have
typically been used to liquidate arbitrage liabilities in previous year.

11. COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE

Changes in long-term compensated absences for the year ended February 28, 2003 were as

follows:

Balance Balance

Outstanding Oty tanding Amount
March 1, Taken/ February 28, Prue Within
2002 Earned Paid 003 One Year

Govemmental Activitics b 17521680 5 15926578 & {14176,791) § 19271467 % 15:41,371
Busmess-type Activities J6E914 329,742 {282,121} 416,535 3331228
Tatal b 17,890,594 § 1625635 8§ {14,458.912) 3 19,688,002 5 15,774,599

12. NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCES

A. RESERVATIONS, DESIGNATIONS, AND RESTRICTIONS

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for a
specific purpose. These specific purposes include: debt service and grant programs.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

In the proprietary fund financial statements and in the government-wide financial statements,
restricted net assets are reported for amounts that are externally restricted by 1.) creditors (eg.
bond covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments or 2.) law
through constitutional provision or enabling legislation.
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DPEFICIT EQUITY BALANCES

The Radio Operations - Internal Service Fund has a deficit of $1,189.337, which has
significantly improved from last year’s deficit of $4.907,596.

The Subscriber Access - Enterprise Fund has a deficit of $27.617 which has resulted from a
decline in revenues.

The Hotel Occupancy Tax — Debt Service Fund has a deficit of $3,059 which resulted from a
lower than anticipated tax year closeout.

C. NET ASSETS CLASSIFICATIONS

Net assets in the proprietary fund financial statements and the government-wide financial
statements are classified in three categories: 1) Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, 2) Restricted net assets, and 3) Unrestricted net assets,

SEGMENT INFORMATION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The County maintains four enterprise funds, which are intended to be self-supporting through user
fees charged for services to the public. These funds provide for subscriber access, parking facilities,
sheriff’s commissary, and toll road services. Financial segment information as of the fiscal year
ended February 28, 2003 1s presented below:

Sheriff's
Subscrber Parking Conmmssary Toll
Access Facility Fund Road Total
Operating Revenues 5 234977 § 3404 § 5023360 5 244170745 & 250.072.455
Depreciation and Amonization Bxpense 38,569 169,251 26933 43,286,531 43,521,284
Operating Incone (Loss) (383,870) 284,528 (736,246) [ 53,458,039 152,622 451
Capital Coniributions - - - 5048, 100 58100
Operating Trans fers Out - - - 20,057,744 20,057,744
Net Income (Loss) (395.973) 517.3% {638,193) 64,385,974 63,8469 204
Capital Asset Additions 45,409 - 250,047 154335178 154,630,634
Total Assets 179,724 13,923 852 7009.1%1 [LE73,849.064 1,805.051,831
Bonds Payable 1, 792,683,730 1,792 683,730

Net Assels (21617 13,808,720 4,002 485 36,965,204 55,738,882
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14. RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description

Harris County provides retirement, disability, and death benefits for all of its full-time employees
through a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan in the statewide Texas County and District
Retirement System (“TCDRS”). The Board of Trustees of TCDRS is responsible for the
administration of the statewide agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system
consisting of 535 non-traditional defined benefit pension plans. TCDRS in the aggregate issues a
comprehensive annual financial report (“CAFR™) on a calendar year basis. The CAFR is available
upon written request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P.O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 78768-
2034.

Under the state law governing TCDRS since 1991, the County has had the option of selecting the
plan of benefits to provide in the future, while at the same time considering the level of the employer
contribution rate required to adequately finance the plan. Effective January 1, 1995, the County
adopted an annually determined contribution rate plan, for which the employer contribution rate is
actuarially determined as a part of the annual actuarial valuation. The rate, applicable for a calendar
year, consists of the normal cost contribution rate plus the rate required to amortize the unfunded
actuarial liability over the remainder of the plan’s 25-year amortization period which began January
1, 1995 using the entry age actuarial cost method. Monthly contributions by the County are based on
the covered payroll and the employer contribution rate in effect. The contribution rate for 2003 is
10.31%. The contribution rates for 2002 and 2001 were 9.86 % and 9.95% respectively.

The plan provisions are adopted by Commissioners Court, within the options available in the state
statutes governing TCDRS (“TCDRS Act”). Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 8 or
more years of service, with 30 years of service regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and
years of service equals 75 or more. Members are vested after eight years of service but must leave
their accumulated contributions in the plan to receive any employer-financed benefit. Members who
withdraw their personal contributions in a lump sum are not entitled to any amounts contributed by
the County.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’s contributions to the plan, with interest
and employer-financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by
Commissioners Court, within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the
resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately financed by the employer’s commitment to
contribute. At retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by converting the sum of the
employee’s accumulated contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to a monthly
annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act.
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Funding Policy

The County has elected the annually determined contribution rate (“ADCR”) plan provisions of the
TCDRS Act. The plan is funded by monthly contributions from both employee members and the
County based on the covered payroll of employee members. Under the TCDRS Act, the
contribution rate of the County is actuarially determined annually. The County contributed using
actuarially determined rate of 9.86% for the months of the accounting year in 2002, and 10.31% for
the months of the accounting vear in 2003.

The contribution rate payable by the employee members for 2002 and 2003 is the rate of 7% as
adopted by Commissioners Court. The employee contribution rate and the employer contribution
rate may be changed by Commissioners Court, within the options available in the TCDRS Act.

Annual Pension Cost

For the County’s accounting year ending February 28 2003, the annual pension cost for the TCDRS
plan and the actual contributions for its employees were $56,254.388.

The annual required contributions were actuarially determined as a percent of the covered payroll of
the participating employees, and were in compliance with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting Jor
Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employees, parameters based on the actuarial valuations
as of December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2002, the basis for determining the contribution rates
for calendar years 2002 and 2003. The December 31, 2002 is the most recent valuation.

Actuarial Valuation Method

| Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31/00 12/31/01 12/31/02
Actuanal Cost Method Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age
Amortization Method Level percentage | Level percentage | Level percentage

of payroll, open | of payroll, open | of payroll. open
Amortization period in years 20 20 20
Asset Valuation Method Long-term Long-term Long-term
appreciation with | appreciation with | appreciation with
| adjustments adjustments adjustments
Actuarial Assumption
Investment return (1) 8.00 % 8.00 % 8.00 %
Projected Salary Increases (1) 5.9% 5.5% 55 %
Inflation 4.0 % 35% 3.5%
Cost of Living Adjustments 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

(1} Tneludes inflation at the
stated rate. |
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Trend Information
Accounting | Annual Pension | Percentage of Net Pension
Year Ending Cost APC Obligation
— Contributed
2/28/03 $ 56,254,388 100% -
2/28/02 S 48,448,052 100% -
2/28/01 $47.979,693 100% -
Schedule of Funding
Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31/00 12/31/01 12/31/02
Actuarial Value of Assets $1,265,141,379 | §1,380.,976,806 | $1,484,207.932
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $1.441,046,300 | $1,578,523,738 | $1,711,255,341
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability | § 175,904,921 | $ 197,546,932 | § 227.047.409
(UAAL)
Funded Ratio B7.79% 87.49% 86.73%
Annual Covered Payroll (Actuanial) $ 488870345 | § 509600340 | % 537,764,570
UAAL as Percentage of Covered Payroll 35.98% 38.77% 42.22%
15. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

16.

In addition to providing pension benefits described herein, the County provides certain retirement
health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees. In accordance with the Personnel
Regulations adopted by Commissioner’s Court all County emplovees become eligible for these
benefits after meeting the service and retirement age requirements of the County’s retirement plan.
These requirements, which were modified effective January 1, 1993, require 30 years of service, or 8
years of service and 60 years of age, or vears of service plus age equal 75 or more. The County pays
100% of the cost of medical and life insurance coverage for retirees. The County recognizes
expenditures for retirement benefits as paid, which during fiscal year 2003 totaled $9,309,106.
Presently, 2,272 retirees qualify for retirement benefits.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County’s risk-of-loss exposures include exposure to liability and accidental loss of real and
personal property as well as human resources. County operations involve a variety of high risk
activities including, but not limited to, law enforcement, cash collections, construction, and
maintenance activities. The Office of Human Resources & Risk Management is responsible for
identifying, evaluating, and managing risk in order to reduce the exposure from liability and
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accidental loss of property and human resources.

The County has established the Risk Management Internal Service Fund to account for risk
management activity. Risk financing activities include the purchase of property insurance,
professional liability insurance, and crime and fidelity coverage. Harris County is self-insured for
general liability, vehicle liability, and liability from property damage claims. Such non-litigated
claims are handled on a pay-as-you-go basis and are expensed as paid; due to immateriality, no
liabilities are reported in the financial statements for such claims or for an estimate of any claims
which may have been incurred but have not been reported. Any liability arising from operation of
motorized equipment will be considered under the Texas Tort Claims Act.

The County is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims and reimburses a third-party
administrator who evaluates and pays claims in accordance with State statute. The County’s
workers’ compensation self-insurance program provides medical and indemnity payments as
required by law for job-related injuries. The County has insurance coverage for excess workers’
compensation and employer’s liability. The retention (deductible) for the policy for the fiscal year
ended February 28, 2003 is $750,000 per occurrence. The liability for outstanding losses includes
an actuanally determined amount for incurred but not reported claims. Interfund premiums for
workers’ compensation are actuarially determined by claims expense experience and payroll history.

The County currently provides medical, dental, vision, and basic life and disability insurance
benefits to eligible employees and retirees. The County pays the full cost of employee and retiree
coverage and 50% of the cost of dependent premiums. Retirees with less than 10 years of service
pay a portion of their premium. The total obligation for health insurance benefits is limited to the
monthly premiums payable during the year and is based upon the number of enrolled employees,
retirees and dependents during the year. The disability insurance will pay up to 50% of an
employee’s salary for two years with an employee paid option to extend the benefits period to age 65
and increase the percentage to 60%.

The Risk Management Internal Service Fund serves as a clearing account for the collection of group
insurance premiums from all funds and premiums for dependents and optional coverage from
employee payroll deductions. Contracted insurance providers receive disbursements from the fund
based upon monthly enrollment and premium calculations. Departmental billings for premiums for
property insurance, professional liability insurance, and crime and fidelity policies, as well as
payments to the insurance carriers, are handled through the Risk Management Fund. Payments by
the County for general, vehicle, and property damage liability claims, for which the County is self-
insured, are made through the Risk Management Fund unless litigation is involved. The County
Attorney’s Office handles any claims involving litigation.

The Risk Management Fund is available to pay claims and administrative costs of the programs and
to fund claim reserves. During fiscal year 2003, a total of $99,672,967 was paid in benefits and
administrative costs. As of February 28, 2003, claims liability, including an actuarial estimate of
claims that have been incurred but not reported, totaled $22,688,217.
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During the last fiscal year, there were two claims that exceeded the insurance coverage.

The following is a summary of the changes in worker’s compensation claims liability for the Risk
Management Fund for the fiscal years 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002
Claims liability, beginning of fiscal year: 5 22,569,397 5 21,298,033
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:
Provision for insured events of the current fiscal year 8,235,230 7,351,854
Increase (decrease) in provisions for insured
events of prior fiscal years (3,966,888) {1.592.688)
Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 4,271,342 3,759,166
Payments;
Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable
to insured ¢vents of the prior fiscal years 4,132 522 4,487,802
Total Payments 4,152,522 4,487,802
Claims liability, end of fiscal year 5 22,688,217 £ 22,569,397

17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
LITIGATION

The County is involved in lawsuits and other claims in the ordinary course of operations. Such
litigation includes lawsuits alleging personal injuries, discriminatory hiring and firing practices,
claims from contractors for amounts under construction contracts, inverse condemnation claims, and
various other liability claims. The outcome of most of these lawsuits and other claims are not
presently determinable and the resolution of these matters are not expected to have a material effect
on the financial condition of the County. There are several civil cases that have resulted in
settlements, consent decrees or are expected to have a financial impact on the County in subsequent
fiscal years. Total liabilities of $1.880,000 for Judgments Payable have been recorded in the
governmental activities of the Government-Wide financial statements. $1,880,000 is considered
current and 1s recorded in the General Fund reported in the Fund Level financial statements.

OTHER

The County received significant financial assistance from numerous federal and state govermmental
agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally
requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to
audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a
liability of the General Fund. However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims,



18.

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
February 28, 2003

if any, will not have a material effect on any financial statements to the individual fund types
included herein or on the overall financial position of the County as of February 28, 2003.

OPERATING LEASES

As of February 28, 2003, the County had several significant operating leases for office space. Such

leases have terms from one to twenty years and are subject to renewal each vear based upon the
County's annual appropriation.

As of February 28, 2003, the County's obligation for such annual rental payments, if the annual
renewal option is exercised, is as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Fiscal vear Office Space
2004 5 2,595371
2005 2,224,688
2006 1,961,641
2007 1,195,622
2008 085,695
2009-2013 510,421
Thereafter - 33TE 950

$ 14488388

CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The County is committed under various contracts in connection with the construction of County
facilities, buildings, and roads of $229,026,119. In addition, the County has construction
commitments outstanding relating to the Toll Roads of approximately $157.778,246.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT - GASB STATEMENT NO. 39,
“DETERMINING WHETHER CERTAIN ORGANIZATIONS ARE COMPONENT
UNITS” (*GASB NO. 397)

The Government Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement No. 39 (“GASB 39"),
Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units which will be effective for the
County in the fiscal year ending February 28, 2005. GASB 39 requires state and local governments
to report legally separate, tax exempt organizations as discrete component units if they meet the
following criteria:
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— The economic resources raised and held by the affiliated organization almost entirely is for
the benefit of the County.

— The County is entitled fo or has the ability to access the funds raised by the affiliated
organization,

— The funds held by the affiliated organization are material to the County’s financial
statements.

Management of the County does not believe the implementation of this standard will have a material
impact on the County’s financial statements.
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Revenues and other sources:
Taxes
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Interest
Miscellancous
Other Sources

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures and other uses:
Administration of Justice
Parks
County Administration
Health and Human Services
Tax Administration
Roads and Bridges
Dbt service
Capital outlay
Oither Llzes

Total expenditures and other uses

Net change in fund balance

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

Variance From

Original Final Final Budpet
Budget Budgei Actual Positive (Negative)
5 632,842,500 § 632,842,500 5 633,121,174 b4 278,674
157,835,168 157,835,168 174578212 16,743 (44
21,039.957 21,039,957 22837416 1,797,450
19,031,102 24,724,904 28,024,491 3,299 587
5.689,106 8,689,106 8,126,186 (562,920)
30,276,738 32,685,254 41,860,267 9,175,013
51,650,257 396,062,922 381,903,855 (14,159.067)
921,364,828 1,273.879.811 1.290,451,601 16,571,790
471,006,300 482,039,895 474,286,180 7,753,715
18,852,125 40,038,228 32,670,677 367,551
300,046,037 271,200,037 188,831,212 82 377,825
73,879,110 86,084,345 89,195 481 (3,111,136)
28,348,027 20007414 28,756,359 251,055
87,297 814 97,263,077 36,238,026 6,025,051
128,749,543 1533735271 46,552,936 87,182,315
88,399,359 95,919,205 32,706,350 63,212,855
25,967,928 383,334,043 365,053,692 18,280,351
1.243.146,273 1,618,630,515 1,294.290,933 324,330,582

5 (321.781,445)

§ (344,750.704)

£ (3,839.332)

8 340,211,372
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1. RECONCILIATION OF ACCOUNTING BASIS

A reconciliation of revenues and expenditures on a cash basis (budgetary basis) compared to
modified accrual basis (GAAP) for the general fund is as follows:

GENERAL
FUND
Revenues and Other Sources:
Cash (budgetary) basis S 1,290,451,601
Accrued in 2002, received in 2003 (23,909,745)
Accrued in 2003, to be received in 2004 128,447 866
Revenues on modified
accrual (GAAP) basis 1,394 989 722
Expenditures and Other Uses:
Cash (budgetary) basis 1,294,200 933
Incurred during 2002, paid in 2003 (43,692 589)
Incurred during 2003, payable in 2004 140,884,309
Expenditures on modificd
accrual (GAAP) basis 1,391,482.653
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses b 3,507,069

For further budgeting information, see Note 1.E. of the Notes to the Financial Statement.

2. ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT EXPENDITURE VARIANCES

In four expenditure functions there were significant variances between the budgeted amount and
actual expenditures.

The Debt Service function had a favorable variance of $87.182,315 due primarily to
unanticipated refundings during the year. The County refunded several debt issues, taking
advantage of lower interest rates, which decreased the payments during the fiscal year. See Note
10 for additional information on the refundings.
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Both the Roads and Bridges and Capital Qutlay functions reported favorable variances,
$61,025,051 and $63,212,855 respectively. Both of these functions are capital project related.
The County’s capital project budgets are set at the beginning of the projects and roll year-to-year.
Therefore, these variances are anticipated.

The County Administration function had a favorable variance of $82.377.825. The majority of
this variance is attributable to unallocated budget related to capital asset maintenance. As
maintenance projects are identified this budget is allocated to the respective function, The
unallocated budget is revised on an annual basis.
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HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SUMMARY

February 28, 2003
Total Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital Governmental
ASSETS Hevenue Serviee Projects Funds
Cash and Investments
Cash and cash equvaients 5 117,534,402 & 7,035,630 3 86,114,054 b 210,704,086
Pooled cash and investments 17,306,304 - 65,127 406 82,433,710
Investiments 25464480 54,183,011 156,957,849 236,605,340
Receivables:
Taxes, net 3,145,969 1,038,032 - 6,184,001
Accounts 86,055,259 864,712 - 86,219,971
Accrued interest 249980 14,815 1,141,625 1426420
Due from other funds 19,916,405 317,952 29,059,038 50293375
Due from other governmental units 311,783 - - 311,783
Inventories and other assets 596,309 - = 306,309
Long term noles receivable 1,521,493 = - 1,921,493
Total assets £ 272,502,384 b 66,494,132 § 338399972 ] 677,396,488
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities;
Vouchers pavable 5 38,926,243 5 - 3 18,088,103 b 37.014,346
Accrued payroll and compensated absences 3,155,561 - = 3,155,561
Retainapes payable 12,370,563 - 3,580,947 154951,510
Due o other funds 71.163.541 25,209 17,439,593 88,628,343
Due to other governmental units 3049330 170,659 208,169 3,428 158
Deferred revenue 16,243,161 3,038,032 - 19,281,193
Other . - 44 863 44,863
Total liabihities 144,908,399 3233900 30,361,675 187,503,974
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 22,195416 - 229.026,119 251,221,535
Dbt service 63,260,232 - 63,260,232
Advance from Harris County - - 12,000,000 12,000,000
Imprest fund 50 - - 30
Grant programs 6,805 B8 - - 6,805,888
Unreserved:
Diesignated for capital prajects - - 58,012,178 38012178
Dresignated for HOT debits 9,413,825 - = 9413,825
Undesignated 89,178,806 - - B9 178806
Total fund balances 127,593,955 63,260,232 203,038,297 489,892.514

Taotal liabilitics and fund balances & 2502384 3 66,494,132 5 338399972 3 677390488




EEVENUES
Taxes
Charges for services
Intergovermmental
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current operaging:
Admimistration of justice
Parks
County Administration
Health and human services
Flood contral
Tax administration
Roads and bridges

Capital outlay

Dieiit service:
Fres and services, maintenance
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deliciency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from capital contributions
Progeeds from loans
Proceeds from sale of refunding bonds
Other financing source - premium
Proceeds from sale of commercial paper
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent
Procesds from sale of capital assets

Total sther inancing sources|uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balances, beginning
Residual equity transfer in

Fund balances, ending

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SUMMARY
For the Year Ended February 28, 2003

Total Nonmajor
Special Debi Capital Governmental
Revenue Service Frojects Fumnds
s 66038232 3 60,443,020 - 5 126,481,252
3,205,423 . - 3,205,421
140,581,618 - § 2572300 166,303,709
2,030,820 841862 5584 465 8457147
6,378,156 1302472 4,623,235 12,303,863
218,234,249 62,587,354 35.929,791 316,751,394
47,751 897 - 2,423,782 50,175,679
12,505 - I6T.ORT 379,592
a0.508.473 - 16,145,820 06,654,293
56,953,428 - LOoIg672 57,962,100
319,394,813 - - 19194813
579,853 - - 579,853
- - 4,809,097 4,809,097
6,822,117 - 199 137 6064 205,959,781
. 20,854,644 - 29,884,644
- 49,141,190 - 49,141,390
232028080 79,026,034 223,804,122 534,948,242
(13,793 837) {16,438.680) (187.964,331) (218,196, 845)
23,070,602 11,816,153 - 34,386,755
{13.905,964) (6,045,665) (9,249.615) (29,201,244
= - 4,555,906 4,553,906
. = 15,671,433 15,671,433
160,000 44,334,000 119,455,952 163,950,492
= 1,954,391 2138357 4,022.748
- - 178,873,000 178873 00
. (46,086,870 - (0,086,870}
201,283 - 1,252,400 1,853,652
9,526,921 3,002,008 312,697 482 328226412
(4.266.516) {10.436,671) 124,733,151 110,029,564
131,860,501 FER R 167.490,591 373,048,305
- - 6,814,555 6,514,555
3 127,593,985 s 63,260,232 5 299038207 5 485,892,514




Special Revenue Funds are used 1o accoun for specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts and capital projects), which are restricted 1o
expenditures for specified purposes.

FLOOD CONTROL OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE FUND - This fund is used 1o account for all revenues and expendinmes
rclating to general operations. of Hamis County Flood Conrol Diswriet.  The Flood Control District is responsible: for
developing a flood control plan for the County, cammying out &nongeing capitel improvement program, maintaining distnet
failities and providing Noed watch and flood slert programs.

SPORTS & CONVENTION CORPORATION - This fund was established under tw Texas Transportation Act for the purpose of
aiding end acting on behall in munaging, vperating, maintaining and developing the spors and entertainrment complex located
on property cwned by the County.

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX REVENUE FUND - This fund was established in Septemiber 1987 to secount for revenues primarily
generated from 2 hotel occupancy tax and expenditures that serve the purpose of atracting visitors and promoting tourism,
Haotel Qecupancy tixes are currently pledged for debt service on Hotel Occupancy Refunding Bonds that weee sold in 1997,

Law LIBRARY FUND - This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures 1o maintuin s law Fbrany for members of the Texas
Bar Association in Harris County. Itis financed by a $15.00 fee which 1 pasessed against each civil case filed in County and
Dristrict Courts of Harris County,

DEED RESTRICTION ENFORCEMENT FUND - This fund was authorized under House Bill 356 and provides for fees o
administer the enforcement of deed restriction viclations affeoting real property subdivisions. This sct requires fees be used
anly for enforcement of the deed restriction violations, and any unused finds are to be refunded to the complainants,

APPELLATE JUDICIAL SYSTEM FUND - This fund was suthorized under House Bill 1389 and provides for a court fee of S5.00
for ezch civil suit filed 1o be assessed to assist in financing the Courts of Appeals in processing sppesls filed from County
Courts, County Courts at Law, Probate Courts and District Courts.

JAIL SANCTIONS FUND - This fund was established to acoount for moneys received under the terms of a court order entered
into on June 30, 1994, Moneys are used 1o defray Crininal Justice cxpenditures,

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FUND - This fund was established to account for the revenues and expenditares under
interagency agreements for the implementation of storm water permit program.

SAN JACINTO WETLANDS PROJECT FUND - This fund was established to account for moneys received under the tems of a
court seftlement. . Maoneys received are used to clean up a hazardous waste dump and establish g natre preserve at the site,

TNRCC FOLLUTION CONTROL — This fund is used o account for funds from TNRC and donations 1o coordinate pollution
control effors.

ELECTION SERVICES - This fund is used for defraying expenses of the County Clerk’s Office in conducting Harris County
elections,

Law ENFORCEMENT FORFEITED FUND — This fund is used to aceount for expenses for the investigation of alleged violations
of eriminal law. 1 is also ubilized to sccount for assets seized purstant o the state forfeiture law Chapter 59, Code of Criminal
Progedure and the federal forfeiled asset programs.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION FUND - This fund is used (o scecumt for funds collected after October 1, 1995 from a fee of S10000
assessed on cases o fund an altemative systemn for the praceable and expeditions resolution of eitizen dispubes not requiring
formal court action.

LEOSE-LAW ENFORCEMENT - This fund was suthorized under 5B, 1135 and provides for state moneys to lew enforcement
agencies to ensure continuing education for persons licensed under Chapter 415, Government Code.

CHILD SUPPORT ExFORCEMENT - This fund gcoounts for funds received from the Texas Allomey General's Office for
reimbursement (o the County for processing child support payments sent to' the County as part of the Title IV Part D of the
Federal Social Secunty Act

LIBRARY DONATION FUND = This fund accounts for révenuss from donations snd contributions made to the Hamis County
Library for specific reason.

MEMORIAL TRUST = This fund is uzed to account for cash donations accepted by Commissioners Court for designated
purpeoses, Separate accournts ane rmaintaimad for various types of donations.

IMSTRICT ATTORNEY ADMINISTRATION - Confiscated gambling proceeds lorfidted inder Arhcle 1818 of the Texas Code of
Criminal Procedure are deposited in this fiund and are available 1o the District Atormey for ise in special investigations.  Foes
collected in connection with processing checks tssued or passed in violation of the Texas Peral Code une deposited m this fund
and used for the purpose of defraving the sakaries and cxpenses of the District Atomey's Olfice

CoMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT RESTRICTED — This fund is used 1o account for funds collected and =et aside by Precinct 4
related to the development of the Croshy Commamity Center,

TIRZ AFFORDABLE HOUSING — This fund is used to revitalize or redevelop unproductive, underproductive or blighted areas:
The participating taxing units contribute some or all of the tax revenues generated by the growth in.a TIRZ s taxable value to
the revitalizuon or redevelopment effort.

JUVENILE  BOARD - This fitnd wis estzhlished to account for juvenile prohation services funded by the Texas Juvenile
Prehation Commission in Harris County,

GRANTS - These funds were established to sccount for grant programs appheable o the County.
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HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE

February 28, 2003

Sporis & Hotel
Flood Convention Occupancy Law
ASSETS Control Corporation Tax Revenue Library
Cash and cash equivalents § 59223450 & 17,168.731 - -
Pooled Cash and Investments - - % 11594503 5 732958
Investments - - - -
Receivables:
Taxes. net 3,145,969 - - -
Accounts, net 640,426 12,573,719 - Q01
Accrued interest 193,575 = - -
Due from other funds 986,582 3.618,069 890,126 BE7.6E3
Due from other units = bl - .
Long term notes receivable - - - -
Inventories and other assets & 214,630 = -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 64,100,002 § 33575149 § 2484529 § 821,552
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Vouchers payable 8 4485767 §F 15200389 % 1952281 § 86,837
Accrued payroll and compensated
absences 1,045 433 14,647 - 21,583
Dug to other funds 227,674 - 731,176 12,500
Due to other units - - - -
Retainages payable 166,732 12,141,562 - -
Deferred revenue 3,150,327 392,505 - -
Total Liabilities 9,075,953 27,749,303 2,683,457 120,920
Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 19,499,095 - 387,347 -
Reserved for imprest cash fund - - - 50
Reserved for grant programs - - - -
Unreserved:
Designated for HOT debts - - o.413,825 -
Undesignated 35614954 5.825.846 - 700,582
Total Fund Balances 55114049 5.825,840 9,801,172 T00.632
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 5 64,190,002 5§ 33575149 § 124846290 § @ 821,552

{continued)




Deed Appellate San Jacinte  TNRCC Law

Restriction Judicial Jail Stormwater  Wetlands Pollution Election Enforcement
Enforcement System Sanctions  Management  Project Control Services  Forfeited Fund
- - = = - - - 3 217,751

5 4848 5 146,885 - - 5 45119 §F 494324 § 199,998 501,953
’ = s = & - - 12,971,042

& 124,000 - - - - - 1,586

- 28213 5 70,141 § 658,389 - . = 121,873

3 4945 5 300,098 § 720041 § 658389 5 45119 5 494324 5 199998 § 34768205

- 5 51,128 8 435926 5 446,894 - 0§ 11,759 S 74967 § 6.285.699

= 2,956 = - . 16,241 - .

= 19,646 19,657 . ] 5,406 - 368,823

. 1,845 - - - = = =

: 75,575 455,583 446,804 - 33,506 74,967 6,654,522

= 61,150 264,558 211,495 % 198,954 29,124 742,871

g 4.948 163,373 = - 5 45119 261,864 95,907 27.370,812
4,948 224.523 264,558 211,495 45.119 460,818 125,031 28,113,683

5 4945 § 300,098 5  TA0M41 05 658389 0§ 45119 F 404324 5 199,903 % 34768205

{continued)



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE
February 28, 2003

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Pooled Cash and Investments
Investments
Receivables:

Taxes, net

Accounts, net

Accrued interest
Due from other funds
Due from other units
Long term notes receivable
Inventories and other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Vouchers pavable

Accrued payroll and compensated
absences

Due to other funds

Due to other units

Retainages payable

Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for imprest cash fund
Reserved for grant programs
Unreserved:
Designated for HOT debis
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

Dispute
Resolution

LEOSE-
Law
Enforcement

Child Support
Enforcement

Library
Donation
Fund

Memorial Trust
onation
Fund

& 432,573

5 305411

b 71,050

11,594

90,001

b 297,951

3 2,278,621

5 496,444

5 50541

bl 172,645

5 297,951

b 2,273,621

§ 210,522

5 39,838

5 12,747

b 14,330

s 15,511

188,613

210,522

39,838

12,747

14,330

204,124

285,922

6,086

456,487

49170

110,728

67,151

216470

64,306

2,010,191

235,922

465,573

159,898

283,621

2074497

3 496444

3 05411

5 172,645

3 297.951

5 2,278,621

{continued)



Diistrict Community TIRZ Harris County
Attorney Development  Affordable Juvenile
Administration  Restricted Housing Board Grants Total
$ L041714 § 1,076,072 S$1510,846 S 10328219 S 6013619 § 117,534,402
- - - s - 17,306,304
12,493 438 - - - - 25,464,480
: = : S 3,145,969
- . - 1,917,951 70,785,052 86,033,259
36,405 - - - = 249 9810
- 526,390 . 2,401,110 9,722,957 19,916,403
= - - - 311,783 311,733
- - - - 1,921,493 1,921,493
= = = = 381,679 596,309
B 13,591,557 § 1602462 51,510,846 5 14647310 § 89,136,583 S 2772.502.384
5 7727 8§ 8,157 = 8 927953 § BRB657T6I1 & 38926243
- - - 384,270 1,281,698 3,155,361
- - - 1,393 660 68,384,999 71,163,541
- - - - 3,049,330 3,049 330
62,269 - - - 12,370,563
- - - 11,741,427 957,057 16,243,161
72T 70426 - 14647310 82 330,695 144,908,399
104,642 223,545 - - - 22,195.416
- - = - - 50
- - - - 6,805,888 6,805,888
- - - - - 0413 825
13,479,188 1,308,491 51,510,845 - 89,178,306
13,583,830 1,532,036 L510,846 - 6,803,885 127,583 985
B 13591557 5 1602462 S 150846 5 14647310 5 BO1356383 5 272,502,384

Concluded




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE

For the year ended February 28, 2003

Revenues:

Taxes

Charges for serviees
Intergovernmenial
Interest
Miscellaneouws

Total Revenues

Expenditares:

Current operating;
Administration of justice
County administration
Hezlth and human services
Parks
Flood control
Tax administralion
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Exeess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses) :
Cperating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from the zafe of capital assets
Proceeds from issuance of debt

Total other financial sources
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources aver (under)
Expenditures and other uses

Fund Balances. Beginning

Fund Bzlances, Ending

Sports and Huotel Meed

Flood Convention Oceupancy Law Restriction
Control Corporation Tax Revenue Library Enforcement
§ 49590215 = §F 16,448,017 - .
27 - 318716 % 1,105,624 .
190,416 . X ! .
294054 % 154,636 108,178 LIS 5 36
308,866 1,834,110 298 48,347 -
51,183,578 1,988,746 16,875,209 1,161,126 36
- 3,649 864 11,046,054 - -
- = - 1,479,466 !
39394 813 £ £ - =
379,853 . - . c
5,168 828 - - 3,553 -
45,143,404 3,649,864 11,046,054 1483019 -
6,040,084 {1.661,118) 5,829,155 (321.893) 36
400,000 1,580,144 27,750 - -
- - (13,047 410) - -
201,283 | _ A )
151,000 - - - -
762,283 1,580,144 (13,0 19.660) = -
6,802,367 (80,974) (7,190,505 (321,893} i6
45,311,682 5,906,820 16,991,677 1,022,525 4912
5 55114049 % 5825846 2§ 980117 5 700,632 5 4,948

(continuad)



Appellate San Jacinto TNRCC Law

Judicial Jail Stormwater Wetlands Pollution Election Enforcement
System Sanctions Management Project Control Services Forfeited Fund

$ 308639 - . - - 4464 =
= - % 191234 I - - 5 1,246,130

4372 % 1,320 735 0§ 2963 3 2,155 31,575 380,819
3R7.928 - - - 199,473 402,184 2173490
760,939 1,330 198,969 2,963 201,628 410,223 3,809 439
671,180 - L s - - 1,211,327
93,403 367,134 2,249 BR3 - - 690,228 -

- . - - 395,630 - E

103,300 - - - 57,548 5512 I,04 1,804
867,833 367,134 2,249,883 - 453,178 695,740 2,253,136
(1046,944) (365,814) {2,050,914) 2,963 (251.550) (285.517) 1,556,303

- - 658,389 - 382,961 - 41 800
- (382,961) . s < {41,800

- - 275,428 - 382,961 - -

(106.944) (3635.814) (1,775:480) 2963 131,411 (285.517) 1,556,303
331467 630,372 1,986,981 42,156 329,407 410,548 26,557 380

5 224523 % 264,558 5 211,495 -8 45,119 % 460,818 125,031 £ 28113683

(continued)



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE

For the year ended February 28, 2003
LEOSE- Library

Dispute Law Child Support Donation
Resolution Enforcement Enforcement Fund

Revenues:

Taxes -
Charges for services 5 768,789 - -
Intergovernmental - 5 Jnnsds % 260,678 -
Interest 2377 4,671 497 5 2,550
Mizcellaneous - - . 195,667

Totzl Revenues 771,166 35316 261,175 198226

Expenditures:

Current operating:;
Administration of justice 793,892 101,443 277717
County administration - o - L
Health and human services - = - 260,453
Parks = i = =
Flood control = 2 < -
Tux administration - = = c
Capital oullay - = - -

Total Expenditures 793,802 301,443 277,717 260,453

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures {22,726) 3,873 {16,542) (62.227)

Other financing sources (uses) ;
Ciperating transfers in < . z =
Operating transfers out = = E -
Procesds from the sale of capital assets - - - -
Procesds from issuance of debt -~ e L

Total other inancial sources - = =

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources over (under)
Expenditures and other uses (22,726) 3,873 (16,542) (62,227}

Fund Balances, Beginning 08,642 461,700 176,440 345848

Fund Balances, Ending 5 285922 _ 5 465573 8 159,898 5§ 283,621

fcontinued)



Memorial Truost Dristrict Community TIRZ Harris County
Donation Attorney Development Affordable Juvenile
Fund Administration Restricted Housing Board Grants Total

- - - - - % 66,038,232

£ 284,020 % 354,235 - - - - 3,205.423
28,783 - - - § 24666968  5113,696,704 140,581,618

17,056 421697 3 4214 5 1,741 - - 2.030,820

251,572 28,583 - 347,638 - - 6,378,156

582,340 BM.515 4,774 349,379 24,666,963 113,696,764 218,234,249

27,791 254392 - - 24 755,061 15,239,094 47,751,897

.500 - - T0.000 - 62,337,007 8,508,473

189,785 - 480,729 - - 34,152,361 36,958,428

12,505 - - - - 12,505

- - - - - - 39,394 813

. 1 . = . . 79,853

531,018 - IB8.549 - 6,822,117

288,003 254,392 B69.278 70,000 24,755,061 135,548 462 232,028,086
294,337 550,123 (865 054) 279,379 (85.093) (22,251,698) {13,793,837)

- 37,161 247,500 - 118,339 18.876,558 23,070,602
(286,230) (37,161) - {30,246) (80,156) (13,905,964)

_ . . L : : 201,283

= 5 x - - 161,000

(286,230) - 4T 500 = 28093 18,796 402 9.526,921
8107 550,123 82 446 278379 - (3,455.296) {4,266,916)

2,066,390 13,033,707 I 444,590 1,231 467 - 10.261 184 131,560,901

s 2,074,497 13,583,830 % 1,532,036 5 1510846 8 - % GB05888 & 127593985

(concluded)



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS-
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANTS

February 28, 2003
Federal State and
Grant Local Grant
ASSETS Programs Programs Total
Cash and cash equivalents § 5431318 b 582,301 § 6,013,619
Accounts receivable 67,527,432 3,257,620 70,785,052
Due from other funds 9.922.957 - 9,722,957
Due from other unmits 311,783 - 311,783
Long term notes 1,921,493 - 1.921.493
Inventory 381,679 - 381,679
Total Assets $ 85,296,662 §  3,839921 $89.136,583

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Vouchers payable § 8164274 5 493.337 % 8,657.611
Accrued payroll and compensated absences 818,799 462 809 1,281,698
Due to other funds 66,432,582 1,952,417 68,384,099
Due to other units 3.049.330 - 3,049,330
Deferred revenue 26,389 930,668 957.057
Total Liabilities 74,491,374 3.839.321 82,330,695
Fund Balances:
Reserved 6,805,288 600 6,805,888

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances £ 83,296,662 B 3,839.921 $£89.136,583




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANTS
For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

Federal State and
Grant Local Grant
Programs Programs Total
Revenues-Intergovernmental $ 103,446,828 $ 10,2499346 £ 113,696,764
Expenditures:
Administration of justice 14,326,348 5,132,746 19,459 004
County administration 60,799,017 1,537,990 62.337.007
Health and human services 48,637,103 5,515,258 54,152,361
Total Expenditures 123.762.468 12,185,994 135,948,462
Transfers in 16,940,500 1.936,058 18,876,558
Transfers out (80,156) - (80,156)
Excess of revenues
aver (under) expenditures (3.455.296) - (3,455,296)
Fund Balances, Beginning 10,260,584 600 10,261,184
Fund Balances, Ending § 6805288 8 600 6,805,888
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Debt Service Funds are used to account for payment of principal and interest on County
debt. Debt Service Funds are maintained as follows: Roads Debt Service, Hotel
Occupancy Tax Debt Service, Psychiatric Hospital Revenue Debt Service and Flood
Control District Debt Service.

E O~ <X - T

7 o =87 Ml o Rl






HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE

February 28, 2003

Hotel Psychiatric
Oceupancy Hupspitil Flond
ASSETS Roads Tax Revenue Control Total
Cash and cash equivalents 5 3,592,637 5 1,882 5 870 5 L460,24] b 7,055,630
Investments 30,734,658 - 992919 22455434 54,183,011
Taxes receivable, net 1,656.822 . - 1,381,210 3,038,032
Accounts receivable, net 546,663 594 - 317453 262712
Accrued interest receivable 13,648 - 11,300 9867 34815
D from other fumds 595,311 - - TI2621 1,317,932
TOTAL ASSETS 5 39,139.739 5 2478 5 1,005,089 3 26346826 5 66494132
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Dieferred revenues b 1,636,822 - 5 L3B1.210 5 3.038,032
Due 1o other units - - - 170,659 170,659
De to other funds 19,636 3 5,573 - - 25209
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1676458 3573 1,551 869 3,233,900
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for debt service 37 463,281 {3,093) 5 1005089 24,794,957 63,260,232
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 37,463,281 (3.0935) 1,005 (8% 24,794,957 63,260,232
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 5 39,139.739 z 2478 5 1,005,089 5 26,346,826 5 66494132




REVENUES
Taxes - Property

Interest
Mizcellanecous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Dbt Service;
Principal retirernent
Imterest and fiscal charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Deficiency of Revenues
Under Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from sale of refunding bonds
Other financing sources - premium
Payment to refunding bonds escrow agent

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE

For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

Huotel Psychiatric
Crecupancy Huospital Floud
Ruads Tax Revenue Contral Total

5 36,844 220 5 1,843 § 23506948 §° 60,443 020
418,048 1,509 b (20,9600 442,965 841 862

- 421 1,301,851 200 1,302,472

37262277 4073 1,280,891 24,040,113 62,587,354
11,685,000 1.060,000 1. 180,000 15,979,644 20,584 644
25,625,90) 710,710 169,100 | ¥.635,680 49,141,390
41,310,900 1,770,710 1,329,100 34615324 79,026,034
(4,048,623 (1,766,637) (48,200) (10,575,211} (16,438, 650)
4,355,043 1,760,004 27,057 3.694.053 11,886,153
(469,043) B {27,057) (5,549.563) {6.043,665)

= = x 44,334,000 44,334 000

< - - 1,984,391 1,984,391
= = - (46,086,870} {46,086,870)

3,866,000 1,760,000 - 376,000 4,002,009
(182,623) 16,637) {42.204) (10,199,202) (10,436,671)
37,645,904 3,542 1,053,298 34,994,159 73,696,903

§ 37463281 5 [3.095) 5 1,005,089 & 24704 957 § 62,260,232




Capital Projects Funds are used {o account for bond sale proceeds and other revenues
which are used for the construction and acquisition of major capital projects of the County,
Flood Control District, and the Sporis and Convention Corp.

ROADS - These funds are used for construction and
improvement of roads in the County.

PERMANENT IMPROVEMENTS - Permanent
Improvement bonds are used for purchase, construction
or improvement of office and courts buildings, juvenile
facilities, parks and other public facilities.

RELIANT PARK - These funds are used to account for
construction and/or improvement of facilities in the
Reliant Stadium, Reliant Exposition Center, Reliant
Park Central Plant, and Astrodome Complex.

FLOOD CONTROL - These funds are used to account for
construction  of flood control and drainage
Improvements.
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ASSETS

Cazh and cash equivalents
Paoled cash and Investments
Investments

Acerued interesi

Due from other firds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable
Custorer depogits
Due to ather units
Due 1o other funds
Retainage pavable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for advance from Harris County
Unreserved - designated fiy
capital projects

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBRBINING BALANCE SHEET

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS
Fehroary 28, 2003

Sports and
Permanent Convention Flood

Huouds Improvements Reliant Park Corperation Control Tuotal
5 4536350 = 5 3743745 5 6,843,721 § TORD23% 5 Bo, L1405
39,871,439 $  18.132,756 073,211 = - 63,127,406
14,241,265 130,491,751 = 12,224,833 - 156,957,849
12,908 B48.785 - - 79532 I, 141,625
FAT2 16,997,266 12,000,006 - 58,200 29,059,038
5 57,765,534 § 166,520,558 5 23316956 5 19068554 8§ 71228370 § 338399972
5 5,504 935 5 3,424,842 5 10,384 - 3 B 747942 5 15,088,103
44,863 - - - - 44,403
- - - 208,164 208, 169
3,572 1,437,814 1886391 § 12,000,000 111,314 17,439,593
1,437,208 1,635,981 - - 507,758 3.580.947
7390578 6,405,637 1.897.277 12,0630, 00y 10,575,183 3%.361,675
71043859 110278962 4393779 - 3504519 229,026,119
= - E 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
(20L673,903) 44,742 959 16,525,900 (2931 440) 17,348,668 58012078
30,374,956 160,021,921 20,919,679 7068554 o065, 187 199,038,397
5 57,765.534 166,520,558 § 13816956 5 19068554 § 71238370 §- 338399972




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBEBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS
For The Year Ended February 2§, 2003

Sports and
Fermanent Convention Flomd
Roads Improvements Reliant Park Corporation Contral Total
REVENUES
Imtergovernmenial 511,130,355 5 6046468 - - § BS545268 $ 25722091
Interest TB5.248 2674419 5 375,771 5 114 813 1,524,194 5584465
Miscellancous: 565,962 11,581 . - 3,745,392 4,623,135
TOTAL REVENUES 12,781,565 8,732,768 37571 224833 13,814,854 35,920,791
EXPENDITURES
Administmation of justice - 2423782 = . - 2423782
County administrasion 5,777,536 B 115425 1,880,615 172040 - 16,145,820
Health and human services . 1,010,672 - - - 1010672
Parks - 347,087 - - - 36T ORT
Roads and bridgas 4,803,072 6,025 . - - 4 309 08T
Capatal Outlay 36,605, 647 36,206,522 33,477,788 13,011,378 79,746,329 195,137,664
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 47,186,255 48,219,517 35,358,403 13,383,618 79,746,329 221 894122
Deficiency of Revenuoes
Under Expenditures { 34,404,690} (39,286, 74%) {34,982.632) (13,158,785} (65,931 ,475) [187, 264 331)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Olperating wansfers in . . - - - -
Operating transfers out (3,866,000 (3.034,738) (184,389 . (L 483) {9.24%.615)
Proceeds from capital contributions - - - 4,553,506 - 4555906
Proceeds from loans - - - 15,671,433 - 15671433
Proceeds fhom sale.of capital assers - - - 1,252,409 1252409
Procesds fram sale of bonds - £6, 400,000 33,055,952 - - 119,455,992
Ohther financing eirees - premium = = 2138357 5 s 2,138,357
Proceeds from sale of commercial paper 30,953,000 S2.285.000 37.983,000 - 57,682,000 178,873,000
Tuotal Other Financing Sources {Uses) 27087000 133,600, 262 72,992 960 20,227,539 58,789,921 312,697 482
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (7.317,690) 04,113,513 38,010,328 T068.554 (7.141,554) 124,733,151
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 50LETR,091 65,908 208 (17,090,649 - 67,704,741 16T 4%0,5%]
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFER IN 6214555 - - - - b8 14,555

FUSND BALANCES, ENDING 30,374,956 S160.021.921 5 20919.670  § 7068554 % 60,653,187 $299,038,297

A




Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of
revenues eamed, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public palicy,
management control, accountability, or other purposes

SUBSCRIBER ACCESS - This fund is used to account for the use of computer access to certain District
Clerk and County Clerk records. The mformation is available only to qualified users, and all costs
associated with the program are passed on to the users through user charges.

PARKING FACILITIES - This fund is used to account for the acquisition, operation and maintenance of
parking facilities. These facilities are intended to be financed primarily through user charges.

SHERIFF'S COMMISSARY FUND - This fund is used to account for the operation of a commissary for
jail inmates. In addition, the fund is used to account for inmate monies held in a trustee capacity, from
which inmates can make commissary purchases and from which inmates are required to reimburse the
County for medical services provided to them. The Commissary is funded primarily through profits on
sales of commissary items to inmates.
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HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
February 28, 2003

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Prepaids and other assets
Inventory
Total current assets
MNoncurrent assets:
Land
Buildings
Equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assels
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current liabilities;
Vouchers payable
Accrued payroll and compensated absences
Customer deposits
Other
Due to other funds
Due to other units
Deferred revenue
Current portion of compensatory time payable
Total current liabilities
Noneurrent Ligbilities
Noncurrent perticn of compensatory time payvable
Total noncurrent liahilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of debt
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Sheriff"s
Subseriber Parking Commissary
Access Facilities Fund Total

b 1878 $ 4,727,601 56,602,371 $ 11,333,850
= i 68,702 68,702

56,213 = - 56,213

- = 155266 155,266

60,091 4,727,601 6,826,339 11,614,031

- 3,963,598 3,963,598

- 9,390,823 < $.390.,823

649,207 = 1,872,473 2,521,680
(529.574) (4,158,160) (1.599.,631) (6,2687,365)
119,633 9,196,261 272 842 0,588,736
179,724 13,923,862 7.099.181 21,202 767
4,354 17,569 800,162 822,085
11,185 - - 11,185
167.807 7.573 - 175,380

- - 339,462 339,462

3,647 - - 3,647

- - 1,057,072 1,057,072

18,191 5 - 18,191
1,726 - - 1,726
206,910 25,142 2,196,696 2,428,743

431 - = 431

431 - - 431
207,341 25,142 2,196,696 2429179
119,633 9,196,261 272,842 9,588,736
(147.250) 4,702,459 4,620,643 9,184 852

8§ (27.617) 13,898,720 54,902.485 % 18,773,388




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

Sheriff's
Subscriber Parking Commissary
Access Facilities Fund Total
Operating Revenues:
Sales - - F 5023369 § 5023369
User fees $ 234937 £ 643,404 - 578,341
Total Operating Revenues 234,937 643,404 5,023,369 5,901,710
Operating Expenses:
Depreciation 18,569 169,251 26,933 234,753
Salarieg 45.966 - 200,000 345 966
Services & fees 151,167 10,080 1.457,294 1,618,541
Utilities 54,969 179,545 - 234,514
Administration - - 1,044,763 1,044 763
Materials & supplies 328,136 - 234,771 562,907
Cost of goods sold - - 2,695,854 2,695,854
Total Operating Expenses 618,807 358,876 5,759,615 6,737,298
Operating Income(Loss) (383,870 254 578 (736.246) (835.58R)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest revenue 7.651 232 B68 08.053 338,572
Loss on disposal of fixed asset (19,754) - - {19,754)
Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses) (12,103) 232,868 98,033 318,818
Net Income (Loss) Before Operating
Transfers (395,973} 517,396 (638,193) (516,770)
Operating transfer out - n £
Change in Net Assets {395,973) 517,396 (638.193) {516,770)
Net Assets, Beginning 368,356 13,381,324 5,540,678 19,290,358

Net Assets, Ending $  (27.617) $13.898,720 b 4,902,485 $ 18,773,588




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMEINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Receipts from eustomer
Payment to employees
Payment to vendors
Internal activity - nét payments to other funds
Other receipts (payments)

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Non Capital Financing Activities:
Loan to FT Bend County
Operating transfer to other funds

et cash used for non capital financing activities

Cash Flows From Capital Financing Activities:
Purchases of capital asset
Other payments

Met cash used for capital financing activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments
Interest received

Met cach provided by (used for) investing activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) (o Net Cash
Provide by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustment to reconciie operating income (loss)
ta net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Other nonoperating revenucs (expenses)
Change in current assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Prepaids and other assets
Vouchers payable and accrued liabilities
Other payables
Compensatory time payable

MNet cash provided by operating activities
MNon-Cash Operating, Capital and Related Financing,

And Investing Activities
Capital contnibutions received from other governments

Increase (decrease) in the fair market value of investments

Sheriff"s
Subseriber Parking Commissary

Access Facilities Fund Tuotal
5 234937 5 643404 S 5000300 5 3,968,641
(44.733) = {300,000) (344,733)
(579.190) {189,114) (5,062.507) (5,830,811)
64,451 - (178,106) {113,655)
(324,535) 454,290 (450,313) (320,558)
{45.409) z (250,047) (295.456)
(45,40 - (250,047 (295,456)
7,650 232,868 98,053 338,571
T.650 232,868 98,053 338371
(362,204) GET, 158 (602,307) (277.:443)
360,172 4040443 T.204.678 11,611,293
5 3878 % 4727601 5 6602371 & 113323850
£ (3838700 § 2B4528. % (736.246) 5 (835,588)
38,569 169,251 26,933 234,753
- = f6,931 66931
35,226 - (14,837) 20,389
(43,905) a1 385,012 341,618
26,735 = (178,106) (145,851)
220 . = 220
B O(A24,535) 8 454290 & (450,313 5 (320.358)
b - 5 - 8 = 5 N









Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the governmental unit, or to other
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE - This fund is used to account for the operation of the
County's Vehicle Maintenance Department which is to be financed through user
charges.

STOREROOM SUPPLY - This fund is used to account for the operation of the County's
Purchasing Storeroom Supply which is to be financed through user charges.

RADIO OPERATIONS - This fund is used to account for the operation of County radios
which 1s to be financed through user charges.

INMATE INDUSTRIES - This fund is used to account for the operation of the printing
shop provided by inmates to County departments which is to be financed by user
charges.

RISK MANAGEMENT - This fund is used to account for the County's workers’
compensation, health insurance and other risk management activities. Workers'
Compensation includes medical and indemnity payments as required by law for
on-the-job related injuries. Health Insurance includes the group health insurance
program which includes HMO coverage and comprehensive major medical, dental,
vision care, basic life and disability insurance benefits. Other risk management
activities include coordination of all insurance policies and management of self-insured
risk.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

February 28, 2003

Vehicle Storeroom Radio Inmate Risk
Asgets: Maintenance Supply Operations Industries Management Total
Cash and cash equivalents 5 6,896,843 5 1369043 = B 827607 16,173,719 25,367,212
Investments - - - - 17,864,325 17,864,325
Receivables:
Accounts 15510 485 3 236,655 4,809 177,688 437147
Acerued interest - - = - 127,780 127,780
Due from other funds 78,795 - 2,732 - 2,200,000 2.281,527
Prepaids and other assets - - - - 09,859 0,899
Inventory 241,127 6,775 545,628 - - T93:330
Land 250,000 10,9460 - - = 260,960
Buildings E18,448 71,699 - - - 890,147
Equipment 25,672,024 - 1,334,145 388,172 - 27,304 341
Accurnulated depreciation (15,124,456} {38,426) (1,167.054) (126,860} - (16,476,796)
Total Assets 15,845,251 1,400,536 952 106 1,195,728 37453411 59,850,073
Liabilities:
Vouchers payable 1,578,896 33,997 24,147 [7.270 7,656,543 9,310,853
Accrued payroll and compensated
absences 136,164 - 83,098 - 183,431 402,693
Surplus auction payable - 1,093,862 - - - 1,003 862
Estimated outstanding ¢laims - - - - 16,723,003 16,723,093
Incurred but not reported claims - - + - 5,965,123 5,965,123
Due to other funds - - 1,529.997 - 2,200,000 3,729,997
Deferred revenue B3l 485 470,436 - 292 472,044
Compensatory time payable 67,005 - 33.765 - 50,363 151233
Total Liabilities 1,782,996 1,128,344 2,141 443 17,270 32,778,845 17,848,898
Met Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net 11616016 24,333 167,081 261,312 B 12,068,652
Linrestricted 5,449,279 247,959 {1,356,427) 017,146 4,674,566 9932523
Total Net Assets g 17065295 & 272192 $(1,189336) § 1,175,458 5 4674566 22.001,175




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

Operating Hevenues:

Charges 1o departmenis
Leaze revenue

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Incurred claims
Depreciation
Adirministration
Estimated Claims
Cost of goods sold
Reinsurance premium

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income {Loss)
Nonoperating Hevenues (Expenses):

Interest revenuc{expense)
(3zin (loss) on sale of fixed asse
Refunds and recoveries

Other

Total Nonoperating
Hevenues (Expenses)

Income {Laoss) Before
Operating Transfers

Operating transfers in
Dperating tranafers oul

Change in Net Assels
Net Assets, Beginnlng

Met Assets, Ending

FUND NET ASSETS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For The Year Ended February 25, 2003

Vehilele Storergom Radia Inmate Risk
Maintenance Supply Operations Industries Management

§ 876600 5 2785 £ 392604 S AR5028 § 54,972,168

Tatal

% 105,629,575

5,745,541 - TT5.646 - 6,364,187
15,351,631 2,785 1,171,250 495,928 94,972,168 112,193,762
3 £ Y = 06,4934 953 96,034 053
2,703,055 H69 290,206 14,500 - 3,028,520
6658277 5,394 2,659,831 221228 4,350,400 13935220
. = = : (2,343,5509 (2,343,559
3,288,707 2,380 229,985 : 2 3,521,072
. . - = 691,083 691,083
12,650,039 3,443 3,180,112 255,728 99,672,967 113,767,289
2.901,592 {5.658) (2,008,862) 240,200 (4,700,799 (3.573.527)
43787 17,578 6,105 4022 744,704 816,196
{91.300) ; {14,70%) = 5 (106,005)
L¥TT . - - 319,702 520,879

i (485} 3326 . 360,328 362160

(45,336) 17,093 (6,274} 4,022 1.624.734 1,593,239
2,855,256 11,435 {2.015,136) 244,222 (3.076,065) {1,980,288)
5 - 1,300,000 - 2,500,000 4,300,000

3 = 5 - (2,200,000} (2,200,000
2,455.250 11,435 215,136) 244,222 (2.776,065) 119,712
14,210,039 260,757 {974.200) 934,236 7,450,631 21,881483
§ 17065295 £ 770,197 S (LI189336) 5 LITBASE  § 4674566 S 22001175




Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Beceipts Itom customers
Paymenis o vendors
Paymenis to emplovess
Internal activity-receipls{payments) from (o) other funds
Claims paid
Other receipts/{payments)
Met cazh provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Crperating subsidies and transfers to'from other funds
Wet cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities:
Purchazes of capital assels

Met cash/{used) by capital and related Anancing activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from seles and matunities of mvestments
Interest and Dxdvidends

Met cash provided by investing gctivites

MNet/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivglents - Beginning
Caszh and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Reeonciliation of Operating Income/(Toss) to Net Cash

Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities:
Crperating income/{loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income o net cash
Provided by operating activites:
Drepreciation expense
(rther nom-operating revenues/expenses
Change inassets and habilites:
Recovebles, met
Pre-paids and other asseis
Inventories
Acoounts and other payables
Dreferred revenue
Accrued expenses
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

MNoneash Capital Financing Activities:

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

Vehicle Storeroom Radio ITnmate Risk
Maintenance  Supply Operations  Industries Management Tatal

5 16,586,301 b 2471 F 1,198.915 5 497912 5 95,059,206 § 113351805
(ML260,574) (5,397} (2,382,976) 1220,842) (83,053,221} (98,923.310)
(2,039.196) - (1310,16L) {2.814,153) (6,163,310
- 13,140 1,548,907 - 18,698 1,573,743
= - £ (7.425,995) (7425995)
2,008 - 238,697 - 95,045 1,235,750
4,288.239 16,214 {1, 712,618) 277,070 779,580 1648485
- 1,800,000 - 304,000 2,100,000
- = 1,300,000 - 30K, 0400 2,100,000
{6,1%06,425) - {93,487 (6,711 - (6,296,623)
(6, 196,425) - (93,487 6,711) - {6.296.,623)
- - - (18,147, 168) (IE147,168)
- - - - 14069252 14,965,252
43,787 1577 6,103 4,022 723,029 794,520
43,787 17,577 6,105 4,022 (2454387 (2.333,396)
{1.864,399) 33,791 - 274,381 {1.375307) (2,931,534)
8,761,242 1,335,252 - 633,226 17,549,026 23,208 746
5 6,896,843 51,369,043 5 - 5 027607 5 16,173,719 § 25367212
5 2901592 5 (5638) 5 (2.008862) S5 240,200 5 (4700799 8 (3573527
2,703,055 669 290,296 34,500 - 1,028,530
1,177 {485 2326 - 380,030 BE3.048
1,034,670 {485} 1,594,248 1,985 108293 738,711
- - 172,252 - 22,750 193,002
{4,154} 2,380 {157,640) c - (219.414)
(2,268,681) 19,308 (1,762,544) 385 4,510,041 498,509
331 453 AhAd3 - 292 42,051
{20,251) - 16863 = (41,027 55,585
54288239 & 16214 5 (L,7I2618) 5 217070 0§ 7U0580 0§ 3648483
- - - - % 21675 % 21,675







INMATE PROPERTY — This fund is used to account for jail inmates” properties held in the custody of Harris County
COUNTY PAYROLL - This fund is used as a clearing account for County payrolls:

BAIL SECURITY - Assets pledged by Bail Bond licensees as collateral are accounted for in this fund.

CPS BENEFICIARY TRUST - Established for the purpose of accounting for moneys held in the custody of the County for the
benefit of children residing in Harris County under the conservatorship of the Texas Department of Protective and

Regulatory Services.

OFFICERS' FEES - This fund is used as a clearing fund for fees, fines and court costs collected by Sheriff, County Clerk,
District Clerk, and/or other fee officers of the County,

TAX COLLECTOR'S - Tax collections are deposited in the Tax Collector's agency fund pending audit and distribution 1o the
County or other taxing jurisdiction. Receipts from the sale of beer licenses are deposited in this fund pending approval by
the State Alcoholic Beverage Cormmission,

CUSTODIAL - This fund is used to account for various custodial bank accounts activities,

TREASURER ESCHEAT - This fund is used to account for unclaimed property $100 or less held in the custody of Harris
County,

CRIME VICTIM™S COMPENSATION - This fund is used to aceount for juror service donations in accordance with Texas
Government Code 61,003,

DISTRICT CLERK REGISTRY - Established for the purpose of accounting for moneys held in the custody of the District
Clerk under orders of various Harris County courts.

CouNTY CLERK REGISTRY - Established for the purpose of accounting for moneys held in the custody of the County
Clerk under orders of various Harris County courts.
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HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

District Clerk County Clerk Other Agency Total
Registry Registry Funds Agency Funds
TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 8,530,342 5 12,508,571 § 48,739,547 5 69,784,460
Pooled cash and investments = . 63,718,756 63,718,756
Investments 68,563,315 71,220,145 - 139 785 460
Accounts receivable - - 6,900 &, 900
Accrued interest receivable 675,744 318,519 - 994,263
Due from other funds - S 77,782 77,782
Total Assets 5 77,777,401 5 54,047 235 5 112542085 5 274,367,621
Liabilities:
Due to other funds - - 5 27,490,250 5 27,490,250
Due to other governments 5 71777401 5 24,047,235 85,052,735 246,877,371

Total Liabilities 5 71.777.401 5 84,047,235 3 112,542,985 5 274,367.621







Discretely Presented Component Units are legally separate organizations that, because of the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government, are included in the financial reporiing entity but
shown separately from the primary sovernment's financial activities.

HARRIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION - This organization was established
under the Texas Housing Finance Corporation Act as a separate non-profit corporate entity.
The corporation was created in 1980 by the Commissioner’s Court of Harris County, but it is
not a political subdivision of Harris County under state law. The corporation is exempt from
federal income tax and is authorized to issue debt instruments for the purpose of purchasing
single family home mortgages and providing financing for multifamily projects, both relating to
low and moderate mcome owners/residents.

HARRIS COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION - This corporation was created
in 1931 to approve the issuance of industrial and manufacturing bonds which promote and
encourage employment and the public welfare in Harris County. Its Board of Directors is
appointed by the Commissioner’s Court of Harris County. The corporation is a tax-exempt
entity. Although it may issue debt that Hams County has no oblipation to assume,
Commissioner’s Court must approve the debt issuance.
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HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments; including accrued mterest
Other receivables
Inventories
Restricted cash and investments
Capital assets, net
Other

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts pavable and accrued liabilities
Acerued interest payable

Noncurrent liahilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year
Other

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Capital projects
Donor restrictions

Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

5 6971006

FEBRUARY 28, 2003
Harris County  Harris County
Housing Industrial
Finance Development Total
Corporation Corporation Nonmajor
3 186,736 % 421,224 8 607.960
5,734,985 2,055 5,737,040
746,148 - 746,148
364,906 - 364,906
7.032,775 423,279 7456054
61,769 16,853 78,624
61,769 16,855 78,624
6,971,006 406,424 1,377.430
5 406,424 3 7.377.430




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

Harris County

Harris County Imdustrial
Housing Finance Development
Corporation Corporation Total
Expenses b 246,736 % 23,893 g 270,649
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 1,149,502 - 1,149,592
Operating Grants and Contributions - - -
Capital Grants, Contributions and Other - - -
Taotal Program Revenues 1,149,592 - 1,149 502
Met {Expenses) Program Revenues 002 8306 (23,893) BTE,943
General Revenues (Expenses):
Investment Income - 7,609 7,609
Other (176.519) - (176,519)
Net General Revenues (Expenses) (176,519) 7.609 (168,910)
Change in Net Asscts 726,317 (16,284) 710,033
Net Assets--Beginning 6,244 689 422,708 6,667,397
Net Assets—-Ending 5 6,971,006 5 406,424 £ 7377430
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HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE BY SOURCE
February 28, 2003
Total

Governmental funds capital assets:

Land b 3,399.139,469

Buildings 627,934,577

Infrastructure 9.057.502,628

Equipment 158,877,332

Construction work in progress 246,839,118

Park Facilities 24747 741
Total governmental funds capital assets & 13.,515,040,865

Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source:
General fund 5
Special Revenue fund
Capital Projects fund
Gifts

122,206,184
10,927 824
13,176.,902,349
203,004,508

13,515,040,865

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly; the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from
the above amounts. The capital assets of internal service funds are included within
the governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION
For The Year Ended February 28, 2003

Restated
Balance Balance
Funetion March 1, 2002 Additions Deductions Transfers Fehruary 28, 2003
Administration of justice 5 562872973 b3 3,840,604 5 (922,600 5 - 5 ST0, 700887
Parks 210,033,605 2a16.457 (2.198.744) - 217251318
County admintstrtion 225.604,197 18,319,130 {22 498 645) - 221,224 682
Health and human services 47,522,158 2416031 [2.64],313) - 47,296,876
Tax adminstration 16,769,886 BE934 {13,645) - 846,175
Roads and bridges 10.650,040,1 54 270,343,142 (£9,731,336) - 10,900,656,960
Flood control 1.432.217,152 119934 674 (1,177,859 . 1,540,973, 067
Taotal governmental funds capitaf assets £13,145,060,125 § 429,163,972 § (59183237 3 - 5 13515040865

This schedule presents only the capital asset halances related to governmental finds,
Accordingly, the eapital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from
the above amounts.. The capital assets of intemal service funds are included within
the povernmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

GOVERNMENT-WIDE EXPENSES BY FUNCTION#

February 28, 2003

Administration of Justice
Parks

County Administration
Health and Human Services
Flood Control

Tax Administration

Roads and Bridges

Toll Road

Debt Service

Debt Service Interest

Other Business-Type Activities

TOTAL EXPENSES

* Reporting for government-wide expenses by function began
in fiscal year 2003

Fiscal Year
2003

§ 549453138
37,508,731
311,996,809
142,917,679
23,262,541
20,286,088
413,999 267
180,727 408
1,037
96,327,717
0,737,298

Table 1



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

GOVERNMENT-WIDE REVENUES*®

February 28, 2003

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
Taxes

Investment Income

Other

* Reporting for government-wide revenues by function began
in fiscal vear 2003

Fiscal Year
2003

$ 501,938,797
157,977,289
28,278,436
754,304,121
36,810,266
226,005,414

3 1,705,404,323

Table 2
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HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts in thousands)

(Unaudited)

Table 5

Charges
for Fines and Inter-

Year Taxes Services  Forfeitures governmental Interest Miscellaneous Total

1994 448,454 108,095 19,282 91,001 13,874 48,667 729,373
1995 493,491 121,165 20,324 155,438 19,978 26,151 836,547
1996 558,207 126,363 19,031 111,818 29,650 55,861 900,930
1997 609,952 126,469 19,542 113,703 32,738 38,751 941,155
1998 622,402 130,715 19,731 122,170 37,565 33,854 966,437
1999 658,575 151,430 20,354 136,460 39,176 46,173 1,052,168
2000 677,110 152,764 21,928 146,963 43,584 37,999 1,080,348
2001 665,765 158,126 22,173 166,866 44,499 47.470 1,104,899
2002 714,646 180,883 23,248 195,654 31,945 59,675 1,206,051
2003 759,430 168,333 22,619 193,959 18,048 54,847 L217.236

Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects, and Expendable Trust Funds.
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HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

January 1, 2002

(Unaudited)

(amounts in thousands)

Table 12

Percentape of

Total 2002
2002 Taxable Taxable
Taxpayers Type of Business Valuations (2) Valuation (b)

Exxon Mohbil Corporation Oil; Chermical Plant £3,046,389 1.73 %
Houston Lighting and Power Company Electric Utility 2,012,039 114
Southwestern Bell Telephone Telephone Utility 1,428,158 0.81
Shell Oil Company il Refinery 1,287,819 0.73
Equistar Chemicals Limited Partnership Chemical 1,103,139 0.63
Hines Interests Ltd Partnership Real Estate 976,536 0.55
Lyondell Chemical (il, Chemical Plant 750179 0.43
Oxy Vinlys LP il, Chemical Plant 519,389 0.29
Crescent Real Estate Eeal Estate 495,025 0.28
Compaq Computer Corporation Computers 482,200 0.27
Chevron Phillips Chemical Company Oil, Chemical Plamt 463,732 026
Anhueser Busch Inc. Brewery 436,378 (.25
Crescent Real Estate Equities Real Estate 363,735 0.21
Trizechahn Allen Center LP Real Estate 360,627 0.20
Lyondell-Citgo Refining Co. il Refinery 354,337 0.20

Total 7.98 %

$14,088,702

(a) Amounts shown for these taxpayers do not include taxable valuations, which may be substantial,
attributable to certain subsidiaries and affiliates which are not grouped on the tax rolls with the

taxpayers shown,

{b) Basedon the County's total taxable value as of January 1, 2002



Table 13

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

February 28, 2003
(Unaudited)
Assessed Value of Real Property $177.809.114,000
Assessed Value of All Taxable Property $207,980,339.000

Bonds Issued Under Article IT1, Section 52 of the Texas Constitution:

The County is authorized under Article 111, Section 52 of the State Constitution to issue bonds
payable from ad valorem taxes for the construction and maintenance of roads. There is no
constitutional or statutory limit as to the rate on bonds issued pursuant to such constitutional
provision. However, the amount of bonds which may be issued is limited to 25% of the assessed
valuation of real property in the County.

Debt Limit, 25% of Real Property Assessed Value $£44 452 278.500
Amount of Debt Applicable to Constitutional
Debt Limuit:
Total Bonded Applicable Debt $1,127,015,521
Less Debt Service Funds Cash 100,691.998 1.026.323,523

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN, BONDS ISSUED
UNDER ARTICLE II1, SECTION 52
OF THE TEXAS CONSTITUTION 43,425,954 977

Bonds Issued Under Artiele VIII. Section 9

In addition to unlimited tax bonds, the County may issue statutorily authorized bonds payable from
the proceeds of a limited ad valorem tax provided for in Article VIII, Section 9 of the State
Constitution. Such constitutional provision provides that a county is limited to an ad valorem tax
rate of $0.80 per $100 of assessed valuation for general fund, permanent improvement fund, road
and bridge fund, and jury fund purposes.

Certain of the County 's bonds payable from such limited tax may be issued under the provisions of
Chapter 2, Title 22, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes. The principal amount of all bonds, which may
be issued under the provisions of such Chapter, is limited in the ageregate to 5% of the assessed
valuation. The debt limit under Chapter 2, Title 22 is approximately $10,399,016,950 compared to
applicable bonds outstanding at February 28, 2003 of $-0-.




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
February 28, 2003
(Unaudited)

Bonds Issued Under Article XVI, Section 59:

The Harris County Flood Control District issues bonds pursuant to Article XVL Section 59 of the
State Constitution. No limits are prescribed in such constitutional provision; however, Chapter
407, Acts of 50th Legislature of Texas, Regular Session 1947 provides for a tax limit of $0.30 per
$100 of taxable valuation for operational and debt service funds. A tax of $0.04174 per $100 of

taxable value, which includes $0.01321 per $100 of taxable value for debt service, was levied by
the Flood Control District in tax year 2002.
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HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

Table 15

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL
BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND EXPENDITURES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

(amounts in thousands)

Ratio of
Debt Service
Interest to Total
Fiscal and Fiscal Total Debt  Total Governmental Governmental
Year Principal Charges Service (a) Fund Expenditures(b) Expenditures
1994 S 60,090 5 64876 5 124966 b 241,573 14.85 %
1995 66,500 56,348 122,848 885,105 13.88
1996 77,075 56,083 133,158 896,535 14.85
1997 00,655 54,813 145,468 925,900 15.71
1998 88,235 54,794 143,029 1,013,223 14,12
1999 85,714 53.533 139,247 1,107,518 12.57
2000 55,478 76,410 131,888 1,238,702 10.65
2001 48,905 79,469 128,374 1,344 292 0.55
2002 48 729 76,733 125,462 1,462,415 B.58
2003 46,020 89,135 135,155 1,449,234 .33

(a) Does not include Debt Service on capital lease or certificates of participation.

(b) Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects, and Expendable Trust

Funds.



Table 16
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
ESTIMATED DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT
February 28, 2003

(Unaundited)
Percentage
Applicable To Net Dbt
Mame of Government (Thousands)
County-Wide Jurisdiction:
Harris County (2-28-03) (a) {00 5 1,381,727
Harris County Flood Conirol District (2-28-03) 10000 163,854
Port of Houston Authority { 12-31-03) BO0.00 331,655
Total Connty-Wide Direct Dehi 1.877.266
Citles:
Baytawn {9-30-02) BO.7S % 61,215
Bellaire (9-30-03) L 000 35,957
Bunker Hill Village (1-31-03) 10RO 19273
Deer Park (9-30-02) 100.00 23,559
Houston {62002} 650 1,816,681
Jacinto City (09-30-02) 000 T.258
Fersey Village (9-30-02) [00.00 5.678
Katy (09:30.02) 100,00 6,897
Lo Porte (9-30-02) 100,60 14721
League City (2-30-02) 352 51,070
Missours City (07-30-02) 100,00 29,105
Pasadena (06-30-02) 100,00 52,852
Pearland ((00-30402) .16 62,690
South Houston (9-30-02) [ 0000 10,137
Tomball (9-30-02) 10,00 13,286
Webster (9-30-02} 100.00 22,768
West Unjversity Place (12-2102) 10000 60,682
Cher Cities (b) 1000060 17,757
Sub-Total Cities 2,329,586
Schaol Districts and Junior Colleges:
Aldime (2-28-03) 10000 319,703
Alief (8-31-02) FOL00 251,638
Charmmelview (8-3102) 106,00 25,048
Clear Creek (8-31-02) Al 62 477906
Croshy (3-31-02) 100,00 0,810
Cypress-Fairbanks (2.2343) 10000 665,999
Dreer Park (12-31-02) 10000 04,660
Cralena Park (8-3142) 10000 158214
Goose Creek (8-3 102 B0.04 154,387
Houston (B-31-02) | (0,60 1,299,165
Humble (8-31-02) 100,30 135,657
Katy (8-31-02) Bi.64 801,193
Klein (1-30-02) 1000 224,102
La Porte (8-31-02) 10000 16,473
Morth Forest (8-31-02) 10000 73,257
Muorth Harris Montgomery Community College (8-31-62) 7867 219011
Pasadena {(8-31-02) HEI 281016
Pearland {§-31-02) 235 319234
San Jucinto Junior College {2-28-03) 10,0 101,984
Sheldon (8-31-02) OG0 49,302
Spring (8-31402) LOG.00 247068
Spring Branch (£-31-02) VR 321,647
Tomball (8-31-02) gH.02 125,700
Waller {2-31-02) 100,00 G5.176
Othver Schools (€) 1000 20,508
Sub-Total School Bistrices and Junfor Colleges 6,552,760
Utility Districts (d} 1 D00 1,891,189
Total Overfapping Deli 10,773,535
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt (Estimated 53,557 Per Capita) (e) § 12630801

{a) Includesall Tax Bomds:

(h) Aggresate nel debt of 9 cities, each of which had 2 net debt in 2002 of less than 55,000,000,
{c) Aggregate net debt of 2 schoals, each of which had a net debt in 2002 of fess than $20,000,004.
(d) Estimated aggregate net debt of several hundred utility districts

() Census Bureau populatinn estimated at 3,557,055, Source: Bureau of the Census.




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

REVENUE BOND COVERAGES
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

(amounts in thousands)

Net Revenue

Table 17

Fiscal Gross Available for Debt Service Requirements
Year Revenues  Debt Service  Principal  Interest Total Coverage
HOTEL OCCUPANCY REVENUE BONDS
1994 $ 8076 % 7470 $ 1,880 § 199 § 3,870 1.93
1995 8,602 7,957 2,035 1,851 3,886 2.05
1996 9,174 8,486 2210 1,697 3,907 2.17
1997 10,966 10,144 2,365 1,537 3.902 2.60
1998 13,060 12,081 - 292 892 13.54
1999 15,772 14,589 - 858 858 17.00
2000 15,575 14,407 930 B39 1,769 814
2001 17,038 15,760 970 97 1,767 8.92
2002 18.604 17,209 1.015 756 1,771 9.72
2003 16,875 15,609 1,060 711 1,771 8.81
TOLL ROAD REVENUE BONDS
1995 5 103,578 % 103,578 % -~ & 39,782 S 39,782 2.60
1996 109,502 109,502 - 36,049 36,049 3.04
1997 121,287 121,287 6,663 35.817 42,482 2.86
1998 160,122 160,122 3,840 39,809 45.649 3.51
1999 198,817 198,817 7.355 39,192 46,547 427
2000 218223 218,223 10,200 38,775 48,975 4.46
2001 248 515 248,515 12,125 38,268 50,393 4.93
2002 257,938 257,938 15,045 37,632 32,677 490
2003 256,367 256,367 17.530 55,754 73.284 350




Table 18

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Years

(Unaudited)

Calendar Unemployment
Year Population (a) Rate (b)
1993 2,945,500 7.4%
1994 3,100,000 6.0%
1995 3,130,000 5.4%
1996 3,127,000 5.1%
1997 3,158,095 5.2%
1998 3,206,063 4.0%
1999 3,250,404 4.1%
2000 3,400,578 3.2%
2001 3,460,589 5.7%
2002 3,557,055 5.4%

(a) Source: Bureau of the Census

(b) Source: Texas Workforce Commission.



Table 19

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

PROPERTY VALUES
Last Ten Years
(Unaudited)
(amounts in thousands)

Property Values

Assessed Valoe

Calendar Taxable Taxable

Year Property (a) Exemptions (b) Value

1993 130,844,986 18,117,393 112,727,593
19494 131,289,914 17,533,258 113,756,656
1995 135,082,202 18,342 764 116,739,438
1996 138,587,343 18,461,507 120,125,841
1997 142,133,686 17,850,666 124,283,020
1998 130,707,870 20271,134 130,436,736
1999 163,358,563 22,345,082 141,013,481
2000 179,242,866 25,145.837 154,007 029
2001 196,473,172 28,809,564 167,663,608
2002 207,980,339 31,764,643 176,215,696

(a} Tax exempt property is not included in the property values shown.

(b) The exemptions shown are estimated market values for "over 65" exemptions and other exemptions.
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County Maintained Roads
(Miles):

Concrete

Hard Surface

Stabilized

Dirt

Gravel and Shell

Bridges
Underpasses
Overpasses

TOTAL

Number of Employees:
County
Flood Control District

Students Enrolled in Colleges
and Universities Located
within the County:
Baylor College of Medicine
Houston Baptist University
Houston Community College
North Harris Montgomery
Community College
Rice University

Table 21

San Jacinto College - Central, South,

North and Clear Lake Campuse

HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA
February 28, 2003
(Unaudited)

Precinct 1  Precinct2 Precinet3 Precinct4 Combined
295.81 453.16 990 86 1,789.61 3.529.44
111.90 161.98 412.37 561.78 1,248.03

998 19.66 10.74 35.60 T598
93,71 5275 51.53 34,17 25216
176.91 347.92 55.00 200 .95 TEO.TR
G831 1,035.47 1,520.50 265111 5,895.39

1.09 8.10 327 7.81 20.27

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.26 0.13 0.00 3.0 3.40

1.35 523 3.27 10.52 23.67
689.66 104370 152377 266193 _ 5.919.06

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
14,004 13,926 13.604 13,056 13,225

279 291 267 276 265
12,061 11,206 1,199 1,186 1,17%
2,745 2.829 1,970 1,830 2,400
52205 53,565 49 52) 51.464 52,245
34.306 29,503 26451 24 602 22.010
4. 785 4 529 4372 4.390 4 401
23,544 22745 21,991 19.575 18,429
1,240 1.250 1.231 1,204 1,250

South Texas College of Law

(Continued)



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA

February 28, 2003
(Unaudited)
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Texas Southern University 9,739 8,115 6,886 6,522 6,316
Texas Woman's University -
Houston Center 967 928 830 751 850
University of Houston -
Un‘lvcl‘sit}“ Park 34,443 33,007 32123 32,651 32,296
Downtown 10,528 9,704 8.951 8,712 8.325
Clear Lake 7,754 7.738 7,559 7.096 6,806
University of St. Thomas 5,154 2.900 2.897 2,774 2,696
University of Texas -
Dental Branch 413 414 374 379 77
Graduate School of Biomedical
Sciences 465 443 417 424 461
Medical School 825 8§29 816 831 834
Health Information Sciences 62 64 45 36 14
School of Nursing 683 646 581 578 576
School of Public Health 886 890 910 922 878
TOTAL STUDENTS 202 805 191,305 169,143 165,927 162,342
2000 1996 1992 1988 1984
Voting in Presidential Elections (a):
Registered Voters 1,886,661 1,597.211 1,337,405 1.266,665 1,223,724
Votes Cast 995,631 871,656 958,234 833479 887,401
Percentage of Registered Voters
Voting 52.77% S4.57% T1.65% 65.80% 72.52%

(a) Source: Harris County Clerk.



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA

February 28, 2003
(Unaudited)
oL B oo Rl o e s S 1837
Formn 6EGOvemment - . « s i snis S il S i s A public corporation and political
subdivision of the State of Téxas
ATOH - SRR IR | oot s S e R s T T e e e e e 1,778
Precinet Square Miles
I 308.8
2 4172
3 466.0
4 585.9
Total | 1,777.9 |
Altitude: KRR o4 sy i i b e e s S TS Sea level to 310 feet
A O H RSN - s s e R Center of downtown area: 41 feet
City of Harris
Year Houston County
Population: 1860 4,843 9,070
1870 9332 17.375
1880 16,513 27,985
1890 27,557 37,249
1900 44 633 63,786
1910 78,800 115,693
1920 138,276 186,667
1930 202 352 359,328
1940 384,514 528,961
1950 396,163 806,701
1960 938219 1,243 158
1970 1,232,802 1,741,912
1980 1,594,086 2,409,544
1990 1,632,833 2,818,195
2000 1,865,605 3,400,578
Motor Vehicle Registrations
December 31
1998 [ 1999 | 2000 I 2001 | 2002
Passenger Cars,
Small Trucks & Misc. 2,520,804 2,604,602 2,605,113 2741286 2,780,227
Large Trucks 27,493 31,311 25573 25,074 22,101
Total 2,548,357 | 2,635,913 2,630,688 2,766,360 2,802,328




Table 22
Harris County, Texas
Table of Tax Rates
(Unaundited)

The following table shows the ad valorem tax rates per $100 of assessed value levied by the County for
cach of the years 1998 through 2002. The tax year of the County is the calendar year. In addition to the
County’s ad valorem taxes, the Commissioners Court levies taxes on property in the County on behalf of the
Harris County Flood Control District, the Port of Houston Authority and the Harris County Hospital District.
The County Tax Assessor-Collector collects ad valorem taxes for the Harris County Flood Control District, the
Port of Houston Authority and the Harris County Hospital District using the same property values as the
County, except that the rolling stock of railroads and intangible properties of railroads and certain common
carriers are taxable only by the County.

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

County: Operating Fund d 033338 $ 033606 3 032599 S 035780 § 037748

Debt Service (L03056 002368 0.01772 0.01930 0.01541
Total $0.80 Limited Tax Rate 0.36594 0.35974 0.34371 0.37710 0,30584
Road Bond Debt Service

(Unlimited Tax Rate) 0.02220 0.02419 0.01531 0.01773 0.02071
Toll Road Authority Tax Bond

Debt Service (Unlimited Tax Rate) (a) - - - . -
Total County Tax Rate $ 038814 5 038303 § 035902 § 039483 8 0.41660
Harmis County Flood Control District (h) 5 00474 5 004758 % 006173 0§ 008000 % 0.08000
Port of Houston Authority Debt Service (c) 0.01989 0.01826 0.012830 0.02040 (102132
Harris County Hospital District (d) 0:1921 0,19021 0.20268 0. 14650 0.12381

Taotal County-wide Ad Valorem Tax Rate MﬁEQ’QE $ !}.639*)’8_ 5 064173 b 064173 b U,ﬁﬂg

(a) The County’s policy and practice has been to provide for payment of debt service on the Toll Road Authority Tax
Bond debt from toll revenues and certain other funds, and no tax has to date been collected to provide for such debt
service. (See COUNTY AD VALOREM TAX DEBT — Table of Tax Debt Outstanding.)

(b) The ad valorem tax rate that the Commissioners Court may levy on behalf of the Harris County Flood Control District
is limited by law to a maximum of $0.30 per $100 of assessed value.

(¢) The ad valorem tax rate that the Commissioners Court may levy on behalf of the Port of Houston Authority to pay
that authority’s tax bonds is by law unlimited.

(d) The Harris County Hospital District ad valorem tax rate is limited to $0.75 per $100 of assessed value. The tax rates
for 1998 — 2002 were for maintenance and operation only,



Table 23
Harris County, Texas
Table of Assessed Values and Tax Rates
(Unaudited)

The following table shows the County’s assessed values and tax rates for each of the years 1993

through 2002. Taxable property is assessed at 100% of the appraised value as established by the
Appraisal District.

(a)

Taxable Value as of January 1

Total Taxable Total County Tax

Real Personal Value Rate per 5100 of
Tax Year Property (a) Property (a) (b) (¢} Taxable Values
(Amount m Thousands)
1993 5 88723659 5 24003934 112,727,593 5 0.33854
1994 93,505,892 2,250,764 113,756,656 0.36281
1995 94,521,982 22217456 116,739,438 0.40683
1996 96348911 23,776,930 120,125,841 0.42768
1997 100,182,840 24,100,180 124,283,020 0.41866
1998 105,180,892 25255844 130,436,736 0.41660
1999 114,051,126 26,962,355 141,013 481 0.39483
2000 125,699,404 28,397,625 154,097,029 0.33902
2001 138,032,592 29,631,016 167,663,608 0.38393
2002 146044471 30,171,225 176,215,696 (d) 0.38814
MNet of exemptions.

(b) The County, either by action of the Commissioners Court or through a process of petition and referendum initiated

(e)

by its residents, may grant partial exemptions for residential homesteads of persons 65 years or older and of certain
disabled persons. The Commissioners Court granted an exemption of residential homesteads for persons 65 years of
age or older and disabled persons of up to $156,240 of assessed value for 2002. If requested, the County must grant
cxemptions to disabled veterans or certain surviving dependents of disabled veterans or of persons who died while on
active duty 1n an dollar range of $5,000 to $12,000 of assessed value, depending on the extent of the disability. The
County may also authorize exemptions of up to 20% of the value of residential homesteads from ad valorem
taxation. The Commissioners Court granted a 20% exemption for 2002, If ad valorem taxes have been pledged for
the payment of debt prior to the adoption of any such partial exemptions, taxes may be assessed and collected against
the exempt value of such homesteads if the cessation of the levy against such exempt value would impair the
obligation of the contract by which the debt was created.

The County and certain taxing units located within the County may enter into tax abatement agreements to encourage
economic development. Under such agreements, a property owner agrees to construct certain improvements on its
property. The County or taxing unit (as applicable) in tum agrees not to levy a tax on all or part of the increased
value attributable to the improvements until the expiration of the agreement. Such abatement agreement may last for
a period of up to 10 years. The estimated value of property in the County that was subject to tax abatement on
February 16, 2003 is approximately 52.0 billion and, such value at the end of the abatement period is currently
estimated to be approximately $2.1 billion. Assessed value [igures herein are net of abatements.

(d) Estimates as of February 28, 2003 based upon HCAD tax supplement as of February 16, 2003,




Table 24

Harris County, Texas
Table of Tax Levies, Collections and Delinquencies
(Unaudited)
(Amounts in Thousands)

The table below sets forth a comparison of the ad valorem taxes levied and collected by the County for
the tax years 1993 through 2002,

Current Percent Percent of
Total Tax of Delinquent Total Total

Tax Tax Collection Current  Collections Tax Collection Personal Real

Year Levy (2) Levy ()] Collections o Levy Property Property
1993 § 382951 § 360112 94.0 % 5 10910 § 371,022 96.9 % § 17249 § 350417
1994 412,753 383,577 92.9 5,638 392,235 95.0 28,721 33,063
1995 470,279 430,506 91.5 13,198 443,704 943 23,488 36,778
1996 511,574 481,795 4.2 15,096 496,891 97.1 19341 36,769
1997 518,449 485482 93.6 14315 499,797 96.4 20,173 36702
1598 543,778 508,547 93.5 13.975 522,522 96.1 19,853 37,204
1999 557352 523,143 939 14,868 338011 06.5 20367 39248
2000 553216 31377 96.1 16,469 347,846 99.0 19,858 38,574
200 643,711 600,958 93 4 16,842 617,800 96.0 20417 30,498
2002 62,975 637,181 933 20,317 657,498 96.3 21,932 40,350

(a) Current Tax Collection is defined as taxes levied in any year which are collected beginning October 1 of such year
through June 30 of the following year are shown as current collections. Such amounts include that portion of the
current levy coalesced on or after February 1, which is the date taxes become legally delinquent. The amounts in this
column are reflected as of February 28/29 of the fiscal year for that tax year.

(b) Collections for prior years’ levies of taxes during the period beginning July 1 of the year shown and ending on June
30 of the following year are shown as delinquent collections which apply to prior tax years and are collected for
multiple tax years. The accumulation of all unpaid ad valorem taxes which were due at the end of the collection
period begimning on July 1 of the year shown and ending on June 30 of the following year is shown as delinquent
taxes receivable. The County is barred from bringing suit for collection of delinquent personal property taxes after
four years from the time such taxes become delinquent. Real property taxes, until paid, constitute a lien against the
property. The County is barred from bringing suit for collection of delinquent personal property and real property
taxes annually. As of August 26, 1991, pursuant to Section 33.05, subsection (c) of the Property Tax Code. the
County Tax Assessor-Collector is required to cancel and remove from the delinquent tax roll a tax on real property
that has been delinquent for more than 20 years or a tax on personal property that has been delinquent for more than
10 years. The delinquent taxes may not be canceled if litigation concerning the taxes is pending.

{(c) As of February 28, 2003,



Table 25

Harris County, Texas
Table of Tax Debt Outstanding

(Unaudited)
County’s Total
Qutstanding

Long-term Debt (a)
Limited Tax Debt b 801,176,628
Unlimited Tax Bonds 394,369,962
Toll Road Tax Bonds 732,645,558
Total $  1,928,192,148
Less: Toll Road Tax Bonds (732,645,558)
Total (Approximately 0.57% of 2002 Assessed Value) §  1,195,546,590

(a) Excluding Flood Control District debt. Amounts expressed at gross value, not
considering unamortized premium or discount or accretion of compound interest
bonds.



Tahle 26
Harris County, Texas
Table of Historical Tax Debt Outstanding
(Unaudited)

The following table sets forth the County’s ad valorem tax debt outstanding, as of the
end of the Fiscal Years 1993-94 through 2002-2003,

County’s Outstanding as Debt Per Capita
Fiscal Debt a Percentageof  Estimated Outstanding  Excluding
Year _ Outstanding  Taxable Valug (a) Taxable Value  Population (b) Per Capita  Toll Road

(thousands) (thousands)

1994 $ 1,159,148 $ 112,727,593 1.03% 2,945,500 $ 34 § 210
1995 1,531,048 113,756,656 1.35 3,100,000 494 220
1996 1,553,577 116,739,438 1.33 3,130,100 496 222
1997 1,652,743 120,125,841 1.38 3,127,000 529 259
1998 1,589,391 124,283,020 1.28 3,158,005 503 240
1999 1,595,308 130,436,736 1.22 3,206,063 498 243
2000 1,563,517 141,013,481 L.11 3,250,404 481 236
2001 1,572,795 154,097,029 1.02 3,400,578 3 235
2002 1,640,580 167,663,608 0.98 3,460,589 474 257
2003 1,928,192 176,215,696 1.09 3,557,055 542 336

(a) Taxable values are net of exemptions and abatements. Property is assessed at 100% of
appraised value.
(b) Source: Bureau of the Census.



Table 27
Harris County, Texas
Table of Estimated County-Wide and Overlapping Ad Valorem Tax Debt
(Unaudited)

In addition to the taxing entities mentioned above, approximately 30 cities, towns and
villages, 25 independent school districts, three junior college districts and approximately 300 utility
districts are empowered to levy taxes on property within the County.

The following summary of estimated outstanding ad valorem tax debt of taxing entities in
Harris County was compiled by the County’s Financial Advisor from a variety of sources, including
Texas Municipal Reports as compiled and published by the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas.
The table reflects bonds outstanding as of various dates. Certain entities listed below may have
issued substantial amounts of bonds since the latest available datz and may have capital
improvements programs requiring the issuance of a substantial amount of additional bonds.

Long-Term Debt
QOutstanding
{Amounts in Thuusa-nds]

County-wide Taxing Entities:

Harris County (a) $1,195,547

Harris County Flood Control District 92,090

Port of Houston Authority 297,364 51.585.001
Cities:

Houston (b) 1,121,951

Other cities (c) 373.583 1,495,534
School Districts: (c)

25 Independent School Districts and three Junior College Districts 3,666,860
Utility Districts (d) 1,990,027

Total $8,737.422

(a) Excludes $732,645.558 of Toll Road Tax Bonds as of February 28, 2003. The County’s policy
and practice has been to provide for payment of debt service on the outstanding Toll Road Tax
Bonds from toll revenues and certain other funds, and no tax has to date been collected to provide
for such debt service.

(b) Includes ad valorem tax bonds of utility districts assumed by the City of Houston and certain
contract tax obligations substantially equivalent to ad valorem tax bonds.

(c) Aggregate net debt as estimated by the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas as of various dates
for 26 other cities (not including the City of Houston) located within the County, 24 independent
school districts and three junior college districts.

(d) Aggregate net debt as estimated by the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas as of various dates
for several hundred utility districts in the County with tax debt outstanding.



Harris County, Texas

Table of County-Wide Authorized but Unissued Bonds

(Unaudited)

Table 28

As of February 28, 2003, the following County-wide ad valorem tax bonds
authorized by the voters at elections held in September, 1983, November, 1987,
November, 1989, November, 1993, November, 1997, and November, 2001 remain

unissued.

The table reflects the County’s use of voted authority when it issues general
obligation commercial paper notes pursuant to its Series B (parks and libraries) and

Series C (roads and bridges) programs.

The table also shows Port of Houston Authority $201,000,000 ad valorem tax
bonds that were authorized by the voters at elections held in November, 1989, November,
1993, and November, 1997 but remain unissued. Harris County has no legal

responsibility for repayment of these bonds.

County Ad Valorem Tax Bonds
Limmted Tax:
Certificates of Indebtedness for Fire Fighting Facilities § 5,000
Libraries 15,000
Civil Justice Center 24,000
Parks 67,000
Total Limited Tax Bonds
Unlimited Tax:
Road Bonds 712,000
Total Unlimited Tax Bonds
Combination Unlimited Tax and Revenue:
Toll Roads 17,673
Total Unlimited Tax and Revenue Bonds
Harris County Flood Control District Limited Tax Bonds
Total Harns County Ad Valorem Tax Bonds
Port of Houston Authority Unlimited Tax Bonds
Port Improvements 317,000
Deepening and Widening of Houston Ship Channel 25,700

Total Port of Houston Authority Bonds

Total Authorized but Urissued Bonds

$ 111,000

712,000

17,673
95,000

935,673

342,700

$ 1278373



Table 29
Harris County, Texas
Table of Current Investments
(Unaudited)

The following percentages of the County’s investible funds were invested in the
following categories of investments as of February 28, 2003. The average remaining
maturity of such investments was 136 days.

U. S. Government Securities 72%
Commercial Paper 14%
Money Market Mutual Funds 12%
Municipal Securities 2%

Total 100%



Table 30
Harris County, Texas

Table of Employees
(Unaudited)

The number of employees of the County at fiscal years ended 1999 through 2003,
are set forth below:

Fiscal Year Ended February 28/29

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
General Administration 2,627 2,817 2,758 2,612 2,447
Administration of Justice 8,115 8,177 8,054 7.820 6,931
Taxation 450 468 460 458 505
Roads and Bridges 752 736 716 677 1078
Other 2,339 2,019 1,883 1,765 2,529
Total (a) 14,283 14,217 13,871 13,332 13.490

(2) As of February 28, 2003, it is estimated that approximately 2,539 of the County’s
employees were members of various labor organizations, some of which are unions
affiliated with the AFL-CIO. The County does not maintain collective bargaining
agreements with any unions.



Table 31

Harris County, Texas
Table of Retirement System Employer Contributions
(Unaudited)

The employer contributions to the System by the County and the District for the
fiscal years 1999 through 2003, are summarized as follows:

FY2003 FY2002 FY2001 FY2000 FY1999

Employer
Contributions $56,254,388  $48.448052 $47.979.693  $42.746,936 $37,977,561



Table 32

Harris County, Texas
Table of Operating Funds Budget for the County’s Fiscal Year 2003-2004
(Unaudited)

On February 18, 2003 the Commissioners Court adopted the budget for the
County for the Fiscal Year 2003-2004. The Fiscal Year 2004 Budget included
appropriations for some capital projects, which are financed from current revenues. The
following is a summary of the Fiscal Year 2003-2004 Budget for the County’s Current
Operating Funds:

Cash Balance at March 1, 2003 $ 220,120,000
Estimated Revenues:
Ad Valorem and Miscellaneous Taxes 601,650,523
Charges for Services 163,801,375
Fines and Forfeitures 21,304,107
Intergovernmental Revenues 10,420,050
Interest 4,500,000
Other 49,537,251
Total Cash and Estimated Revenues g 1,080,733,306
Appropriations; -
Current Operating Expenses $ 1,015235,125
Capital Outlay:
Roads 56,617,340
Parks 5.880.841
Total Appropriations $ 1,080,733,306




Table 33
Harris County, Texas
Table of County Capital Projects Funds Budgeting
(Unaudited)

County Capital Projects Funds are used to construct roads, office and court buildings, jails,
juvenile home facilities, parks and libraries. Cash and investments on hand in the Capital Projects
Funds at February 28, 2003 derived from the sale of bonds and the investment income thereon, are
designated to be spent over a period of several years for the following purposes:

Roads 5 57,749,054
Permanent Improvements 148,674,507
Flood Control 70,890,238
Reliant Park 30,885,510

Total 5 308,199,309




Table 34

Harris County, Texas
TABLE OF OUTSTANDING TOLL ROAD SENIOR LIEN REVENUE BONDS
(Unaudited)

The Series 1994 Refunding Bonds, Series 1994-A Bonds, Series 1997 Bonds and
Series 2002 Bonds are referred to as the “Senior Lien Revenue Bonds”.

QOutstanding
Principal
Amount as of
Issue February 28, 2003
Harris County, Texas,
Toll Road Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 1994 8 518,635,000
Harris County, Texas,
Toll Road Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 19944 5,100,000
Harris County, Texas,
Toll Road Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 1997 64,205,000
Harris County, Texas,
Toll Road Senior Lien Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2002 397,520,000

TOTAL 3 985,460,000




Table 35
Harris County, Texas
TABLE OF OUTSTANDING TOLL ROAD TAX BONDS
(Unaudited)

The Series 1985 Tax Bonds, Series 1991 Bonds, Series 1992 Bonds, Series 1994B-H Tax
Bonds, Series 1995A Tax Bonds, Series 1997 Tax Bonds, Series 2001 Tax Bonds and
Series 2002 Tax Bonds are collectively referred to as the “Toll Road Tax Bonds™.

Outstanding
Prineipal Amount
Issue Dated Issued at February 28, 2003
Harris County, Texas, Toll Road Unlimited
Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue
Bonds, Series 1985 <. ool April 1985 B 1,493,266
Haris County, Texas, Toll Road Unlimited
Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue
Refinding Bonds, Series 1985-F ............ July 1985 467,258
Harris County, Texas, Toll Road Unlimited
Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series, 1991 .............. April 1991 4,395,000
Harris County, Texas, Toll Road Unlimited
Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue

Refunding Bonds,
BeAE IBOREN i e February 1992 6,820,000
Series 1992-B. ..o February 1992 1,277 488

Harris County, Texas, Toll Road Unlimited

Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue

Bonds, Series 19944 ..o Apnl 1994 80447 546
Harris County, Texas, Toll Road

Unlimnited Tax and Subordinate Lien

Revenue Adjusiable/Fixed Rate Bonds;

Refunding Bonds, Series 1994 B-H ... October 1994 321,500,000
Harris County, Texas, Toll Road Unlimited

Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenye

Refunding Bonds, Series 19954 ............ September 1995 1,200,000
Harris County, Texas, Toll Road Unlimited

Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue

Refunding Bonds, Series 1997 ... August 1997 152,045,000
Harris County, Texas, Toll Road Unlimited

Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue

Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 .............. May 2001 120,740,000
Harmis County, Texas, Toll Road Unlimited

Tax and Subordinate Lien Revenue

Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 . ............. Movember 2002 42,260,000
TOTAL b 732,645,558
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Harris County, Texas

Single Audit Reports for the Year Ended
February 28, 2003




Dredoitte & Touthe LLP
Euite 2300

333 Clay Street

Houston, Texas 770024195

Tel {7131 9522000
Faw! {713} 982-20m

Deloitte
& Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE AWARD PROGRAM AND ON THE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

County Judge Robert Eckels and
Members of Commissioners Court of
Harris County, Texas:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Harris County, Texas (the “County™), with the types of
compliance requirements described in the US. Office of Management and Budget ("OMB")
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs
and major state programs for the year ended February 28, 2003, The County’s major federal
programs and major state programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs and major state programs is the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the County's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of comphiance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. ‘An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Qur audit
does not provide a legal determination on the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, mn all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs and major state programs for the
year ended February 28, 2003.

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu




Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County 15 responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to federal programs and state programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the
County’s intemnal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program and a major state program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a
major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control
that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. We noted no matters
mvolving the internal control over compliance and 1ts operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the County Judge and
Commissioners Court members, management, federal and state awarding agencies, and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Do « Towele kP

October 10, 2003




Defoitts & Touche LLP
Suire 2300

333 Clay Street

Hawston, Texas 7 7002-4106

Tk (7131 982-2000
Faxs (77.3) GE2-2001

Deloitte
& Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
BASED UPON THE AUDIT PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

County Judge Robert Eckels and
Members of Commissioners Court of
Harris County, Texas:

We have audited the basic financial statements of Harris County, Texas (the “County™) as of and
for the year ended February 28, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated October 10,
2003. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component units
which statements reflect total assets of $730,979,193 as of their respective balance sheet dates
and total revenues of $886,451,673 for the year then ended. We also did not audit the financial
statements of the Harris County, Texas County Clerk Trust Funds and the Harris County, Texas
Distriet Clerk Court Registry Funds, which statements reflect total assets of $161.824,636 at
February 28, 2003. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports
expressing unqualified opinions have been furnished to us, and our opinion on the financial
statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for discretely presented component units,
the Harris County, Texas County Clerk Trust Funds and the Harris County, Texas District Clerk
Court Registry Funds, is based on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the detérmination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of
noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards which is
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 03-01. -

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu




Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one
or more of the mternal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the County Judge and
Commissioners Court members, management, federal and state awarding agencies, and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

M“ Tyecle Ll

October 10, 2003




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

Fund
Mo

T015
020
TO30
7040
TOT0
7105
7106
¥130
7140
TIS0
7200
7230
TeH0
TI2007150

1 0
2610
TOE0
8480
8565
8583
8593
8395
8822

7595
7705
2410
8520
8760
E711
8060

Federal Grantor /
Pass-Through Agency
Grantor / Program

FEDERAL GRANTS

RTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBA
DIRECT PROGRAMS:

Lead Base Faint Hazard Control in Privately Owned Houses
Suppaortive Housing Program

Family Seif Sufficiency Prepram Coordinator Grant
Assisted Housing Program - Certificates

CDA County Wide Services

Rural Initiative-Scif Enhancement (RISE)

Wealth Building Iniuative SeIf Enhancement (WISE)
Emergency Shelter Grant Program

HOME Investment Pammearship Program

HECDA Rehabilitation Loan Program

Shelter Care Flus Program

CDA - Capital Projects

Community Development Block GrantEntitlement Grants
Community Development Block GrantEntitlement Grants

CFDA
Number

PMENT

14500
14:235
[4.218
14871
14218
14218
14.218
14231
14.239
14.238
14238
14.218
14.218
14218

TOTAL U.S DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

LS. DEPFARTMENT OF JUSTICE

DIRECT PROGRAMS, OFFICE OF JUSTICE:

State Criminal Alien Assistance Program

Sherifl Sewxed Assets - Justice Department
Juvenile Acct. Incentive Block Grant (JAIRG)
LLEBG-Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
COPS - In School Program

COPS - Universal Hiring Program

Woeed & Seed

Aldine Weed & Secd

Closed Circuit Tefevising of Testimony of Children

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, OFFICE OF THE
GOVERNOR, CRIMINAL JUSTICE DIVISION:

MNew Choices

Praject Spotlight

Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

Domestic Yiolence Linit

Cazeworker Intervention Expansion Project
Protective Order Prosecotor Project

Police Truming for Vielent Crimes Against Women

See notes o schedule

16606
16000
16.523
16:592
16:710
16.710
16.595
16,595
l66l]

16,593
16,523
16.593
16,588
16588
16588
16,588

Pass-Throogh Amount
Entity Identifving Federal Frovided to
Number Expenditures  Subrecipients
5 I 8 518259
1,156,401 1,156,395
5,079
9,794 681 41,953
17,518
3155
17,972
246,594 197,190
2,066,219 1,725,967
18,713
1253440 1,253,440
571
6,702,526 4.776,161
9.828.951 4,149,127
31,813,920 13,813,453
5,235,529
1,149,223
1,318,399 7500
6,209,145 321,431
305,551
136,171
178,210 100,469
13,825
99,842 99,842
RT-97-A23-14878-02 579,621 282670
IB-00-120-16414-08 612,018 133,474
RT-57-A10-14878-02 350,593 i
WE-99-V30-13456-02 43,317
WE-99V30-13454.03 61,732
WE-S9-\30-13547-02 44, 600
WEF-99-V4-1 345502 64,613

{Continued)




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

B4

8525

7o

ET78

8530

8851
BR&S
BRED
BRES
BR95

E320

1.5, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE (Continued)

Federal Grantor /
Pass-Through Agency
Grantor / Program

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, CRIMINAL JUSTICE

POLICY COUNCIL:

Court 1) and Fingerprint Reporting

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMSE, BUREAL OF ALCOHOL,

TOBACCO, FIREARMS AND EXPLOSIVES;

(iR EAT. Program

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, HARRIS COUNTY

JUVENILE BOARD:

Caze Management Sves JJAEP CPS

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, TEXAS DEPARTMENT
OF PUBLIC SAFETY:

Mo Suspect Casework DNA Backlog Reduction Program

PASSE THROUGH PROGRAMS, CITY OF BAYTOWN:

Harris County Organized Crime & Narcotics Task Foroe

TOTAL LS. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

1.5, DEPARTMENT OF TRANS

RTAT

N

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, TEXAS DEPARTMENT
OF TRANSPORTATION:

Crime Analyst (STEP)

DWW STEP

Mat:onal Maximum Speed limst

Comprehensive Selective Traffic Enforcement (STEPF)

Bafe & Sober Step

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

I.5. DEPA

ENT DF AGR!

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, TEXAS DEFARTMENT

OF HEALTH:

WIC Supplemental Feeding

See notes w schedole.

Number

16.554

21.053

16000

16564

16:579

206400
200600
20,600
20,600
20,500

10.557

Pass-Through
Entity Identifying
Nuomber

Live Scan

ATCO3000116,78%

JA59-072-14776

N/A

DBO-AT0-12019-02

I-T6-0454514-2-1 64
SEOXMKTFS010
SETXXFS009/23
1-76-04545148-171
SEEXNF5015

Tolas4514900-11

Expenditures

5

Federal

407,500

25,009

217,942

1.26%,147

Amount
Provided to
Subrecipients

18.419.033

345,406

10,922
18,746
51,785
125,019
118617

325,089

4,318,543

35,161

(Continuad)




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

Fund
Mo

1000
1000

B0
EOSS
B180
B200
B205

8030
8060
8070

B0
8110
8130
8140
5145
3150
B165

1000
007
7065
8045

Federal Grantor /
Pass-Through Agency
Grantor { Program

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, TEXAS DEPARTMENT
OF HUMAN SERVICES:

. 5 Department of Agriculture
Metional School Breakfast Program
Mutional School Breakfast Frogram
National School Lunch Program
Wetional School Lunch Program

TOTAL U5 DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

ENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN CES

DIRECT PROGRAMS:

Basic Center Program for Runowey and Homeless Youth
Childhood Lead Poison

TDH Vaccine-Medical Records

Eyan White Title I - Formula & Supplemental
Community Access Program

FASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, TEXAS DEPARTMENT
OF HEALTH:

Oifice of Regional Program

Refugee Health Screening Program
Immunization Actton Plan

Tuberculosis Elmination Divis
Tuberculosis PC

Family Planning

State Legalization Impact Assistance Grant
HIV-Prevention

5T. Louis Encephalitis - LTTMB

HIV PCPE/HERR-Counseling

Public Health Preparedness and Response for Biotemorism

FASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, TEXAS DEPARTMENT
OF PROTECTIVE AND REGULATORY SERVICES:

TITLEIV-E CPS

TITLEIV-E LEGAL SERVICES
TITLE IV-B

S5TAR Program

TOTAL .5 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES

See notes to schadule

CFDA
MNuomber

10.553
10.553
10,555
10.555

53.623
93.197
93268
93914
93252

23,591
93576
53,268
93116
23116
93.217
93.565
93.540
93856
93.940
93.003

93.658
93658
93.556
93536

Pass-Through

Entity Identifying
Number

TX101-2010
TX101-2009
101-0B64
1010284

ToO4545149402-04
To04545149402-08
Ta04545149A02-06
Ta04345149A02-02
TEOIFA5149A02-03
Tel4545149A02-07
CON0533
THO4543 14980301
-3
TED4545149A02-12
TE04545149 2003

S4RR0504
2003063077
23150830
23198288

Amount
Federal Provided to
Expenditures  Subrecipients
% 947758
28573
1,691
42,053
5,338,658 35 161
119,542 £ 118313
274,847 5,563
2679260 2,679 260
20,123,923 18,072,960
256,545 116,943
168,700
405 807 107,196
540 574 303
105,107
40,909
1,604 261 16,242
83767
301,091
30,829
382 985 769
483,276
1,792,372
400,974 959
212,260 133474
223,700 280
INEINIEY 21253282

{Continued)



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

Federal Grantor /

Fund Pass-Through Agency CFDA
M. Grantor ! Program Number
OFFICE OF NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL PULE[:‘_A:
540 Major Drug Squad 07,000
8500 Torgeted Offenders Initative 0O7.000
8610 CurrencyMNarcotics Tranashipment 07 000
8515 Geng & Won-Traditional Gang Squad O7.000
2620 Money Laundering Initiative 07.000
8635  Methamphetamine Initiative Group 07.000
BE40  Joint Drug Intelligence Group 07.000

TOTAL OFFICE OF NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL POLICY

5. DEPARTMENT COMMERCE

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, NATIONAL OCEANIC &
ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION:

7419 Coastal Impact Assistance Program 11.41%

TOTAL U5 DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

NATION NALUTICS SPACE ADMIN TION

7281 Regulating Ramdly Growing Urban Watersheds 43004

TOTAL NATIONAL AERONAUTICS SPACE ADMINISTRATION

LLE. DEPARTMENT OF HOM ND SECUR

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, UNITED WAY

7280  FEMA Phase XX 83523

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, TEXAS DEPARTMENT
OF PUBLIC SAFETY:

Emergency Management Assistance

1000 Emergency Management Performance Grants 83552
10003970 Emergency Management Performance Grams 53.548
T2E3 FEMA-Tropicel Storm Allison Hazard Mitigation 83548
TIR4 FEMA-Tropical Storm Allison Public Asst-Response & Recovery  £3.544
T2EG FEMA-Tropicel 5torm Franges 83.544

TOTAL US. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

See noes to schedule.

Pass-Through
Entity Identifving
Number

102-0]

PL107-13

EMT-2001-GRO005
FEMA-1041-DR
FEMA-1379-DR
FEMA-13T2-DR
FEMA-1245-DR

Amount
Federal Provided to
Expenditures  Subrevipients
153,059
40,739
146,595
6,334
198,025
15384
1 66,500
721,036
637,855 637,855
637,855 637,855
212 813 212813
212,813 212,813
376,252
81,850
519,132
22917479 1,121,957
0747 091 266,802
3478 1,200
33645312 1,989 054
(Continued)



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

Federal Grantor /

Pass-Through Amount
Fund Pass-Through Agency CFDA Entity Identifying Federal Provided 1o
No. Grantor / Program Number Number Expenditures  Subrecipients
F THE TRE.
600  SHERIFF 82D ASSETS - TREAS DEPT 21,000 A 5 404 400
PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, BUREAU OF ALCOHOL,
TOBACCO, FIREARMS AND EXPLOSIVES:
BBZ5 GR.EAT. Program 21,053 ATCOI20235 276,091 5 921
TOTAL U.S DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 680,451 921

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 5132433 456 538,885 890

See notes to schedule [Continued)



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

Fund

7560
TGS
8270
705
BT25
8765
BE20
BE30
8840
8970
8980

B580

8261

8585

8020
E031
8037
B0S0
B0HS
B160
8515

Federal Grantor /
Pass-Throvgh Agency
Grantor / Frogram

STATE GRANTS

F OF THE GOVERN{D ISTI
DIVISION

DIRECT PROGRAMS:

Burnen Bayland Home-Operational

Sex Crimes Offendder Registration Unit
Texas Automated Victim Notification
Crime Victims Assistance

Cold Case Squad

Faimily Violence Specizlized Case Worker
GREAT. BLG. Program

Specialized Prosecutor's for Children's Assessment Center
Domestic Terrorist Intelligence Unzt
Regional Ballistics Lab

Runaway Investigative Unit

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, CITY OF HOUSTON
POLICE DEPARTMENT:

Major Accessory Shop

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, HOUSTON-GALVESTON
AREA COUNCIL:

School Safery Awaremess Program

TOTAL OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR, CRIMINAL
JUSTICE DIVISION

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER

Tobacco Compliance
TOTAL OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER
TEXAS DEFA 1 JTH

Tuberculesis Elimination Division
POPBASE Nursing Workforce

Childrens Health Insurance Program (CHIF)
Maternal & Child Health

Texas Tobacco Prevention Pilot Program
Matemnal & Child Health PTB

Early Medical Intervention

TOTAL TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

See notes 10 schedule

CFDA
Nuomber

Mk
NiA
NiA
MN/A
M4
NiA
Wi
NIA
N/A
NiA
Mia

HiA

N/A,

MiA

A
MiA
NFA
NFA
MNiA
VA
NA

Pass-Through
Entity Identifying Federal
Number Expenditures

% 153
280212
104 228
275 641
125,743

77,850
7.491
15,308
2] 420
181,883
165,852

SARETOM0925] 2,457

Amount
Provided to

Subrecipients

5 104,228

SI-002201-03 56,222

F.348.500

104278

12,289

12 289

218547

75,186
271,518
217719
724379
391,286

53,192

14,592

31,757
552,054
1Z112

2.572,127

610515

{Continued)




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

Fund
Mo,

1260

B35

870

(e

T445

Federal Grantor /
Pass-Through Agency CFDA
Grantor / Program Number

AFFAIRS

Emergency Mutrition Temporary Relief Program (ENTERE) NiA

TOTAL TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORT N
Testing & Monitoring of Storm Water Runoff Nia

FASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, TEXAS AUTOMOBILE THEFT
PREVENTION AUTHORITY:

Texas Automobile Theft Prevention Autherity NA
TOTAL TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

XAS STATE LIBRARY AND ARCHIVES COMMISSION

Lone Star Libraries Program MNiA

FASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, HOUSTON AREA LIBRARY SYSTEM:

HALS Grant N/A

TOTAL TEXAS STATE LIBRARY AND ARCHIVES COMMISSION

TEXAS COMMI

PASS THROUGH PROGRAMS, HOUSTON GALVESTON
AREA COUNCTL:

Low Income Vehicle Repair Assistance Program NiA

TOTAL TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

TELECOMM INFRASTRIUCTURE FUND BOARD
Library Technology Advancement NA

TOTAL TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE FUND BOARD

Sesnotes to schedule

Pass-Through Amount
Entity Identifying Federal Provided to
Number Expenditures  Swuhrecipients
521264 b3 29,312
99312
NPDESSFTXS001 201 169
SA-tD1-10052-02 200 451 .
809,620
44202730 109937 § 1591
02-114-01 659,559
179,596 16931
582-2-55082-01 1,310,839 1,310,889
1310889 1,310,889
QEIF9ITAIS51888 172,612
172,612

{Contineed)



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

Fund
MNo.

BO42
8750
2403
8755

Federal Grantor

Pass-Throogh Agency CFDA
Grantor / Program Number
NT OF PRO IVE AND REGU Y
SERVICES
Tele-Legal Education Project Nia
Child Fetaliry Program MIA
PFT - Perm. Planning Team Program NIA
Houston HC Child Fatality Team MNA

TOTAL TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF PROTECTIVE AND
REGULATORY SERVICES

TOTAL STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

GRAND TOTAL STATE AND FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Pass-Through Amount
Entity Identifying Federal Provided to
Number Expenditures  Subrecipients
09020438 1 6206 % 1,875
G0384 43,267
23130548 530,246 16
SR000504 3901
633,620 76451
7,138,565 2,119,054
5 129,572 06] 41007944

(Concluded)




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

1. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards includes the federal grant
activity and state grant activity of the County and is presented on the cash basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore. some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
general purpose financial statements.

Federal and state awards provided to subrecipients are treated as an expenditure when paid to the
subrecipient,

2. Reconciliation of the Schedule of Expenditures Federal and State Awards to Grants Special Revenue
Fund of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) for the year ended February 28, 2003:

Federal expenditures per schedule 5122433496
State expenditures per schedule 7,138,565
Subtotal 129572061
Add:
County funded portion of grants 16,174,779
Local Grants 2,782374
Less:
Trial balance adjustments for modified accrual
basis of accounting: (2,378,100)
Local and other grants: (10,158,867)
In kind - commodities: (43,783)
Total $ 135948462
Balance per CAFR - Grants Special Revenue Fund 8135948 462

3. Reporting Entity - The County, for purposes of the supplementary schedule of expenditures of federal
and state awards includes all the funds of the primary government as defined by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity.” It does not include
the following component units of the County as follows:

Federal Awards
Received

Harris County Hospital District $9,664.950
Mental Health and Mental Retardation Authority ("MHMRA" of Harris County) 10,509,942




These component units also receive federal financial assistance but separately satisfy the audit

requirements of OMB Circular A-133 by engaging other auditors to perform an audit in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133.

Noncash Awards - Certain federal financial award programs do not involve cash awards to Harris
County. These programs include donated vaccines and commodities as follows:

U.5. Department of Health & Human Services

Donated Vaccine (CFDA #93.268)
Yalue of vaccines issued 32679260
Value of vaceines on hand 381,679

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Donated Commodities CFDA £10.555
Vale of commodities issued 43,783

* &k ok koW o



HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

ENTERP PROGRAM

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

CONTRACT NUMBER 522264

CONTRACT PERIOD FROM SEPTEMBER 1, 2001 THROUGH AUGUST 31 , 2002

REEVENUE:
Stare
Local

Total revenue

EXPENDITURES:
State - Direct services
Local
Total expenditures

Revenues over {under) expenditures

State
Prior Current  Transfer

Budget Year Year Out Local Variance
£ 100,000 I 26,191 90312 5 5 5 GEE

100,000 26,191 99,312 GRS

100, 04043 26,19 00,312 688

100,000 26,191 99312 GE8
b 5 5 £ 5 5




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITY OF SHARED
FORFEITED PROPERTY BY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

Forfaeited Forfeited Forfeited
Property - Property - Proparty -
Sheriff District Attorney Constable Total
REVENUE:
U.S Department of Justice £ 567,002 £ 567002
U.5 Department of Treasury 253 827 255,827
Other governmental entitics
Interest earnings 91,247 5 172 £ 2698 95,716
Total revenue 214,076 1.2 2,698 918,546
EXPENDITURES:
Personnel services
Other current expenditures 1,553,623 1,553,623
Equipment and other capital outlay
Total expenditures 1,553,623 1,553,623
Revenues (under) over expenditures (639,547) 1,772 2098 {635.077)
Unexpended shared forfeitures, beginning 9,244,759 360,458 180,619 9,791,836
Unexpended shared forfeitures, ending $8.605,212 § 368,230 183317 £9.156,759

MNOTE: This schedule is prepared based on reports as of 22803,




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

I

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

8.

9.

The independent auditors’ report on the basic financial statements expressed an unqualified
opinion.

No material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting were identified.

No instances of noncompliance considered material to the basic financial statements were
disclosed in the audit.

No material weaknesses in internal control over compliance with requirements applicable to major
federal awards programs were identified.

The independent auditors” report on compliance with requirements applicable to major federal
award programs expressed an unqualified opinion.

The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by OMB Circular A-133,

The County’s major programs were:

Name of Major Federal/State Program CFDA Number
Assisted Housing Program - Certificates 14.871
L.L.EB.G. - Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 16.592
FEMA-Tropical Storm Allison Hazard Mitigation 83.54%
FEMA-Tropical Storm Allison Public Asst.-Response & Recovery Bi.544
Eyan White Titke I - Formulk & Supplemental 93.914
Maternal & Child Health State
Texas Automobile Theft Prevention Authority State
PPT - Perm. Planning Team Program State
Low Income Vehicle Repar Assistance Program State
Texas Tobacco Prevention Pilot Program State

For federal awards and state awards, a dollar threshold of $3,000,000 and $300,000, respectively,
was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as defined in OMB Circular A-133.

The County did not qualify as a low-risk auditee, as defined in OMB Circular A-133.




HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST - CURRENT YEAR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2003

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS SECTION

Program

Finding/Noncompliance

Finding 03-01
Finding: The Harris County Sports & Convention Corporation’s
(the “Corporation™), a blended component unit of Harris County,
Texas (the “County™). investment activities are governed by the
State of Texas Public Funds Investment Act (the “Act”). The
Corporation made a $12 million investment in the Harris County
— Houston Sports Authority’s Subordinate Lien Notes Series
2001 C-1 and Series C-2 (the “Notes™) that were not in
compliance with the Act, because the Notes did not receive a
rating from at least one nationally recognized investment rating
firm. In addition, the Corporation did not have a written
investment policy in place as required under the Act.

Background: Under the Act, the Corporation is authorized to
invest in (1) direct debt securities of the United States or its
Agencies, (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its
agencies and instrumentalities, (3) collateralized mortgage
obligations directly issued by a federal agency or
instrumentality of the United States, (4) other obligations, the
principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed or
insured by the State of Texas or the United States, (5)
obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities and other political
subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than A or
its equivalent.

Recommendation: Ensure compliance with the Act,

Corrective Action Plan of Management: The Corporation intends to
submit an investment policy to the Board of Directors of the
Corporation,

Estimated Completion Date: 9/30/2003

County Contact Person:
Barbara J. Schott, Harmis County Auditor

Questioned
Cost



HI. FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS SECTION

Program

Federal
Emergency
Management
Agency

Public Assistance
Grants

CFDA: 83,544

Texas Automobile
Theft Prevention
Authority

CFDA: N/A

State Program

PFT - Permanency
Planning Team
Program

CFDA: N/A

State Program

Low Income
Vehicle Repair
Assistance
Program
CFDA: N/A
State Program

Finding/Noncompliance

Finding 03-02

Finding: One of twenty-five expenditures had a purchase order that
was not properly approved.

Recommendation: The County should emphasize the importance of
obtaining proper approval for all expenditures in accordance with the
County’s policies and procedures.

Corrective Action Plan of Management: The County has procedures
in place for the processing of Request for Payment claims which

directs the Claims Processor to verify departmental approval
signatures prior to payment. The County will reiterate to all Claims
Processors the importance of the approval verification step in the
processing of Request for Payments.

Estimated Completion Date: 3/1/2003

County Contact Persons:
Barbara J. Schott, Harmis County Auditor
Ronnie James, Harris County Auditor’s Office

Finding 03-03

Finding: The Financial Year End Report was submitted after the
required due date.

Finding: Seven of twelve required reports were submitted after the
required due date.

Finding: One of three required financial reports was submitted after
the required due date.

Questioned
Cost

None

MNone



Program

FEMA-Tropical
Storm Allison
Hazard Mitigation
CFDA: 83.548

Maternal & Child
Health

CFDA: N/A
State Program

Finding/Noncompliance

Finding: Two of four Quarterly Progress Reports were submitted after
the required due dates.

Recommendation: The County should emphasize the importance of
submitting financial and program rteports within the allowed time
frame,

Corrective Action Plan of Management: The County, over the past
year, has been reviewing the processes and procedures relating to

grant activities and has published a comprehensive set of written
procedures. The County understands and emphasizes to their staff the
importance of preparing and filing reports in a timely manner. There
are procedures in place to ensure completion and submission of
financial reports and requests for reimbursement are being performed
in a timely manner.

Estimated Completion Date: 3/1/2003

County Contact Persons:
Tommy Thomas, Harris County Sheriff

George Ford, Harmis County Protective Services for Children & Adults
Barbara J. Schott, Harmis County Auditor
Michael Talbott, Flood Control District

Finding 03-04

Finding: One of twenty-five patients selected for testing did not meet
income requirement for eligibility.

Recommendation: The County should emphasize the importance of
verifying eligibility for qualifying for services.

Corrective Action Plan of Management: The County continues to
review and take actions to improve the processes and procedures
utilized to verify the eligibility for qualifying services.

Estimated Completion Date: 3/1/2003
County Contact Persons:

Herminia Palacio, Public Health and Environmental Services
Henry Pastor, Public Health and Environmental Services

Questioned
Cost

MNone



Iv. STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED

COSTS
Program Finding/Noncompliance Quegt:‘;ned
Finding 02-01
U.S. Department  Finding: It was noted that for five selections of nineteen subjected to None
of Housing and cligibility testing, the quality control re-inspections were not
Urban performed within the 12 months of the previous inspection as stated in
Development the contract. In addition, it was noted that for one selection of the
Assisted Housing twenty-five, a signed lease had not been received from the owner of
CFDA: 14.871 the property.
Recommendation: The County should emphasize the importance of
performing timely quality control re-inspections within the allowed
time frame. The County should also emphasize the importance of
maintaining proper documentation.
Status: On March 1, 2003, the Harris County Housing Authority
(HCHA) became a separate legal entity. Future financial and single
audit reports will be issued by the Housing Authority. Per the HCHA
management, all re-inspections have been performed.
Finding 02-02
U.S. Department  Finding: It was noted that for four selections of nine subjected to None
of Housing and testing of compliance with post rehabilitation mspection requirements,
Urban the post rehabilitation inspections were not performed within 30 days
Development after the completion of the project.
Community
Development Recommendation: The County should emphasize the importance of
Block Grant performing timely post rehabilitation inspections within the allowed
CFDA: 14218 fime frane.
Status: The County understands and continues to emphasize the
importance of timely post rehabilitation inspections.
Finding 02-03
11.S. Department Finding: It was noted that for one selection of fifteen selections 5725
of Labor related to bi-weekly payroll testing, there was no timesheet to support
Workforee the number of hours worked on the grant.
Investment Act
CFDA: 17.255 Recommendation: The County should emphasize the importance of

obtaining and maintaining proper documentation.

Status: The County has significantly increased the number of
procedures written relating to the grant processes. By utilizing these
procedures, the County will continue to emphasize the importance of
obtaining and maintaining proper documentation. The County elected
to discontinue this specific program.



Program

U.S. Department
of Labor

Workforce
Investment Act
CFDA: 17.255

U.S. Department
of Housing and
Urban
Development
Supporting
Housing

CFDA: 14.235

U_S. Department
of Housing and
Urban
Development
Shelter Care Plus
CFDA: 14.238

U.S. Department
of Housing and
Urban
Development
Assisted Housing
CFDA: 14.871

Federal
Emergency
Management
Agency

Hazard Mitigation
Grant

CFDA: 83.548

Project Spotlight
CFDA: N/A
State Program

Maternal & Child
Health
CFDA: N/A

State Program

Finding/Noncompliance

Finding 02-04

Finding: The Annual Close Out Report and six of twelve Financial
Aid Summary Reports were submitted after the required due date. In
addition, the Cost Allocation Plan Review had not been submitted.

Finding: It was noted that for four of five subrecipients subjected to
testing, the Annual Progress Report (APR) had not been submitted.

Finding: Three of five subrecipients selected for testing related to the
timeliness of the submission of Annual Progress Reports were
delinquent in submitting such reports.

Finding: All required reports were submitted afier the required due
date.

Finding: For two of four quarterly reports required, the County did not
maintain supporting documentation for when the reports were
submitted,

Finding: The County did not retain documentation of when three of
four Quarterly Reports, ten of twelve Monthly Activities Summary
Reports and ten of twelve Monthly Tally Sheets were submitted to the
granting agency.

Finding: Seven of twenty-four monthly purchase vouchers were
submitted after the required due dates. In addition, the County did not
retain documentation for when seven of twenty-four purchase
vouchers were submitted to the granting agency.

Questioned
Cost

None



Program

Children’s Health
Insurance Program

CFDA: N/A
State Program

ULS. Department

of Housing and

Urban

Development
Community
Development
Block Grant
CFDA: 14.218

U.S. Department

of Housing and

Urban

Development

HOME Program

CFDA: 14.239

U.S. Department

of Housing and

Urban

Development

Shelter Care Plus

CFDA:

14.238

Finding/Noncompliance

Finding: One of two Financial Reports (Supplemental Funding) was
submuitted after the required due date.

Finding: For four of five financial reports required, the County did not
maintain supporting documentation for when the reports were
submitted.

Finding: For all of the programmatic reports required, the County did
not maintain supporting documentation for when the reports were
submitted,

Recommendation: The County should emphasize the importance of
submitting financial and program reports within the allowed time
frame.

Status: The County has and continues to review, process, create and

implement procedures to ensure the timely filing of the grant financial
and program reports. The County understands and emphasizes to their
staff the importance of preparing and filing reports in a timely manner.

Finding 02-05

Finding: The County Auditor’s Office conducted a review of the
Harmis County Community Development Department’s (HCCDD)
subrecipient monitoring program for the twelve months ended
January 31, 2002. As a result, several deficiencies were noted relating
to the proposal evaluation process, contract enhancements.
subrecipient management, subrecipient monitoring and HUD
Comprehensive Plan objectives. The County has expended a
significant amount of funds and resources addressing these and other
issues. The significant issues identified during the review include:
(1) inadequate proposal evaluation procedures, (2)lack of use of
oversight commitiee to monitor progress in meeting HUD
Comprehensive Plan objectives, (3) subrecipient contracts lack
provisions 10 equate expense reimbursement to subrecipient
performance and lack controls to ensure grant funds are expended
timely, (4)lack of contractual penaltics for subrecipient non-
compliance, (5) inaccurate and untimely reimbursement requests
submitted by subrecipients and (6) lack of performance of subrecipient
site visits,

Recommendation: HCCDD should address and implement all of the
recommendations of the County Auditor’s Office Audit Report dated
July 1, 2002. These recommendations include: (1) modify the
proposal evaluation process to include sufficient information to
evaluate the financial viability of the subrecipient and the quality of
the proposed program, (2)establish an oversight committee with
representatives from HCCDD, Management Services, Commissioner’s
Court, the Auditor’s Office and other key areas to monitor progress in
meeting HUD Comprehensive Plan objectives, (3) structure
subrecipient contracts to include a contractual connection between

Questioned
Cost

None



Program

U.S. Department
of Labor
Workforce
Investment Act
CFDA: 17.255

U.S. Department
of Housing and
Urban
Development
Community
Development
Block Grant
CFDA # 14.218

U.8. Department
of Housing and
Urban
Development
Community
Development

Finding/Noncompliance

expense reimbursement and subrecipient performance as well as
incorporate penalties for non-compliance, (4) consider inability to
correctly prepare reimbursement requests when awarding new
contracts to subrecipients and (5) implement subrecipient monitoring
procedures and ensure sufficient resources are available to adequately
meet site visit monitoring objectives.

Status: The County continues to utilize the recently completed
comprehensive sub-recipient monitoring plan, which integrates and
utilizes the expertise of the administering departments and the
technical knowledge of the County Auditor’s Office. Along with the
development of the monitoring plan, the County also continues to
work with the newly created grant coordination function, which is
designed to provide countywide oversight and quality control over all
grant activities. The addition of the coordination function will ensure
that grant management, ongoing evaluations and coordination between
the County’s various departments continues to promote proper sub-
recipient monitoring.

Finding 02-06

Finding: Admimistrative Expenditures for the Workforce Investment
Act (WIA) project exceeded the maximum amount allowed of 6%.

Recommendation: The County should ensure that expenditures are in
accordance with grant requirements.

Status: The County continues to emphasize the importance of meeting
grant requirements and reporting requirements of administrative costs
associated with grants.  Additionally, the County continues to
communicate the importance of meeting these requirements to the
mdividuals compiling the data for the purposes of reporting. The
County elected to discontinue this specific program.

Finding 02-07

Finding: In September 1999, the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (“HUD™) conducted a monitoring review of the
County’s Community Development Block Grant Program (“CDBG")
and HOME Program. In September 2002, HUD performed a follow
up visit related to County CDBG and Home programs. The County
was required to resubmit financial data contained in the 1995-1998
HUD reports entitled “Consolidated Annual Performance and
Evaluation Reports™ (“CAPER”) relating to the CDBG program,
which had been previously submitted by the County. The original
submissions of these reports did not reconcile with financial
information recorded by the County Auditor’s Office. Based upon
work performed by the County Auditor’s Office in some instances, the
amount of the individual expenditures did not actually agree with the
individual draw down of funds. A significant amount of time and
effort has been required of the County n an attempt to reconcile the

Questioned
Cost

$8,110



Program

HOME Investment
Partnership

Program
CFDA #: 14.239

U.5. Department
of Housing and
Urban
Development
Community
Development
Supportive
Housing Program
CFDA #: 14235

Finding/Noncompliance

CAPER reports with the County Auditor’s accounting records,
Among the significant issues identified during the reviews of the
Harris County Community Development Department’s (*HCCDD™)
and the County Auditor’s Office include: (1) inadequate subrecipient
monitoring, (2) lack of adequate record keeping, (3) improper requests
for reimbursement of administrative costs, and (4) improper
accounting and reporting of program income. The County is currently
in negotiations with HUD as it relates to resolving these matters.

Recommendation: Continue to reevaluate all procedures related to
grants management, division of responsibilities between the HCCDD
and County Auditor’s Office, subrecipient monitoring and program
income tracking to ensure adherence to timely, accurate financial
information bemg submitied to HUD.

Status: The County cleared this finding in the exit conference
conducted by the HUD representatives on June 26, 2003. The County
continues to emphasize the importance of timely, accurate financial
information being submitted to HUD.

Questioned
Cost









